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HRURCT &I HATAI

RIEGCEI
3 faoel), 30 14, 2016

ALY, 364(31).—DdT WRBR, HUT SMAFTIH, 1956 (1956 BT 1) Bl GRT 2106 AR IRT 211 &
SUGRT (37) & A UfSd URT 642 B SUIRT (1) & WS (F) FART U WAfKAT BT TN PR U 3R AT
AM®I IR AT AedR AT & A1 WL -e HU (olEl AFd) 1M, 2006 BT HMEE B @ oy
ferferRaa fem g9l 8, srafa—

1. dfera A/ iR URT.— (1) 39 o &1 dferd A Bu (oRar Aed) |eeE fH, 2016 ©

(2) ¥ o9 ISYF H USTeE B ARG DI U B |

2. HU (e AH) ¥, 2006 (W4 I8 s A g 199 &8 T 2) & em 2 H-

() s (@) 3R @e (@) & W R fFrEafaRad s T Simed, sfa—

(@) “orar AFe 34 Tl & frm 3 7 genfafafds orar & A a1 SHa BIg fadet AT 7 |

@) “arfafrs’ | wuel Srfifa, 1956 (1956 T 1) AT HUT AfATTH, 2013 (2013 BT 18), STAT |1 HHAT &,
T B

() ©s (@) R Ws (8) & W R A=fRad Ws g SIe, arerid—

‘(=) ‘o faaRor” | Hu= Srfaf oM, 2013 @7 9RT 2 &1 IUART (40) H JAIRINT fawig faavor arfva
=

®) "IEIH” W HU SMAFTIH, 2013 B GRT 2 B IUIRT (20) H JATARANT a1 HUAr AfATH, 1956 B
gRT 3 % ARG, ST ff A 81, ‘Bur I € |
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3. To oW & 4 & QUM () # MR gAIeH” TRt BT A far S |

4. To o & erera W IR 4 & UwETq SURNY P, AR Y & I “olEr AHe i @
JAH argera H frforRaa IR Sid=enfua faar S, sreria—

5. AT VI ‘AT U AfAfEH, 1956’ & ufdqwr W uRaddl Afed s STIIE [T 3
P MTIH, 2013° & Ul 2 |

5. T 9 & gere” Ol AHE Y @ i “oRkdl AMe (TUE) 2 @ RIF W frEfaRad
T AS W SIG, 3fIfd—

“AET gD 2

qAdldg GHE BT oAl

(& oiar a7 4 o HIC [ave Cigy v o WY Sigy ¥ aied U afFiond & oraer wHrT HieEr &/
7S [ave S5y 4 139 TV VT FE Nigld SUGlia avd &/ §¥9 &l F1d @l SIEET & Hld SUEE & 91T &
H Srafd AEIRT 59 & W H ueT i @ed |)

EEED]

g I @ ol H % JEl 99 oI Bl FERer &, 9 W gEldg AME 1 Feagd roral bl
AT H da foxirg faaRen # <rr S1ar © 1 98 Ae U oI & FuRer |t gdidg 9mE @ anTa de
I I oI T S B WY verEs & fiRer 1 o e 2 |

sria=
\. 77 5% ffefda & RF=1 gdldg arrT @ darsn @ a9 4 darf [@@ar arEar anfed -

(@) ycyer wy @ @9i9a dar widers aled 4o 3al @ el ooy~ guafafia ard
(d@r arie 7 faafor 3% @)/

(@) war gerarsit @ HIvEiv & Gy $ig#d 4 9~ & V&7 gAfaehia #1y ;
() FIVEIv—¥cTd & 6y 7 IR dgv, [8§av aer 3= g foraa ; 3iv
(&) 9YIeH @ gy, PV Jiv a7 gcyrel aur @l del, srgesl s Al a1 gdles

AT 99 AT &, forer a& d 97 Serll 4 geenfia Fasrnl @ Sger Y& aqaiig
7o gv A1t wrdt 8/

2. Wy (@) H e gdidg MM B IUET & BT UHAl R Yg agerid Jed W A9 Sl © |
IEERVT & fory, I8 T4 BIAT © O P B BT Ol DI 81 AT Wiol Ao, 3D AR T Fepredl s
! 8 SR ol a1fiw wfder a1 Wl TRE & el & GHREd & a1 o9 T HOdY doiR
e 81T € SR 3] ®1 SRIBerdr & SIRgH F70F BT 2 | $91 Yaldg MM $I $9 JFd $ BRIes
¥ smafsta far T 2 |

gRETITY
3. [Elefaa wrse gw qre 4 fafAfdse sl 4 ggad 39 v 8 -

3.1  gAeg arFT eifefeaa smadr @ -
(@)  BINSGIR @ G BT 4 @B B [ory i ;



[9rT [T-@Ts 3(1)] AR bl USTUA . HAHTHRT 3

(@) O AT @ [y ScureT #1 giFar 4 ;AT

(1) 9IeT FiHIr 4 a1 @ary gerq ded 4 SuHiT v wrd @ fory wrafial ar smyfdar @
Wy H

32 Y& YA qoF V& BINGIR & 61T I 4 Jgard awg siaa 8 foread & »rd ger 817
@1 FFHNTT AT AT [ABg HY 8q H199gF AT drId & "erdr glar &/

4. gAEg 9HE H g Ay & fu wa f6ar T &R I@r R A1 |fEfod 8T 8, SareRl & fog, e
Hedr f[Aear gR1 g9 ey & folw o &1 8 iR <l 18 yvg—awqy, g fasg & fog <@r mn
BRI AR A1 g fama & forw <&t 18 f a1 o vy | didg WM H SUshA g Sarted
IR gy AT Saarfed fbar o ver gwfadfier el iR Scared ufhar # yAnT & fow udiferd A,
TR SYfef, ITAFY 3R Hedx SR Al AfFfeld & | JEidg aMM # 9 WeR uTe, |fdd SuaRoT
3R SffiRa Suerer ARl T8l 8 ST olkdl | 10, Wy, @IF 3/ Syvepy 4 &l g |ull, §I3 3fR
JUEHR B GRATT BT T G © | 59 ISR DI AQI &1 @], @l A9S 10, @7, TIF 3V FTHY &
SIERYT H € fpar S 2 |

gAldg A 1 A9
5. gdlag wrET @1 &arrd SV Y& g o 4 4 &9 g% godiied [@ar 5 ey
YAldg A B AR

6. gdlag @rET 1 drrd 4, @l 9 arral, W9RkadT drrdl, aer qdleg arErT & T adarT
Reifar aerr cem @ @ 4 &t wdft @rral &1 enfier f&ar s aifed

BT B AN

7. B9 P ARG H Pedl R R (ST I S ITH gRT AR ARGIRGY | 1% # agaid ©), fdRe W
3R oo W yoerd: FWfdd o= @ Afed Ha Jod WA Bl © | AUR gg, Rde, Yo amRmdl iR
A & o= W, B9 @) ArTdl & fReiRer 7 ger € ol € |

dafRadd 1 arrd

8. {dHE WMM & WURTAA &I dRTdl ¥ Ied SHAl ¥ UIed: §RHd onTd, o o uoae s,
oA B & | 399 S99 offaRad Rer iR uRad=efial Scured SuRaril &1 e yaRkerd sded Wl enfie
BT B, Sl A BT QIR AT § uRddid &xa # SWd 8 2| ReR Sdred SuReay 4 Sdred &
U AT 8, S S<UTG Bl AET & URaTE 9 HRd 8¢ Aerd: ReR il &l &, 9 b SR Hasi
BT FAETIVT AR IFRETVN TFAT DR g AR URAT Bl Wl | YRR IHTGA IURSAY, IATE Bl
q U] AN ©, Sl Sl @ AET 9 YIeTd: IT oI goueTd: URddd Bl 8, o b 3mcer
AR iR ey 51 |

9. HuRgdd @ arral § Rer Sdreq SuRSdl & Affdferd &1 & Yo & o SHdT 3fded Scre-
JrAEmsll S A ST IR SR BT © | WM SHal YA IEREd & R @Ry STad
AT BT BN W &9 <d 8y, A URRfE & ot § Fafedl a1 JiEl # offd dR WU
P B foIv gl e ® |1 ST & dRdidd Wk T AT WA fhar o dadr g, Ife I8 am=
GFAT BT ITIHH ST & | UG &1 TS 3T dl rdfed Rer I@red SuRSdl @ Y6+, &H IcTeH
T YT WIF & URUTH W[HU el dedl | Iiafed SuRery, 9 afy # 9 9 W Ry Sd € @
P WY H AT fhr o 8| M= dR IR If¥d STed d ARl §, SUTed B YD ghls Bl
arefed Rer Iaures SuRerdl &1 oA wedl &, S99 gdidg 9 and | SO T8l #7197 S |
gRecelie Icares SURSR, Icared GiAumsil & ardfdd TR & AER UR IAed bl UAd 5dbls Pl

I ST 2 1
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10.

fpell ScureT ufhar &1 aRUmM Ue ) Sarfed [l O %8 U 9 ffdd Icate o1 81 |l © | STVl
% foy, g8 a8 Rfd 8, o9 9gad Sc1e Sared By O € a1 O/ U 4% ST 3R U SU—3cdTa
BT 2| 99 YIS IAE & FURIAT @I ARG g2 w9 & ifeg 78 Bkl € o 9% Sansi & 99
dHfel 3R FAq MR W 3fmEfed fHar Siar 21 SeER0 & oy, I8 afdcd Ul Idie & e faat
I W, I URHIT & UsHhH IR W9 IUTE JUH: AL B Ol 7 A iR AR 3 R BN W,
MTRT BT AHall 2 | ABIR IU—IUTGI & AT & BpY I JARNC AHIAT IFHT UHfd F 10 Bl
21 99 U1 AHA B Al % U Y IGHII oI U AT ST B R U8 Hod T SIE B ANTd |
TSR ST 2 | IRUTRESY, I8 SIE Bl SR IGH SHST dNTd I IRa w9 9 = 981 2rll 2|

=T AT

11.

12.

3 AN g A B AR H ddd 39 AM O6 M B SR & O T GEidg A B
I aaae sraRefd ik Rufa # @ & forw SwWa @ oI 21 S<ERer & fo, gAldg A @
ArTd #, Sared SuRerl & SifaRaed o= SuRedl &7 a1 faf¥re ueel & fau Sl o $omge o
BT AT AT BRAT SR 8 Hepar 2 |

R TS @R 3 QYR AFTdl & gaidg aMd & S9! g sERerfa ok Refd d& o= 9
T T2 A ST © SR STy, AHTId: S& galdg dMM @l dnTd 9 eMfiel a1 fhar Siar g |

gdleg 9 @1 drTtd 9 Juast_

13.

IR 6 & AR, g MM B AR BT FERI B H HB ANl DI BIS o AR I9 3@ 3, 59
T ST fHy AT € S 0 & U H AT AT S B | WA ARl & SereRor e €

(@) craf¥re AR, 519 a7 3 I dRTdl &I A I&H ;

(@) ¥ERY N Wid & b A AT ATTHI TG Ush¥ & Jd Icared Ufhar 3 aead T8 & ;

(M) vemafTE SURS, S GAldg AHE I 9D IaqH aReIfd ik Refa § a9 # A T8l <
3R

(@) fasha &R faaRor &rTd |

AN A

14.

15.

16.

17.

ot 7l &1 ont A wy @ s=avgRadHty T8t 8 siiv fafdre Ryt & fery saurfea
IV ST 1&¢ 1Y 7167 I7 WAyl @ GAldg GHT B AT B, GABT g Arrdl 1 A3
ggqr7 gIvr fAa glar ansd |

arTd @ faftfde ggam 4 I' a2 fe wdieg 9me @ ugaE @ 18 A1el @ o fafafde e
sfafRed @1 7€ § | I8 S9 #&l & fog SR ufiures 2 S 59 a1d @) ware Ry 9 6 aw 9 w9
a1 IIfed & E & A1 2, fARre AT & fag s @ ol @) denfl, 59 g ame @
Hqal @ AT AP B B, Sl AMAR W FRRURIGH & a1 anrdl &1 fRffde ggam sguga w,
Fifes AT aRRfAl § I8 Suhd Fdidg M § W& dlell Y A]l &I IWHREd & @ faftre
UE & GG D, AW & Yg ¥ AT B IR QAT grai &I Ui dR Fahar o |

q

T 14 @ GIGT gAeg GHrT Q=T gdldg arrT &1 arrd &7 Efeer ggdd e Yge orr
g7 wiRa st @rra §F &1 g7 #edgy [Far wrar aifed | 9gad ga &1 gdlag arirT
sleThadarT sareeifa siv Reffa dar44 Sura &1 IgarTd @ T JATHHT Siaad \Iged &7
g3elT oear aifed |

g MM & AR BT FERT $R7 oy, 39 gddg 9mE & AfaRaed s fog gere anmai &t
faftre uga ST &, @8 UPR @& ANTd I & TAN B Siar 7| gdeg 9 @1 e Ae @
AT & RO H Ugeh GEl 1 TIT Al DI SAb] aoAr R R Refd § @ H SuTE o @
ST FATEIE 3T AIGTAT UG B DI e | Bl B AMALISHAT Bl & | Tg—TT, Tgei—T
F AT © 6 Edg 9ME @ 9 798 S Ugel WN¥iel A7 Sared bl 15 off ITdT UM Usd Bt
SIAT ® A7 I Uge 99 Sl €, iR uRumm—awy srafy & ofd # eildg dmE # 9N I8 O drell w9 9
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B0 € S ol BT 81§ WNIGT a7 STfed @1 g B | 9IRT Sid R g3 & i Udd HG Bl AN
BT FEROT 3y P Yo IR A Hal Bl ANTGl AR JAe & SRME WRIa) T I IATad F9 Hal
DI ARG B WIRG d F far S 21 &id &1 o, Se @ aRRefal R AR wvd gu, emafds
MR TR AT TS SffaRad ared (RigHe) urd f6d SiM & |#7d &1 ST Gl © |

ARTd @& A9 @ da-id

18.

19.

Ife gRUM arRafds aTd & |fde § O galdg AMME @1 AN @ J19 & §B dob-ldl, o b #d
AT UG BT T Feds UG BT YANT Gawr & forg fhar S Gadr € | 99e arm, |Einl &R gl
@ IUERT, 5T, TEIT oI &Fal SUART & AR WRI Bl &I H IS ¢ | S9d] Fafid w5y 9 gAfdaiad
3R Ife smawae &1 ar faemm Reftal o e # @ gy grieror fasar Sram 2 |

BEHR UFHT BT UT: mwwﬁa@rmﬁ?ﬂaﬁ?w@ww?@wq& ATHI BT HTI
?J(%%Kfutﬁﬂﬁv‘m\_rrm% Wwwwﬁaﬁ?wmmwm Uil BT YART Rl
JAAEING © | Goldg AMF B AN, Jddg GHME & [ qod A I Adhd arv—icR & Ui &l
Tel ex fiRa fear Srar 21 vgaa gfawra S99 gEidg 9 & &9 3 I@dl ©, Sl 9@l aRdfdd
e @a | AR T S gaT § | IS Hed] dRIied & oy U Ue sid ufoRrd &1 wART s
ST 2 |

g a1 Jod

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

g A B AN, G Tl 8 Gabdl, Al I8 Geldg AME TR 8 SN, A7 9 goid: a1 sfer:
argIferd g1 WY, A1 afy Sa! fael dmd AR g 81 | afe SrRiyel 8 #1 s/gAra arrd ar faw & fag
3MAeTSH STHIT AN 9¢ T8 &1 df I GEldg AME @l dRTd age i el 8 9ad! © | Jaidg i
B AN DI Y& AT S T AUIRIT BRI DI BRIYVITEH 39 [GaR ¥ a2 & el &
I fIT A1 TN | UT B dTell ufard Yl | 21fdd YHH WR TR foram ST A1y |

g A DI AL YE agad Jod 0P Ae—av—H8 R W AUfIRad fhar Sirar | qenfy
$o aRRfRl 4§, w99 3R I 9af $I Aedg AT SUGF 8 Aohdl & | I§ FAM Sed &l A
ST gAldg AMM $I 99 "l B AWl B, e SRR AT AKH SUART §HM © 3R Sl |HH
ArMfere & H Searfad ok fqufora &1 Sl & ok 72 S99 Iured X1 4 31 Hal ¥ deiRe & o
Yo Hedifhd el fhar S Fahdl & | galdg A & qHiaxol & YR IR Ydidg A & ufarRad
PRAT SUGFd eI &, IRV B oY, IR A1 A7 AR FRAIR T # Tl Glag AHH |

Y€ T oI & (A, Jeldg A gRT fdrd e & fawa 4 TN Y STl % A U
3t Aed WRIMeRa E‘Iﬁ 2| I8 AN JoUF & dRE & 919 Hed dlell gedRll |
YIETT: AT BIAd AT AN @ URacl IR S A 6 IR B B, O d@ Ul gedd el ud @l
aiE ®1 faere Rafoat @1 gfte awdl €

Y€ I Ted & A Gdldg A B giRd & & Yo i) 1 IR & €1 S8R0 & forg
g g a1 Har |iaer o R® - & U a1Rd gelag 9 & 73 &1 Y qaaid qed, |fdal
memﬁlﬁﬁmwwwwwﬁwﬁwﬁm%ﬁaﬁﬁaﬁ
WA WA BT Y AT A A EER SRl QR SR BT 2 | R GAlag A B A
A e B forw g famy dfaemell W reREe 1@l 3R g Hy Afdenil & ddy ¥ sTaiad g1l
B G AND 4 FTHABFAS TIT o7 TF B AT H geErg &7 areht gears, | efid figidl &
AR yfadres b S 2 |

AIg A & STed H UANT =g <l T8 WEiRT &R o= fidl B arTd | i sfalRad w8l fdhar
ST &, A TIR I o 9 |afFferd B8R, AR WR AT AT | HWR 9 fHd S & fog srdferd
2| T, STa arEidl & HEd § B 81 e Bl R I8 ATAM N Sl © fh AR STl BT AT
I AT el W ifi S, of WAl g aqeria qed 0o s @ Sl € v aRRerfar
H AEREl 3 gfaRenfid anTd, SHa] qHE e BT darad SUael A9 & HHdT 2 |
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25. g IIT 1A BT R Udd goid U @ aRig $T fhar S 2

gdHe

26. fadig fAaven 4 fAeferfaa gae fdar arr aifed -
(@) ggad oarrd §A dled qdldg arET & 494 4 quas Ig dar Ao siv
(@) qA9g G #1 §oa dRT ¥HT v 9eT & fory gadT 8ygad dHleeor/

27. OdE 9FH & = TiieR § g1k gddg IHE a1 SR IBAT @ iR 39 miadl H uRada &
AT ¥ 9=Rd SMeR faxia fJavel & Suarediel @ fog STarh gl €1 gdidg 9me & arT

aiffexord fA=faRad aftafea 2

(@) FHoar AT AR gTh
(@) faor ar SareaE 9wy (@foRiia wr)
M -
@) UR H wie (@R & oy AfeREd awgell & dey W)
T WR T WR U

HEHR AR
) I (TRl v @) 7

/E/\

g

6. qol 99 e | “olal AFd” WY & M “oRdl AMd (QUA) 47 B I W
frforRad orar A9e I ST, st —

e ANE 4
ATHRABATY qAT JA-TUS DI
a™ & UgErq 8i9 el 'e g

(v ol@r @ H Fo FIe [ave cIgy SV gw e cIgy 4 @paieed U wlord & o7l wErT FIfEeN &
7S fave ergy H 79 1Y UV FeT Rigla SUeleld #vd &/ §9 GET Hd Bl SIEgET @ Fld SUIeT & 41T &
H Srafd AEIT 59 & W H ueT il @ed |)

YATdAT

1. I8 9o fadig faavor § fF=faRad 9gf & ufdures 9 gefda € -

(@) 3MHRABAN; 3R

() U BT ARG S YTET B Tl TeA |

2. f=feiRad fawa, Rer aRom smaRAEA] 81 Faar 2, S9! ar] ey GaRi & &9 4 g &), 349
A © HRIeE | rafoid fhy 7 8 -

(@) Sfras 1T T AR 9T S §RT SR @ 78 a1l & BRUT Scd~ S9dT SR

(@) warfrafy ggfaem Aol & | e ; siR
(1) SremTel ugi—wfdarell ¥ Igd B8 drell fadgdn |

T3 AHS B a1, N SMHRAGART W HERId 8, dad S W db Al B 8, Sl db 7 dld ARbR
gRT fafed o@m A9l & I=Fid sl I §, Seex & foru, foxiy onRadl & &9, o9 & o &1 '«
(AT AT 3R THRUG FT & IUGH ®Y H FIG 8) 39 AD gRT AR BN 2 |




[9rT [T-@Ts 3(1)] AR bl USTUA . HAHTHRT 7

.

3. [a=ifeifaa srsql’ &1 fAfafese e’ 7 g9 w6 7 gaiar f&ar 7137 8 -
3.1. 3mBRIHAr v Ul Rerfa srerar gfRRefa 8 forasr sifad gRvis, e srear &if4, v 3re7ar
% JfRad wrdl gemsi & e Jgar 7 ge+ yv & sid ar JTET g T/

3.2. gor9d ®l arlE & yeErq 19 arell ey, 4 #ecayqul geary &, dg@e al glage il &,
ol geaayd #1 ardlE @@ a9 @ #d 3 Rud §18 gT Jiv el s gHI8 @ A 4
a1 srgAleT giasrd gier fadia faaver &1 sig4iaT ded &1 ardla @ dfa 4 giea sidl 8/

gl ave @1 g @ ggarT #1 o aadl 8 -

(#) 3 o gerrya @) ardteT &1 faerrT gRReifaal T siv siftras e garT #ed & ; siv
(@) 3 it o7 gRReifaal &1 Tdad & ad ol geri9a d dalE & gearg 9y~ §§ &1/
e RO

4. ATHRABATY

41. 39 9FS H "AHRAGAN W& BT TN Joud B aRRg oI i Rerfar srerar aRRerfedl ae Aifa faar
7 B, Rraer o garg wfasy & gemei & afed 8 eemar 9 89 R [HuifRd far s gar 2

42. 5l SeM & amd el a2 SMaf fhardmedl & fou faxfia faavoii # aftfa @ S arelt <@t &1 fufRa
FRA B U AT @) raegdar Bl 7§ | denfy, AfEd w5 | et arell geg qen sifiRed gedeil & =
IR 3R BT AN | Ig T b Bl SN AT ST &, ¥ & VAl IFRadar &1 o 78l <, Sl
HTHRADT BT AR qaTl & | IETeRMe, g 2 b Aaeror o1 FuiRer d-e & forw SuARfl Sfias &1 g
I ST &, eIV Bl IMHRABAT el a4 &, Fifd ARG & SR Sfaq $1 qiRenfiye qHi AFfad
Tl T | 3 UBR T Harell & d8el <7 €9 W1 3.1 H & TS uRIT & AR IFHRABT el 8, Tl IPH
BT A ST AT B AHal &, i 3 9 & aR H B W AR T8 € 6 g7 aregdradl ol Iurd
v < g 2|

43. sy @1 "eml ¥ G sifReEdar o1 uRemHr &1 4o § e fBar o1 dear 8 | 59 Sl B AEreTd
TRl # wgad fBar 51 wedr ®, fhg iffedw uRRefodl 4, a8 gear & e W& wR &1 g9d <l ©
RTA®T Suael ARl | Al T8l fhar SIr & | 3 §wifad aRemsi & aoie g8l & farg Siel W, 3
AETd URfIHR0T FagR 8, AeROaaT fHar S | & |

4.4, JATHRABAT & TROTHI TAT RNT 99T & AT BT FEROT ITH & yawe & o1 gR1 fbar S 2
T8 foly foxfi fAaRor & AR @) N &1 Suael gadl R f[IaR &< W ImemRa gid 8 a1 $99 dod

U3 @ ARRI & UTEI B dlell geARil BT gAfdaied [ 39 UhR & HAdER! & ITgMd W YR
TAT B AT {B AWl ¥, W faRmEi 1 R afFfea gnfiy

5 rBlHd gifal &1 o@r gfaureT

5.1. MHRAG B & dT yfaures &1 RO MhRAdar & YR gRomE & MuR R fhar e &1 afe
39 919 DI FRGET 81 {6 MHRAGTT & HROT SeH HI 1 8T dF Wi 81 & foru faxig faxoit & Sus=r
AT fadasiiar B |

5.2, fa<ia faeRor # IUGRIT &1 S aTell SMHRAS B @1 IBH BT JFAM U7 44 F & T8 ol & AER R
forar S Favar 2 |

5.3. I MHRAPG BT BT IPH BT FERT By § tRER IR srerar srqafed ey & o U1 <2 § MhRHdhdr
@ fIeME 89 T SHS! UPHid BT Udhe a1 S amfed |
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54. ITH P B dTell 9RY B BT HH fHAT ST FhdT & 3Ad] IWI Fd1 ST Fhcl &, P MBRAD QI
@1 Fafd ufd—<Tal st R ueedR & g I & AT A $ SRl & | U AWl § Sud $1 IbH Bl
fFericer, 99 T & e AvIfad a9l @ & W x@d gy fhar ofran ', afe S¥e A ferar ayel & day |

Aeayul AfRFddr feme T8 Bl € | oahRHd IR @1 UHfd T Ahdl P 9 GefRd Sfed gwed o
[CRIESICIES

55. RSN, fAfgerer faffma 93 9 SO~ 9readig, 9o $Xi1 YR da-ds fhbU T 3= qreadisil o faemdl
TAT IBH DI g faaxen # am=an fewer & wg # fearr Sar §, giefife S99 Sed &l 819 89 &I
FATIAT T 8] & Sx1Ex 8l © |

5.6. WA Aa] JffAfIfdee SRAN SIRGHI & Hag H FHRADAT S S 81 By T 8, Hifs 9 eI
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@) TGS e |
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25 Tl Fwafxy, U IR SURGR &1 AT, Argar @IfsE) fafr & 9@ 9@e oMd & a)IER B B | afe
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BT A8 (Hal) &1 N &1 A S e R A 8 UIY, A1 SHd! (STd]) AR &I 19 gael # 1 T
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(M) ST H gRadH 3ferar GUR BF AT IUTE Bl IR S AT H gRac 8 iqar dar # aRads gF
b YRR debeilep] AT AT SUYericil | Teb MR BT FANT B Y TIR Bl T Teb A bl
fama d # g Wl weifdt, T @ da-ial g e IUgaddr &1 Ume & |ahd adl 8
S ggcl # R # wf+fed 9l onfdfe i &1 Skl Bl UaRid &R Al & |

(@) MR & UANT & HILAT 3fqal S TRE @l 39 AWY, S @ Hafrd ueel (ofisi) & fafery &t
NFHTYA |

59 fdl aRT &1 Shasarel ufos™ @ forg S9! gena SuAfirar & e # uRifya fasar sirar 21 ufose™
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IV, B GHRIT Yfewl 4 GRad, fdEs, ger, gadsred! siiv gefl gsie @ dcal & fory &
o arefl Wl @ grefie graderdt 4 gfeadal @ & wad & v sIg@T 16 & sigever 4
e @1 arrad 4 afFford g wad 8/ arrd 4 g9 YHIY & giead-l &1 deEr (Eifonéa sigeeel
67—68 @ YV H [FAT FTAT ARV /

67 Ife HIIET STRT HT 919 GTTd Fised &1 GIIT H¥d gV 141 74T 8-

(@) [(r=feiflaa (|) @ sEfla, qifda 4 gRad7l @1 adar7 safer 4 wefta sa &1 arra 4
TIST IT FeTIT Srr anfav/

(@) smRa @t arrad & & werdt T afr sa@t smefia Wil @ afde T8t st @iy iafe
cifiea 4 @ alRa @1 sraefla wiffr & sifd® & wirdl @ @l 8w gl o @1 carT—sify
fageor & gva #@r=ar & il anfey/

(1)  Fle wargiorT & fea &l arra 4 gl gidl & al gfassrT &1 g8 faare e aifey & Far
g8 Ra @1 8w % yvfla wIfr &1 aaa & forasl ¥t ave & agd 781 & wadl &/
T 39 gHIX FT G & a glaorT &1 qRa &1 &fageadl »! ord aeell T W FT
giaseld a¥d bl qey IV faedl Hf arfauedar g7 @1 d@r d@r e 28 » AT §
el Iy |
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68 Ife TIIErT JTRT BT A9 Y7 ATHT FISed HT FIT HYd §Y a1 7371 & -
(@) <1fca 4 gRqdT Gw sTRT gv yged 14 a4 caia JEely 4 gl a1 a4 4 [Aw=ifcifea &y
7 §eelrd &Y ?d 8, and:
€) efaa 7 &# (A7 (@) @ sEf) @k @ fea 3 y7icaiaT sfeiy 4 e oar &1
arvifl dfeT 98 wls®v & g8 ar—sify fdavor 4 gw g7 a& #9 &4 qley & I5
RT yv BW Y74 i & & Seer adl & ol ygal ar—grfT faaver 4 ar=r oft |
(i) <1 4 glg arr—erf7 fagver 4 a1 gt dfeT o6 wisawy ol @il & fea 4
gTH I ey &l 8w g ad wiE wer < Fifey foraar 9w Sid @ YAy cdiad
Fferety 4 #ig o @y fdemrT 8
(@) ga Reffar & afe smRa &1 arra #iser gv Javfia fdar wrar 8 siv sifaa 4 &4 9w gadfia
VI¥ & §e wirdl € @l 9w gis @1 ar—gif [daver 4 dceier Argar | ol @ity
(7) e 4 gyRadT 3w §1a &1 dda & [ T &1 JadcaiaT galory &ar o 8 anfed I8
glaRaa faar o ao [ sravfia wifer ew afr & sga siffre =1 78t & ot gerraa &1 fafer
@l Sfaad qea @ gIT T [RFa &1 Girdl 8/ 9 BV BT YT cdidd ar—sgrf [avor siv
SUgFT () # ST w@fagl & faa 4 & o+ arefl wiRral & fAeifeor 4 famrersf ferar wirer
qifey | e gaqcara raeds 8 a °w §uft 1 wHl IRagl 1 gadedraT FAr
qney |

69 JTRT B! FHIFIoTaT Jagrer 17 ¥R &1 &g §9d 9uFil oflad & IerT e Gy Sid:
o9 V% §IY HaEd HIka ag- 8uFlil oflaT & 3a aw ygd oirdl 8, cifdca 4 wHl yRadl gféadT
I8 & arr—eify fagver ¥ gy & GM—ol8 @ wfca gld &1 g8 arra #isa siiv yTemaT
#iger il 4 @y glar 81

afausaan (g¥)

70 g8 FiRa &= @ foru & @ wwufy, @3 iR SuaR @ o A dfa @IR) &, e gfasH o
e 28, S7NTYl H7 ER/7 BT TANT HRAT & | okl JFd 28 Ig WK HRdl & fb Uh ufde™ fea gor
MR ®Y wrofid IR & FHem HRaT ©, 98 9 UHR UH MG &1 Igell A7 AR &1 RO o= &
IR 98 $d U &fuadl 89 &I q=adT <dT 8 AT SUBT Iolcld HRaTl 2 |

gfaaeaar a1 glagld
71 gHgfy, §I7 IV SyehY &) 97 #¢l yv ol afayead & wF & @ g & srgyar wist vg & 97 yv
gla verm & gfagld w9 «t gy idl & arr—sifr fAaver 4 wftafera @1 ardl anzy/
72 AR, WIH SR SURDR B Hal B &fuRadr 1 sl & Jarg vell | A&erd &1d a1 ufgfd & e s
wadi (@8 @) fedt wdie a1 Ao gRr onRaal &1 gfieemus gurd anfdie weAg § iR SAST ofkam o
frferRad JTgRIR STeRT—arerT fohar ST 2 |
(@) |HERY, WA AR IUBR BT AGI B IR BT ATAAT DI kAT AD 28 & ATERV H DI SR
@) |HR], G979 IR SURDR BT IUANT FATA & I AqdT IABI ueE o) 39 W 39 A9d &
SR H o BT g

(M FERy, W93 IR SURAR B Hal & AU 8F, W AT Bied ¥ g JhM &l A1 e U |
Y BT ®, It AT B &7 ERer wva @ forg Afwfera @ ol g; 8k

@) |HRI, G99 R SURER @I "l B JTHUSRY, WRIg A1 i @ anrg &1 ek 59 oAme &
IR H faam S 2 |
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g (amaf)
73 qHfy, WIF v SyvHY B 7% ol G@iFT gIT 4 [AgT & g#1 & f[ver7 @ oy givad & eF

vt Iy s faaer aqerdl g e, g7d ot #f &9 8, 9w gv afdfa fFar wrar anev ) 39 a§eg
q & &g f gryci@T carg—sifa f[@Aaver # acbrer Iy (AT ST ey

ATl

74 Ty, GIF 3V Guesv B v T &l Jyofia vifdr [A=afefaa gv sy &1 ot aifzv:
(®) fgerT v a7
(@) 5ig 9ed SUFIT I7 fagerT & widl e @ g ania T &1/

75 T#gfcr, TIF 31V Qyvdv @) [ 77 B JHIGT @ FG~T )7 TIcil Hig ar IT g ol aHy
arr—gifa fAqeor 4 wffafera f&ar sr=r anfey oid 98 95 JH &1 wrdl 8 (99d @@r qid 19
gee @ e 9@ siiv argedl ged gv st 9ar 7 §1) | @l (1) #1 d@r qrid 9, Voied
SfsrT 4 FraRarfya wrored & sigere affga T8 a1 wrr @iy

76 dfe=, v& glaserT gl arar=g afafaferal & gl awukn, @gF 3iv S 1 9 Agl @ 3
alv gv (wciq) 4 d7ar 8 ot 9w g @) fFerd gv @7 @ fory v 8, 99 @fev & g8 7 A%l
@1 ga@t Irwvfia IR yv gdlag e (sacio) 4 aq =alad &v § w9 d§ 9@ [»erd av 37 &1
5 v ] & forv giRa &var 81 g9 goiv » Ragl &1 (st @ graa aRrr &d&r arie 9,
YIoTvd (371ET) & SIere wrored # A1y (=) g1t/

77 FHRT, FAH MR SUEGR B Udh 7S BT UTH B3 UBR A A o |@ear @ (@Rfe [, faq uee a1 gF
g | faem @t fafy iR @1 & o, ve dfas™ axgell o fAm & urd v @ Jr9ar & forg
G AHS 9 # ¥ T HHMES BT YN oAl © | AFd 9, f@l iR aruRil uge (efold®) gRT fueM w
] BT 2 |

78 geeE 7 ¥ A W A g & adiF At ve ufoe™ |wfy, W@F JfR SURaR @1 7' @ el
IR # AT & 9N B URRATIAT B NG & ®U H AT <ar ®, 98 YRRty wrT &1 sryeiid (R <afdr
B AT AT & ol TR 9RT BT eIl (Jaerdvn) e —d FI 9 [ 1T 81| Al ufrss™ &
fore uferenfaa wT &1 Rrofa fY &1 MURY &R g™ 9 & @ 98 dAaad & wU # URenfue anTd
BT TN B FHAT & S 39 999 o 9 g9 STferrgia ar ffia fasar war o

79 G, WIF 3V UvHY Pl 45 P Je—argar € Sqqd T AT ENT FT Y& [9erT gl Ife
B3 8 aer A 1 gyofia afer @ &g s=av @ wg d [[EiRa faar wrer anzy

80 HRY, HIF 3R SUFR @I UH A & e ¥ U ufdwe Al & A=ar o AaMe 9 # Y
RIgTl & SIFARYT H & S A1fRy |

gadcTd

81 fadfty fagvul” &1 gxfc, wam 3iv suvsvy @1 gad® 9t & fav fA=ilciRaa &1 gweT Hear
Flfev—
(@) awer srvfia <7 @ e @ fory ygaa @19 e (G¥ie &arra Jisd 1 a4 cdiaT

i)
(@) 9377 Joder [T
(1) suaiil oftaT I gyTFa qeuEiy <%/ Il SyINf WfilgT I gYIFa JAgId @° ylawrd &
gifereredl faemT s 4 fEiRa & =7 8, @ gw =7 &7 1 395 &y 8@ Sea@ a7 TIy:
(a) safer @ ey v ga 4. adber Jyvfa alRr v wfaa qeugrea (bifaa afaaeaar snfar
wfea): siv
(&) srafer & seer siiv sra °. srwvfia wlRr &1 feT FA+=ifeiflaa & gef¥fa #vd gv —
() gl
(i) wiFg gaiv & faga (gerft ) v fgerT & fory enlRa smRadr:
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fii) gganys Tala & aregg @ fETEr:

(v) Jq=0T 34 42 T 43 P Jald YHAIHTl & IV d@r HEAB 28 B IV
gT e Jferely 4 e ar a1 Secrdl WA afawedar gl & GRUITGSY
gl&ar a1 13491

() d@r qrTE 28 & JFEYT H GrT—EI fATver ¥ qr afauedaar smfdr-

(i) &@r arTE 28, & srgEver ¥ Arvy—gilT daver 4 Sererdt T afageaar g1

yii) Foderd;

(iii) &@Er grEw 11, 13 gar fafmg ¥ 4 gRadal @ ywra & sgaver 4 dv— sif
faceft yRarer & fadig faavon & wuravor & g—7 faaer fafawa siav: siv

(ix) 3= gRadT/

82 fafia fRgveont &1 f[A=ifeifeaa &1 g&eT H Hear aifay:
(#) &% (cigce)) yv ylagen &1 diféaca q Rl aor i@l & fav glagfa & &y 4 g

(Fred}) vl 15° gxgfr, wa7 3iv suvav:

(@) awfcr, aa7 v suvdY 1 45 & [[FF7 & glerT gaal ayvfia I 4 g g &1 I
(1) THRy, GIF 3V SUvHY & TSI F IS glaggarsi #1 e
(7)) afe ar—grf7 faaver & gy 9T 4 g8 T8 gHe T8 fFar 7ar & @ wHfy, a7 div
9yvsY &l 97 Hel @ fory & yra gdig venl & afagld #1 wi¥r o afawea g 714 8 @l
7ot & ar wist 1 & siv wwr i & arv—grfy faaver 7 aftafera & 8 ;
(s) wig gaiv & gerdt 14 (fFga) siv faerT & foy enRa sifeaal &1 eif3ry
83 Jouer faf &1 999 ok ol & Suarfl Sfiad &1 Uraded, I8 favy fdewe & o o=l it
fafdrri ok urgsfora Suarfl Sfiad a1 Jeug &30 &1 Udhcd foxia faavoli & yaiaansii & a8 gar yae
AT & oI S Uded g1 Fafd il @1 aHlen axe iR o ufasEl & W faarmed ufiasd @
o B & fog e ferht 21 s UoR @ R ¥ fr=fafad @1 gebe @ o
(@) U@ 3@l & IR HeIgN, ol B 30 AM—2I fJaRor § A7 3= RAAT BT AN & AT H AIAT <
T@ﬁmﬂﬁﬁ?
(@) eafy & ofd # wfad Jeagrd
84 ORAT AIFdH 5 & ATARYN H, U UG ol Uddhe § U U URads @ Uafd g U4d &1 Jde oxdl ©
RTIT aTe] Tafy & ATI—ATYT URAd AR H T YA BT 3 & ¥ | Gl 69U iR SuR & forg
39 UBR BT Ybed AHfRad & ded H UTddherl § URad=l H S~ 8 Aol o
() srafre e,
() Fwuf, 69 iR SURGR & fdwed, g A1 gAdarell Aal &l Y and;
(1) ST ShawaTe; iR
(=) Feuera faferar |
85 Il Al waF 3iv syvamy @l 4e yAqediiad ¥kl 4 aftfa @1 airdl 8 al fAwfafea av
ot gHeT fHar T
(@) gAgeaieT 1 gard e
(@) g7 farelt ¥aad qedidie<al (degw) & aftalera &ar 1T o
(7) gl @ Sfad qed & Yidwerd 4 ygad [AfErar @ gecayel qdar=ang;
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(1) gg i forer a& 7ql &1 Sfaa qeg e widg o 4 gaaha saal & aed 7 ar
Eld @ ¥Gda Ik & el grer [EiRa @1 15° & a1 a9 qeqiad1 asdial @
gIT GIT giddbierd @1 73 8, v

(s) gT e sferely, forad safer # fory gfeadT sl dgvereadl & 9y @ fQavor gv
gfagen &1 Soci@ #vd §U/

86 oRAT W 28 & IRV H Udh UfSMH argees 81 (S) (iv), (v) 3R (vi) gRT U & & 3refrar

Al R, |IF 3R SUFHR O ol Johe Hdl © |

falaN

87 TS U™ &1 FrfoRad §aT @ Udbed & fog diearizd far S &
(@) SRS WU ¥ Mfkpy Ty, §93 iR SwaR @l sryofia i,
@) R dRE W euRd G, F9F R SuRHR @ Fdhel Rvid IR S e off g # %

) THRY, WIF R [WHR B UAD gAHeied sl & fog sl fyr i anra dsd & el
MRt & 3rrofld & WR AMY g

(=) afhd WA 9 g (Berll M) iR fuem & fou aiRd 7 &1 T §9iy, 993 iR SuwaR @l
SUMIGENINE

NEZMEACICESECE)
88 WigT V& ylasr7 7 yd 4 V& g &1 arg—sgif faavr 4 qryar & o siiv ol ggeeT 9 @)
uersl & e wHin, §IF IV SuvHY P [Av—gfgicri 1 arra & VH 91T & %Y H

wiferd &9 o @ fory g7 8 g Vel gfgiorm @ fery yd g#aia & Va1 & §dbar 8/ yd g9id
@ 39 gHIv B J9ET & I BT gHIG vioivd givfera A1 8 fAae—av & wy d gy g7/

89 IRl & 57 @ fafaag 7 sferadla wwufc, aaF 3Iv SyvdY 1 7 &7 grofis ar9 [A9gs
7Bl 26—28 H1 V&IV, WA H HIT ST @7 I H TH AT H At wred w9 IJg ATH
gifaard g wirar 8/

90 forer [afer 1 g7 a7 sifard & wrar &, ¥WaY grcy ol d@r e 2, gdldg WrHT &1 JoAI T
@ SEflT 39 aw Hiel YAl g4I & %y 4 ford ird o, 9% 39 §9 HAG B JUEE1 B HFET
7 goflga fFar arar a8 9% ga@l wafta syufla wifral v goflga fFar arvar) g9
q7E H1 &1 B SFEIN §H GHIV d Yollgd V¥ grel yv Jedgrd 9ia™ 4 gaa Iy 9yl
oflgT @ SINTT TITIT SIreIT |

91 YT cqIdT Hisel [q9Y% =0T 32 IV JJBT 34—44 ) JU&1y Hqlag § ary &1 et/ fore
fafer a1 gz 7@ sfvard g wirar 8, Il Y& glaerT gadeaieTd disad &l quHl dar fifd & &y
7@ T8 syarar 8 dfe wwiy, waF siv 9uvasY @1 77 #el @1 swefla Wil [y ydadf
gag s &l gelR¥ia avdl & @ a8 99 45 @1 g Wl & fawg iy caia glaviEra e 4
gHrr R & wargifora &ar/ e . 77 Bl gyYfia wfr FE ft safre gou @ & T8
g1 8w #5 @1 sryvfid Wi & Sif® gayeaiadT glavida [Afer @1 #is + sife aarar
vroreq glavféra, 1[Afer 4 warifora &1 vt
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0. qo o & “argera | CoEr aea WY & el “olkdT A (TU) 137 & R R AfoiRad
T HIH /I S, JHfe —

‘ot wd 13
fafemt & fag dar
(57 olar FrE § o 7Ic fave cigy siv gw WY <15y 4 @aftd v wfralerd & foradr wErT JiEeEe &/
7S fave ergy A 179 1Y OV 5T Rigla SUeleld #d &/ §9 SiET Hd Bl SIEgET & Fld SUIeT & 41T &
d Srafd AERTT 59 & W H uer i @ed )

PESICEIT
198 Ah S & fadig faxol ¥ g & e oar ok awifdd yded siensii 9 Gwiid 2 |
2. I8 qHe fAfeRad O gwifdd T8 8 ¢

(@) fafamt w Ifsta S9 <rll, e iR foxml & e & forg MR S Joia SIfWEm= WR ol
AqHH 9 H AftAferd @

() garer a1 faxia ged

(M) ar frgir ugfaer areEmel & iR Siad 9/ SEMl & e ; 3R

(@) RgId He AR IeH Yol Ml 3R /a1 Awifed R yde SRl S a1 I ARGR e
@ it fd a1 HrAr T, 2013 & I 39 UHR G 9% iR @l faxig wvemt |

gRYTITY
3. 39 7w H [A=ilefda vrss fafafese arerl 4 gyaa v 1y & -

3.1 fafErT Sem grer, arren, &ror aor el @ 1 sifola ded @ forg, Yol gie @ forg ar
fafEmT &v v6 ey @ gla g &l @ forg, g @1 15 sRaar & @maiRe weia @ w9 4 &veor
@t 7 gmRRaar fafverT 78t &/

3.2 Tiq fafrerT v& Cwr fafaerT 8 ol sgt gofa & acgvar @ agell 9179 & siiv I8 fafEmrT a)
ardle & dav v& Iy & sfE qug @ fory grevr 981 far orar 8/

3.3 A wilfew fafFErT aiq AfvemrT @ sifalRad s fafaerT &1

3.4 fafEmrT q=gfcr 87 w7 ar wa=1 4 fafFEmT & o fafrerar e grer avd %9 @ SUAT @ fory
I7 97 garer Tl # SuAT # forg grevr 78 #1 wrd) 8/

3.5 Bfaad 4o a8 ¥4 & foras foy smRa @i s &'ver wegasre 4 werd, §egF #dl v T,
gg® Qmar @ T A% (Far o a@ | sygaqd giRerfaal 4, roiv qog a1 Y& agcll I79 43,
Sfad 4 &1 Wed Y<I7 HYal &/

3.6 SV Joq Gel groe 4 [@fErT & [wg @ gra g9 9179 va9 8 Wi, JgT gv I7 99w Ysd
QYU Y W1 qrel 3ravgd 1l &l gerdy A/

! 2R e (orifq $RAR & AR YaTed § fAma @ oY) @ w9 § gReT Py T IRR, FUET SR o
gfergferdt ‘fafem w21 €, S {6 g9 w9% # aR9ifvd & | gefl, 98 o, e 9 ki faexel d orareg
TqAT Uhe B SR © el Al & e § drF) Te @ |EM © | 9egdR, 39 d9M$ & SUdH, 99 ad d
a7, fafemi 9 ST 8l § Sugad wurEl & 9 o b g9 a9e § Affde € auie wie & wu 4o
gROT fhy 7T IRRY, FoIAT AR o ufefoat @ ufr WY o €
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vl
fafrem @ ywu
4. I A eROT & forg fafferei @1 aRoT #Rd 21 g8 SEAl & foy, e fhareann yeredl &1 e

HedQUl T & 3R S & [eredr b1 FuRer f[Owgd wU 4 A1 VAT WU ¥ 59 fharsay & Ruic fey My
aRemEl W R BT € |

5. §o s @1 S Wifde IRawa 81 81 iR I Sad YAIIIE! I FH9Y SXAdSll g1 U¥dd by ST
%‘(W%TUTZ%%N IR) TEfs = HWifas wu § SuRed g1 2 (SRl @ forg, wam) | va faftem @ uwfa,
FeTplfcrd A1 Addliiad O a1 @R T & fdRed, oRe & ufd <@ Aifdd B9 @ Idd $)d U 3R
AR TR &1l dTel ﬁra%q?%a%a?‘s’ﬁﬁwlé Jofeud w4 W, T8 Y I & IR IR g SR
H 9T B Wl 8, oY b U AR IR | Afdear A ki afder &1 ufdffee a-d 8, offed ¢
@ﬁﬁ%éﬁ@mmﬁwﬁﬁW|

6. $o fafFEEl & foy, ve Al aoR [AegdH BrT & O Ue aoiR Hed @fid fbar o1 wadar g1 U4
faf el & foly SRRy R W 99IR o, SFId Hed &1 Haid |ed Ya &Rl § | o fafemEl & forg, wa
afha aTeR e 81 811 JiR ST Hog BT IauRe &R & fofY oy A1 JanT fhy 9 2 |
fafremt &1 aeffeor

7. STM 94 faxiia faa=oll &1 o wxar & o1 Rer R, faftemi ok =1 snlkadl & gore af # aifieq
axd 2| fafems Sdwifors fAfet ok are fafter=t & avfied g 8| e fafvem areg sniRaat @1 yafa @
B €, gaft A aer ¥ 9% fafveml # wfafad fear o wedr 8 7

8. el fafvem=l & aifaReq s faftems, Sderfoae el & wu 4 Tfiegd by o1 9@d &, Jafi 9 To=ar
H 999 AT B Fad T |

fafrem=t @1 arra

9. R & ama # o6 UWRI & AfMdferd fHar ST & ST garell, BN 3R e |

10. Al v faffeme RRE A1 o=y ufcpgferdl & Ffee g1 qofa: ar sfera: aifsia fpam Simar @ 41, sfoie o,
frifa ofegfoslt @1 Sfad ge g & (S, Sugaa Refoal &, frfem @ma grr setan o1 waar &, 9y &
ST wEIRAET grT FeiRa far mr 2) | Sfa Jou aifvard 781 fo frifig & w2 ufenaferat @ sifda ar &=
Tod & IRIeR BT |

11. Ife gap fafemE, o= i & faffm ar ofvra: Aty o aifia fear Sirar & o1, faffem @1 seia an,

Il T oRa @ Sfa Hew @ W H fuiRa Bkl 71 aifvia faffem & Sfud 1ow w e < Suged @
Ao & Ife a8 s wwed: Aeg |

12. faffems & Hdg ¥ g @ o SR fawg, el w aiee & w0 # o /m 9 2 | Ief ¢u
aRRerfal #, U yare, drTd @l a¥ell UG PRd © SIR AT BT W El §9d | S8RV & [N, o4 rdad
TS, 1 Y& B 8 [ANEH & o9 9 Ugdl Uieyd Bl & R swfely 9 faffems & fog s@r @
PHHAT H WA A SIar & a1, TS @ SARad! YT, qa—aisi= aIT Ued— 3Toi Al & 19 mafed el &
; JE—3fSi W SR ¥ "SR Sl 8| 9/d ARV ¥RIR R M, Ya—3fed ol 9 9iffd 8l € dl, U
FHEY yfaured @] 8 Haal © | Al Wee MR & SifdRad VAT SfdeT dRAT Hfod BT & dl, IMdR W),
fafem @ ara g dMRl §RT $ad T FCE Ok © 94 d WRd: dnd & Ud AR B gl &
gfaffare o |

13. 919 3MHR by MU ARNSRIBA TR Ufdyd 81 & dl, ARNSRIBA TR B aWd bl a1 aiRkar a1 SR
BH W Sirel ST 2| X AR ufsd 81 afed aoiR H 99 O © ar 9w wiftadll, o oiR s faaver |
o SE Wl 2| gafy, STEf fafere iffer |fed emR, R ifia fhy o € iR Rffemi &1 aoR e s\ e
IBR fET 997 & qRA d18, SF AN q HH Bl &, o ard R faftems aifia fee 1w o, ar sfderi @
faenr wiftqali &1 U fafem &1 SR Y69 &I 99R o8 06 HF B3 § ol AR BT SUJad 8 Fadl & |
faferl &1 SR a

1L 117ETT

14. a1q] faferei @ forg SR IH9 aFT iR SfId Joa # A S &9 & 98 B 2| S fAfe & e |
R foy Afshy IR fIed™ 81T 8, 99R Jed PR R SR Jod &1 |Waiad 91ed Y& &Rl © | T
IR SR o7 H ¥ P @ W e, AFEET &1 qedie, goud § @ad 8 dTell DT IS DI TR
PR & oy fagaeiier et Ua™ &l 2 |

> g @ AR gETe d [y @ U gRer Ry U SRR, FOOE quT o i, are snadl’ @
i & Sfaifa ‘@UR Wi’ & w9 H Udbe fhy o 2|
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15. AT (A1 ARITAS) MR R a7 ARG &1 qedie Sugad T8 T9sh S | SHI—FH], T SeH Bl
T yd AfddTa f[AfFEs @1 oy 9wt are] ANeE & o & o @ 9T 8 el § R dag9NR,
fafem of & R W @I IR ¥RR, AREE IR, FURTAHT Foras) TOET B TR AnTa iR Sfud
T H ¥ HH eI W o ST ST © | g9y, afddd wu 9 el B dana ok Sfa qew d 9 w9 g3
W T DI UGl 3 fJadeid 3R Suged © |

16. =T fafami & fory, S Joa @ @18 W1 & iR THl &1 &1 $15 W1 Il o iR BN & faavor 4
onfie foam e 2 |
g wifera fafrem7

17. Sreddrferd e SR W amd R foy 9 € | gaf, 59 ddaed (e & 9ea 9 sremrl firee
% sifcRed Rt Bl & df FR/Ee &1 IfWsd &=+ & oy, SR P9 gerll oIl 8| afes & 00 &
AP 59 IR qed, RAFEEEar @1 sniRadl iR kel qen faffes & omiférd Jedr udrel & ded 3 ot
feg s 2| fRferrEa § fafueedt & R @& geR dur SEer oo e\ § @ S 2
faferEar gr1 fAaRel &R iR el grRT @9 wR ufvey, R[fee @ ufa Rfed g & gaifad &=
Fad 2 |

18. drddifors ANEM amdRk wR e &R @ ST & ufd Afdd 98w & 8 B | sdifey, ddaifos
fafermer &1 SR vem, fdara e & R ) @eRa o S ¢ |

19. Siet daifere fafeml @ R Yo d sRemft firmae & afaRed 18 fiRge B8 8, ar uRvmiasy
DR IHA H E HH A SR w1 RQerer & uftr ywiRa @ S 21 w9 e @ Jou # geray Bt ® A
IfT 39 FH B MM B HRUT fAEHE &) | o, DRI XHH H B DI Sete AT ST B

fafqem gwaRrar

20. U 99T WURT & <@l ol A& 10, @of, I3 3V 9yvay H JAEING dRTd Hied & SIgaxeT ¥
fpar ST &1 g el I A1 S H R ot U SRRT 1 AT e enRar faftem qwaRy @1 aror
PR B ATPR A Jerd: FHSd sl & fafem aw Ry & R 69 § Se 9l 2

fafem &1 <=
21. fafe™ & 9 R, AT BT Bl B 918 DT YXhH R JIT IItadi & §1d & JdR bl o 3R 81T &

faavor # srfsma fobar <irdr 2 |

22. 919 UH G fAfem & aiRdr & e 91T &1 @i fhar S € o1 S 91T &l 3fefed 819 daTell i
@, ol gReT fBy 7Y e @ sid SR ved @ smeR W RuiRa o S 2 1

fafremt &1 gadfiexor

23. 519 e @rferd fafem =@re) fafferi & wu #§ g aiffed fhy S 2 a1 3fdvvr, SfaRor @l dRig IR R
IR BT B9 # A A o W By o E |

24. 519 fafvem, = fafemi @ dderfas fafems § g9 afied g7 € a1 sfdver @ dRi &1 anrd 3iiR
S o # ¥ B9 oI W BT 2|

gdhe

25. o fyaxort # faffems & wdy # f=feaRad gadiawer Sugad € :

(@) faffemr &1 SR vew FuiRa o & forg o ifedt
(@) fFefaRead & forg am ok &1 faaRor # wnfie @ T8 I ¢
()  derfersd a1 e fafE | A oM BT gUHa: < gy Al o) sre, o (Ege
HHEAT I AR P gy S Q) 3R PRI | Fhel 3 &I A ST a1y, Wid W
ISR Bl DI IHH B, Had AR H1 H wfiet fHar S z;

(i)  are] e & &F W) @™ IR BIFET &R ¥ fAIf e @1 &REr tes #§ gRade ;
(i)  <rd@reie el @ @E WA iR BT iR U et & SR tew | gRade ;
(M) @i @ Af¥eR, e @ agel, A1 3 iR [ & UIiadl & U0 R Fgayol gfaey ;

> auiRe wie & wu ¥ gRo by MU SRRY, ForEl den e ufenferl @ ded § wrme fhy Ty wie @
AT JSUYHT ARTT A (STTERYT & folg, Ugel 3T Ugel S, 3T @I 3Mfe) HT R HRJ ¢ TR Bl
Al 2| I8 AN A, Eldg G & Jedied & ded H ol Ad 2 H aftfd gEl & @6 e B

T ORIT qep 21 GHfed fa-ia faaver # e uRurfd
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(&) Sy fafert @ et aIomR qed @ <d gY, YA qA1 R—9yd A @ g v
(8) 37 Umhed, Wl f& Sem w fafafia sugea aRfew g fakre wu & emfard 2 |
qeu Rigrd
fafrErl &1 aiffaeor

26. Y& 9erF @l 39+ fadiy f[Qavon 4 aiq fafaerar siiv g aifars fafreri @1 go@a: gae sear
ey /

27. FIq 3V A wricrd fAfEra &1 i Tffever, 9eF &l [QfafAa av v &7 4 oar [k
g dwr glar aifey | gl swar @t sguieeifar 4, gw sifalRed aiflavor &1 wel a7 &, Fwilafda
7 fafremal &1 g@e ear ey -

(®) avasIel 1 e glayfaar

(@) ggY, [edav ar gy

(1) fafaremrT awfrar

(1) = gpia fafilds svd gy/

fafreral &1 arra
28. fafrerT @1 arra 4 3T gHIR A g4 ey, o qerd, Wi i gob /

29. Il v& fafrerT sgwl a1 s glayfaal @ a7 grer gofa: ar siera: sifsia faar rar &, al
35T arra, [T @1 a5 glasfaal a1 sfaa geu g+ aifey (o, syyaad Reifaal 4. a7 #aa
GIeT gt o wad) 8 it [ srgHt gieEsRal grer sraEnfRa far war 8) ) sfaa ge sifaard a8t
f& fFrfaa a1 75" gfaqfaal @ sifea ar &7 409 & gviay 81/ Ife va [afera, o= saRa & fafsg
7 gfsia faar =ar & al fafrerT &1 sof7 arra, &l 75 sita @ Sfad Joa @ wed d SraEnia
@1 wrdl anfey ) deloywd wy W, Il Jfola fafverT @1 sfaa qeu sif® weear & wreg &
faferT #1 srofT rra [AfrEnT @ Sfaa ged @ wew 4 JqeiRa 1 wir aadl & /

fafaemrT a=gfcrar

30. 7 9EH [A39r Gglrar iRad &var 8 98 SudT A&l od@r #Ad 10, Gull, GIF IV SuHv
TJTITEIRT GTTa Tiscd & SIEIY BT/
fafaemrat &t dRT vy

31. i) fafrEmT & &y 4 gffega fRfvEr & Ada el 4 aar (ar aidalffie) smere #1 gore ar
al @feara fQfErT sere ye I [ AT @ ai & e ge SqEnia slaa Jog 3iv arra 4 &
& qoF g¥ 1A & gy orr qifey/

32 ddwIferd fAfEra @ &y 4 qiflga fAfreara &1 fadla arsl 4 &g gv & S o ey
ey, geg 7 fivrae @ forv 9uae fAfvera @ geq 4 sl &4 & sifaRaa &+ &l sifisia se
@ fory gary av i, Vel @ gAdF fafrerT & oy fdara &y & sqEnRa siv afkea &y wrg |

fafaerat &t dRT va#7r 8 gRadT

33 HRT vog F fodt o & ar ot B4l @ fedft ot Geerg &1 arg v sif fQaver & gla
gaIRa Jr sise f&ar or=r aifay/

fafaer it &1 @7

34. fafrerT @ g7 gy, HRT va9q Jiv g g7 gifcagl & g @ sav &1 oy v g [davr &
gfor gaiRa ar sy @ISe 1&ar T aifzy |
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gHeT
35. [awileiRaa sl fadia faavon 4 gae @1 wrdl anfav -
(#) ffveral ®1 RT v&4 sqenRa &vi @ fery dar AT ;
(@) fafema ar affaeor Shar f& syviea dvr 26 3iv 27 4 afdfa & ;
() f=afeiRaa & fery ara 3iiv gifv faavor 3 affafera &1 75 ¥4 -
(i) HE@Ierd ar i fafrEmal | O s @l gersa: qenld gy fafveral gv &ror, arrer
(aarguil dHfral @ graa arren sl yYeda: el g§Y) SV ey adbe s »l gad
HeTT Ty, Fia v sy seldl & wea fra & 4 afafera fear orar 8/
(i) FIq fAfErT & g7 gv o+ v g3 v vd fAfagral a1 dR7T vww 4 gRadT7 ; silv
(i) JHBrfle [Rfaeral & T ge arg iv sl v 9@ fafaeral st dRT vew #
gRead:

(a) @i & sfgare, fafEr 1 agedl, ar sng v g7 a1 gl @ 9901 gv g8qyu glaqae ;
(8) 8geaa fafreril @ e Irov Jed &1 7d gV, 9qed aoT Iv—8qed [Afveril &1 o & ;

(d) &= yde, ol [& ger gv fafraffa sygaa aifra9 grer faffre sy & sviéia &1’

9. ol 99 "o | “ofar AFd” WY & JefF “oRdl AMe (TUH) 147 B WIF W
frforRad orar A9e I ST, st —

“JdAET qd 14
Tl & fau awr

(&% o7 Fre 4 o HIe [ave /sy Siv §o WY crgy 4 @aiverd v wiRlord & [oTdT WErT FIEErY &/
7S fave cIgy H 179 TV UNT F NIgTd SUGIRId @vd &/ §W &Il HI% B SEaT & Ul SUIEE & I &
7 SrardT GEIRT S & HeH H T o @ed |)

YETIAT

1. I8 AFG Gl & g oEr &k aRvmiesy S Tsfad a1 aRfafoal & uftured & wWied B 1 I8
AMG g B @ gfa e & aefd g9 g8 et o Sedl @ faxii favo R W @ Bl €

2. g 9 3o & U Rerfoal & wawifdd =81 g R ta ot gR1 (BT o dwael &l 137 8) Adhs
Her & fol a1 3fSie ¥l # UIR AT 1 URRIfRl & WU H AT ofEr: Uh wd H SR I oy wd A
gfawd & o o= drae (1 31fSid - H8T -1 8) & Yo WRI AT I U 9RT BT AT I Jof
R AT IAD Teb AT h ST © | IS DI Yeb Heedqul [IRNal I8 & b Ao HHeIl BT FH9 81 [har
ST 3R gAHT gId MR a1 I8 2 |

.
3. g9 a4 [Eifeifa wrse Qs srelf 4 qgaa gv & -

(®) wardc &1 sl 8 s¥g) Sfafa9H, 2013 41 3~ 7 BIYAl & YL B JER GHHAT d 8
ol @gfal gv &arf & ar 34 @ gv @y sld &

(@) sraves FHgdl &1 37ef a8 A & ol 3 HHyHA 7 wHFera gidl &/
(1) safedt ¥l &1 sref 8w H+y#l & & forerd siaved &y warAfera &1 wrdl 8/
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(a) siea &1 sref Serm @ o, gifkadl ar sy SfEElyl @ 9w Hrr (a8 Yoflia srear weivd) |
& ol sitaal @ qoq 4 & a1 8I® HTETIVT IT ST AT @ fory SySEl @ SfaRFd arr
g7 faf¥ree Beey @ fory yae grvr fafagifora v ora &/

() fAcg7 ®1 gHpia 4 aardcrT a8 aarded & ol [=ilciféga &+ eral’ & ger &var &-

() GHATT & JIc 3ave d7g+ d1 gt smRaar v <ifda, galdt s+ &1 spfRaar 3siv
gIfeq 7 wird 8/

(ii) SJaved HHA § arEmer AqN B SfFT T & FH § FH 90 FlATd gN0T Hed qTd IV
gree (7 arEree vl @ sifaRed ol warde @ e ysd saldl @l ar gad)
FagEAa a1 gI® ARl & grer o), wHHeT & Hrevr Jalkdl dFHA & ArEneer
ggveed g7 wird 8/

(iii) FHIRTT Dfly 3Javed @HH & 97 WIENT IS, off Jafedl &l @ arEwer
sgeered g7 @1 dgre & oid 8. & i glawe, saltdt @l g yuia: srafRdl dRrHl
4 @regreer ANl @ [T gIvT BV oiid 8 gwd Sifaled b Yies fadl o grra: dael
@ fory fear o w&ar 8/

(iv) FATAET & 9earq, Jaled? &+l gIvT, 3aved ) & gaarg sl dery ol &1 gIerT g/

(v) Siavw A d1 sRadl div i@l & 81 qeul @ ylfa 9w aHy (B Gl dvd 1
i yaior7 787 & we 3 gardt s+l & fadiag v 7 wafae v ard & geg dar
Hfaat st vaegar &1 glhafaad &vi & sifalfad

(7) #I Bl gHlfa ¥ aarcT 98 GarFaT 8 ol syvidd sy—yvr (§) 4 fAfafds faelt va a1 sffs
gral’ &l ger 78 sear/

(8) aaraT @ fory gfawer &1 el Jaldl &l gieT siave &7 & dgverwsl & gfa (T
gl siiv s glayfaal siiv 7w 7 a7 sftaal @ @y H v TY Werg a1 T &/

(c7) 8faa e ag v&¥ & forad fory el s &ver weaasre 4 wsr7, g2g® »al dIv GFri, §98d
famar @ &4 v& sfea &1 A3 a1 o & |

(51) feal” &1 wyglavor garderT @ fav &d@r &) a8 ygfa 8 forasr 8eeg wardeT & foiv 39 &IV
d@r ser 8 oid & gald! s#fl grer wardfera g & WA & aardfera Faardl &1 adry
a1 @1 gIieT o7/ degvre, aariera g vE dXfaal @ @fdaiua fadla [Qaven 1 cilsd gy
»gel a9 gRadT &y wrd &/

USETHROT
THRAAT b YR

4. AW Gl @ & UBR B © | UBd 9 § 9 FHMET B © olel GHMfO 8 Y8l dHdl Bl
RT3k SRl AT &1 &1 aR<fdd FHEIDROT el Bl 3iUg RRURS! & fFai dor bl BT B AR
&1 W arafas (-I‘-(I\EICMUI BT B | VW FHHed, 98 99Hed Bld § Wil faere @ Hcgald e g R W
M @ ol yfaured &1 98 gihlEd @ =ity aRumesy St gy onRaR, <1yl doft
IRffeR @& sifdrs, WHMIfeld 81 W8 HHf Rl & FATd Sifdel & Siie ®I T Ugd &Y | §N aif H
AT AN & S IR H Ud VAT TNIdT 2 599 §RT U BRI QORI BRIl &1 3o $Rdl & AR
gRUTHERY, 3MfSTd BRI & IR GRS & U AR IR AYad HH $I fdac] # rquifcras 9RT =81 Igdn
1 ARTT B & FTART BT FTe] A BT WA &1 81T | U T ‘B BT YHiT § FHME B € |

5 U1 3() H qEdg W Al & QOf 81 S W 8 P GEHHEd ®l, [AeE @ UPfa § SHWed & w0 Ao
qefiepa |cbu| ST B | FEf, AR @ S | arell o el ordf @) gafa & awy o faf 79 21 @5 @1

2

of

T ORAT e 21 FHfhd faa faarer § gen gRifig



30 THE GAZETTE OF INDIA : EXTRAORDINARY [PART II—SEC. 3(1)]

7q & b, AR IR © Ay & 91 I8 e 2 {6 idke e & IRRYRS, AR dFl | It
IR YT BN I8 S AT b fb S8 I B Th SIOSR) UeihR &I Ugd=-T I9d = 8 UiY | IJg dd, 39
fooR R 3ferd: meRd ® &, U 91 o9l § Ae@sd IR B v U ®wAl & faor &1 fafsy, siRkgst
R ol & IRERE YRERT &1 dIfe § 98] 31dT B |

6. I BT 7d T & AT & UHfd arel FHRIed &1 9R, UFhRI & Had & Ged § @u Aucs] & IR 8
R YA BT 2, o fF wwmferd g1 @ swfEl ot qayd wdEan, SHe GEmed &l a9, afra
HgeRl @ Ul ST FHMEH! & U9 DI HH BT © SR FAMST & U JidRdl dHe & yae H
TP HHN B Yau §IRT TR ARIER] |

el & fag oen ughaat

7. WHMEE @ AU orEr @1 el ugfrl €
() fodll & wHEIBRYT @1 gl ; 3iR
(@) P UG |

8. Rl & wEiaxor @ uefa &1 w99 uRRufodl 96 <fiftg @ S faem &) usfa arer wwmes @ forg
91 3(%) @ fafafde wmes o =1 F=al 2 |

9. I UEHT BT Igwy, MRTAT & A Ha H or] Rrgial o fAgial &1 ] #=d 87 FAMeT BT o]
PRAT © | TS UG B DI IS arel FAHAA! & oGl & oy TR B Tl 2 |

f8dl & wHEIBYTT B GGl

10. 2l & TEIGROT @ UG & I, faRE HHoe ol ARAT, A IR I R it faerm=
HRAT IHH IR AR HFT g7 MfAfeiRad g1 8 (IRT 11 # S7aeds RISl & 919) |

11, IfS, THMT & THY, IdRd 3R ATRT Hrf~af #§ R faRiEl oiar Sifadt srgarh i <& 8 a1, JHre
P 915 UH®T ol =Iferdt r=r Sl € | orkar Sifodt # fh=fy off uRad=i @ foxia faavon w wvma, oar Aes
5V 3 @& o7y & oI a7 &7 qaIar e Siv i@ Jifaal d gRadT & JJAR Rul fBy S 2 |

FT ggIa

12. %I Ugfd & 3faid, JIRAT HH=N a1 a1 MRTAT 3R

<T@l B ST I F81 Hed R WA dRa AT FAHAT B NI BT ST i & AR R AaRS HFH]
B gh WU H ST RAl iR iyl ®I ufdwer sdfed @R §Y WHMT BT i@l BRdl © | AW
MR 3R TRl # 9 iR iR alica e 81 | 8 Sl icke el & foig faaroli # arfiforRad
Tl € |

13. o8 IRt &R <@, oo ST o9 & R W Y:dd ' €, 98 Sfud Jedl &1 fAeiRer siaRd
HH B AT F GAIIT B Tl © | SarexYT & forg, faRdl rl & U U& o & forg va fafre wam
B Fhdl & Sl 3 FHI Sl & UK SUTel 7 8l | AART Bl BT JASTH fReb el & fehAreperdl o

aRads @M @1 B Foar &, 91 fad anral @ fou AR Suyewl & GO @1 snawae aAnh §, o fo,
AITEE HHAR TG IR HIF GA-RITUT AT 1S |

yfawe

14, FAMEE & forg ufdwa & ufRifodl, Fdal a1 o MRl e &1 Aadll € | Ufahel & Hed BT FTLRI
B H, sHS ddl @ Sfud qed &1 FEiRer fear Sirar 21 Sfd qou Mares @ fofw w8 ddeiiel w1 T et
ST 2 | SRRV & fog, 519 ufdwa # gfenyforll enfie el € a1, s wiideiRal g1 iRed qea o1 Sfid
AR AFT S Dl 2 | 3 ARdl & RAfy 4, I qou @l 78 MRl & IR e & Fev H faumRa
fpar 1 Adar 2| Sief @l 78 Al &1 IR Hed favaw g wu 9 @etRa el fHar S daar g9gf v
MR, 10 Y€ I8 Hod WR HeHifdhd &l Il 7 |
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15. Hg FHFIA I8 WIHR B & (& Y A1 Af¥d bl gemei &l qw@d gy Ufawd & Uit Farie & U
AP 8 | o9 AR Farg F9 BIaT & AR T U A FAHAT DI qRIRg TR AT a1 S Febal g,
dr g gfawe @1 o A enfAd A S g1 o e RfeRl #, SRy 8 R S/@uRe ARy g9 I g,
ARG AT fBar ST § W ol AMG 4 STHAFAN SV Gordud @1 ard @ geFiq & arel
gcary /

T R IRfEfaat &1 ufoures

16. A FAMAA, I B UPA BT FHHAT 8, Al ARERT BT Ugard g9 A SR & AR 9 AART Heail
% foxi faavort # S avg uwe B € 59 UaR 9 ke e & foxig fdavort # gae gU 9| 39 UK,
IRV B oY fRe HRl & W RIS SfaRdt &7l & |Ar R a9 91d §, ordke dR @
UoiTd SIRIEIRT ofaRell wroell & Jolird ofRéf 99 Wi & iR oftRe drel & Yijedid SIRfara SR
S B YD RN g9 S € | Ugd Pl g9 & & URUTHREARY, 9 RN, S e | Ugel
A & WY H IR & oIy Sude §, FHMed @ 91 Al e & w0 H fIaRer & forg Suete grf | fAEifRd
R Yol & w9 4 IWfeRad A (Idhs a1 = RAAT & w9 4 61 ifaRad ufidrd |9a) iR sidke dedH
BT IR YO @ IHH & g BT iR, AARA FA & iy favort # smxfafoat # aArnfra g 2

17. I FERIEH, ‘B DI TS § FHEET 7, O U7 18 ¥ fafFfde @ grr efea sriafoal & aifdRam
IR @1 Uga T8 99 I SIRN B | Ufdhd B IPH, ARG HHE gRT AT Rd B D IF
Raal @ Hea & gerl ol 8| afe omr &1 uRemd fiteres fderdr €, a1 ofdR e IR S 81 &
Tefda & i ST fFar Srar @ ok S9a A1y 3R1 1920 # &I R & AR ufodre far Srar €1 3
UM BT RO g Tcetd 2, a1 ofcy, UoivTa oiRfarfd & ufdy sfee favam Smar 2

18. BB ATRIETAT AT—BR AT 1961 BT MMALIBAR D AFTAR TN §AD AT M IS & forg, FaiRel
HH §RT 991 ST @bl & ; SamexYl & oy, e o sRfafy ar faffems war amRfarf | siefrs 4 @'
sruferd 2 5 Rt &) ugam ve falre orafd & forg 9y et @iy | ¥t IR, 3T drAT @1 arvermait
S IJAR, BB NIRRT BT o Fwo & fo<i faarolt § GRaa fasam o waar 21 Jafd, amHaR W,
HI UG & FHAMST ¥, IR @1 ggar el & Sl i Y gated upfa & anifeaal g sud g9
T B ARMEICTAT PET SIY) & Aed H JqUarg 8 Fobdl & AR VAT AR SalRkdl wwe & fa<iyg
fIeRor # S ggA S TRE T A 2 RO @R 9 fRd HFAl & ORIy fJeRvl #§ yde g8 § o9 d@
6 TP yga B IUYE AU & AT JATUTAT BRI B Y G DI LIS BRIT © | I UG b
I FERAAl | I ST Wbl 8 TRl ARl BRI @l JRdd! § STl IRl sifead @ forg Sugad
fem @1 aruerall &1 urerd fohar war 2 | U Rerfoi 3 aiRfarerdl, SidRedl &l & fa<iia faarell 4 99 Suged
orgr oY # (SeTEReny, wHHed wHRiSTE uRfera (AfE) aerrh Sfae @ g siffalRaa & o € RNt
g NG HE © W9 H YA hAT ST € | 54 B SIREfTa $ Ugd Bl g9 @ Bl aggdhal el
BT A1 R 3R gafad oRkam Sefe fear S 7 |

WIRE WR S 8l @) Tsfaa &1 yfaures

19. FHMSAT UR I~ 81 &I [Sfdel A A & Yaigard o by T W BT UG dRal & AR AP AR
@ wY # yfoured Sugad & R oMRa & SuARfl Siiaqdld & SRM (e JaRerd uR R I & Ui Hid
JJUTHRVT AT ST & | TSfded BT UHT & BRI, U O FReddr & A1l §9d IUARM Sias b1 AT
ST R&S & | 3Afey, UHT A fAddeliel JMER WR R Al & | degdR, Urd aul | &F d & QR
TSIl BT HiHD AUTHRT SUGdd AT Il & T4 qb [ SO ol 3fafd Iugerd = &l |

20. GHMAT WR I+ Bl B [Sfdel & SUAN SHamdldl BT AFANTT PR d IRy SRl § =i
oM &

() FIAR AT FEUNT Bl GaTgHA Sfa ;

(@) IS YT & YHTd, ART # gRac 3R 3 3nfdfa gc;

() V@ Al a1 SHATRAT & R & ATl TN
(@) gfoedfeat a1 e gfovafdal g emfera erRiars!; ofk
(S)SWIRT SladIa B guTad wxa fafd®, A m® iR srdard U |
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omH 3R B d®@T &1 AfaAy

21. e &1 uPpfa § FHAHET & A H, Ifdke dr & faxii faRel # yde 81 W@ oM iR B o &
JAfeR, AR dwe & foxig faavol § ydhe &1 2 doqad] SRl & A1l SilsT Sl © | Adicdd wU 4,
Ife P13 AT REIT 81, a1 U8 S9a v faRd fear Siar 2|

22, 'HT B UG H FAWST B AW #H, ARE HN & O fFaroit § gawe g @1 o SR B orar &
arferery, =R <fde 8 a1 fSe, el ugere @ <ar 2 |

THTHTT BT FIGTT # fAfA1ee sivEifaar ar giaareT

23" SR AR, 1956 & SUHT AT B I BI, B AT Wipd FHECT B AT, AR B dTe
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70. ST8l SUSd YhH IR 3MMHRAD R Udh & YhR o gRRARRT & S~ 8Id 8, Bl SeH U1 66—68 &I
YT & AR Uhed 30 dRID J BAT & Sll UG IHH AR ATHRAD ST & Hed DI B! Bl [l & |

71. I8l gv OV 68 gIeT I9IRT fedt qar 1 gawe &) fFar war & Fyife a8l Yur svar FaEiRE
781 & al g =g &l garar aifed |

72. 9gd & g el 4 sraleae <1dcql &1 Syefad vay @ [a9g 4 UNr e6—70 4 s9lera el ar
Fo Y31 BT GhcT 3 yEHIN] & 6y dqre 4, gerH @ [avieg 4 grevr 9~ &Y wdarl &/ Ve
qriel 4, Ger &l sl Yhe wedl Jifera 78] 8, yveg [dare @1 arrg ypla @ 6l 98 ad
IV BIev [ gl Gaar &1 g&e TE1 1391 TI71 &, Bl gHC Hear qeY |

TS HUTHTAT SUGE

73. feaferfa, geqradT @ aaed Qi@ (@@ sg@8s 35) & #lger wHl 9usel @1 wuk
TIT 3V Syvapv & 9T g 3 acaeeft gaid & waryg goaiFra wy & [Afasrer avar kel
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I vgeR g1 gfagfd fed
S 9 @ & AT & fag
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gseTd @

fofa ga

917 g7 BT GEvd GUFIT Y] IV SIBINEE ST B 1y ST HTE Bl FE ST e @l e
Y G778/ 39T g7 i gradE @7 AT T8 8 SV GET Grd & R g7 9IS & e H ggT o anfed

JRET
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P IRUTAIH™Y
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. =
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IGECRSRIR] Te1 (get®)
gHE 7
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ST IHH MDD T {/B |
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IR faerd™ 89 @ et | 8 @ 37UeT Mfdd 8 (WId T URT 15) |
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gseTd T
geeid : JAfEE

TE G @] FAE B A BN P GIT AT & Gl §YB THIT & [ WEIE &/ IE Al HAE BT AT
7e &/

gecral # vl Gerdl @ ay @7 8 31 &rd H AT &) W] JrEerl # ag H ol € [ [ geanfiia srer
qarg @7 139G STgHTT IR O 6Hal & FF GRIEvl H qfvia uRReiaal @ gy Sitadl #T &
G937 & §7 TTeVTl § §9 U] UV [q=% 78] 1597 79 &/

geTal 7 [V TV ST ST I @ Ud UV B SR Had @Yd & ol 139y WY W Gl 8/ §9 §Id @l
wHUl qo1 9IS & ¥a H ygT ol ey /

geerd 1 @ aRA

T fFEIAT 3 SeuTe & [y & WA paell I aReT <dl 2 | famy |ider @1 wdl & R i faswa @
TG 9 A9 91 @& WiaR 89 drel (AT0T SISl ®1 IAE @1 AT §RT AT 98al B B DI GRT HRA BT dTal
PRAT 2| T IGHT S MR UR I8 AUANI 2 (310id 9 8F | B DI AfPH FHET ©) b aRE & o I
B |

qyd qreu9g gcHl & YR W@wy gdAE qregdar

— qreUdg gl RSl @ 1T ST Bl f[dhd & S bl aTegdl Bl S~ hRal ® |
ffaer & fov snfefe ol arad GaeAT & e ydiE
— 9 9IRS R s WU | e © (SRay URT 23) |

forspd - o UAT @ AN A g9 9IRS WR 99 Y AR PIOBIN DI QR B DI AN D FdIdH ST
@ fore Suefda Yw &1 3rfisma fdar Sirar ® (QRaT IRT 14 3R 23) |

geeid 2 - ugfia qfA—fdems &1 arg g9 araa 9 FilEa

d SERT H Y IETH YUVl Hhefl R8T & U ABIs el PRl & R Ahls & IR § Plg AT T2 8, iR
SeF B% auf 9 Y BT UGAT PR T 2| 31 AT 2005 BT Ig Id # FREd § 5 uger 9 ugfya 9y @
HHTg DI AR g9 aTel IRME a9 & FHIG 81 & HB & FAI H AN 8 SIRAT |

qyd qedg gl & URUIFE®U I adHF 910l - dreadg g i Uguul 2, R®iifd AhTs
& fog faum araa # fAfed 2 |

ffaer @ fov snféfe ol aral Sl & STer y4are iR |

frrspd : IHIS @ AT & FaH AN & ol T IUSRIT YaH B1 srfsma fhar Srar @ (@R IRT 14 31
21)

gId 3 : JUde dd &7

DIg TLH AU el &3 BT YTl HRAN & STel A DI Al & AR ScdTad DI FHNG UR el HRIA
Pl TSI AR g8 T I gd R § a1 1At & | oifom anrdl § o g &7 e ufcrerd ddd Jdl Bl
gCH 3R U 91 & BRI g8 & BT G-I B, AR &9 YRR I o1 e & foy @4 gar & | Joraa
B TRRI TR T AR IR ST bl § U] dol A8l (pTell TAT & |

yd qreUdg gl 9 S IdH IrEdl dd AR BT I g B W B ATAR AR DI
geH 3R 998 ddt &1 qd Refd # &= &1 aeadm &l I~ H_dl 2 31 I8 Ud dreddg "eHl & | o ua1 al
TR W, Il 39 afd § ggR & foU S8 araar 780 2 S {6 dd Marer & Ror 8rfl |
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ffraer @ fov snféfe o arel SaeAT @ 9Te Yde— SRR |

e : Giftm arTd @ e gl & |ar A SR HdY AR Pl B AR AR B T
@ BRI gg AT BT R B § FERT 7, 3Hb oy Iudfrd vaH o1 sifisna fear Srar @ (QRew 11 14) | TR
AN O W[ B AN H U 9T & WU H AfEfed Bl 8 | aNTd @ &9 YRR S dd FeTe @ BRI
I Bl &, P! MU Pl IRE T AW BRI & S1d el [Feblell S 2 |

geid 4 - yfaerd &1 fifa

TP |EPR GHM Bl A & [d I8 AT TeP S H By T A Bl YIary ddl 8, BTelifd VA1 R &
foq @1 faftrs arearar 781 & | S9! 39 URIEr @1 T & SN GHERI: 96 3§ |
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YRS Feel 3R AT & IR W BRI BT B 50T I A Iaa~ el 2
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16—18) |
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qd qrea9g gl & URUIFEwRY addE dreadl — Bl aedl T8l 8 R®ifh big areddg el (3 Uiiefo)
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yd q9reu9g gl & URUIFE®Y A SR — SUA 916 & AER WX JaAE el faemm

ffraer @ forg anfefe o aral GaEEAl © 9" Yde— SifRd |
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IR DI TR PR DI ANTT Dl A= T8l fBa1 TAT & Rifh, oo U= PI AR W, HEA Dl
afasy @ fhamell ¥ oRaR @1 gfoRenfid &xe & Big qradl W@ad wU ¥ fJeme T8 € 98 @ & &g oA
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gseTd °
g&elid : gded

T GIT @] HAE B GFT TE &/ FHHT FITT AG HAE B AT BN B [l FHHT o VI BYd H
WETTTT & & o7y GReTd & &/

U7 67 GRT AMALIS FdheH! &I geeid i f&am T 2|

geId 1 @ dRdY

ue ffdr fasma & F9g 31a sl &I A9 ITe V@Rl IR aRET <dT & | RSl & AR ffar fama &
TN 9§ QT auf dd I @ olb UHR A BM 7 B IR IS AT IT Gl &1 aTal HRdl & | JoId ux
DI TRRI IR 60,000 . IUEGRIT ¥pd e & | F=feRad & gebe &1 Sl 2

fiser A9 facfia auf # Scae @ aRS q@f & oy 60,000 TUAT @ UG YBH! BI AW AT WA 7 |
B 3T BT Sl & b e BT B 91T 3Tel A<y ad # fhar SR, 3R ol & gore U3 &l arig
@ a1 qY B AR BN |

U7 72 BT SUMEIT Udbed &1 U geid AArd AT AT € Siel {8 ST sfawd JEl el &l 18 Hifh sad
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T S BT 0 gfoardl 4 fdare 8, e Ry § 6 Sem o ude &1 Seciwd fhar € 3R S9H 1000
ARI JYAT BT FSIHT O 2 | I Il & FaRE AJAM Bl I IHH Bl AT Bl 8, IR
AE & URT 66, 3R 67 1 AN g fHel Wl a1 BT Udve &l ol | 71 G Udve &l T B
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[®r. 4. 17 /151 /2013—41Ud. V]

fewur — Ha M 9RT & I9UF, SRERY AR, T$—3, SuEs (i), IR 07 faHaR, 2006 H ALHLAL
734(31), ARG 07 e, 2006 TART UHIRG I T 9 AR AHIMA. 914(31) ARG 29 fEHR 2011 TART IFH
reen e fdar o |
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MINISTRY OF CORPORATE AFFAIRS
NOTIFICATION
New Delhi, the 30th March, 2016

G.S.R. 364(E).—In exercise of the powers conferred by clause (a) of sub-section (1) of section 642 of the
Companies Act, 1956 (1 of 1956) read with section 210A and sub-section (3C) of section 211 and of the said Act, the
Central Government, in consultation with National Advisory Committee on Accounting Standards, hereby makes the
following rules to amend the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, namely:—

1. Short title and commencement.- (1) These rules may be called the Companies (Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2016.

2. They shall come into force on the date of their publication in the Official Gazette.
(ii) In the Companies( Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (hereinafter referred to as the principal rules), in rule 2,-
(i) for clauses (a) and (b), the following clauses shall be substituted, namely:-

‘(a) “Accounting Standards” means the standards of accounting or any addendum thereto as specified in rule 3
of these rules;

(b) “Act” means the Companies Act, 1956 (1 of 1956) or the Companies Act, 2013 (18 of 2013), as the case may
be;’;

(ii) for clauses (d) and (e), the following clauses shall be substituted, namely:-

‘(d) “Financial Statements” means financial statements as defined in sub-section (40) of section 2 of the
Companies Act, 2013;

(e) “Enterprise” means a ‘company’ as defined in sub-section (20) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 or
as defined in section 3 of the Companies Act, 196, as the case may be;’.

3. In the principal rules, in rule 4, in sub-rule (2), the words “General Purpose” shall be omitted.

4. In the principals rules, in the ANNEXURE, under the heading “ACCOUNTING STANDARDS”, under the sub-
heading “A. General Instructions”, after paragraph 4, the following paragraph shall be inserted namely:-

5. The reference to ‘Schedule VI’ or ‘Companies Act, 1956’ shall mutatis mutandis mean ‘Schedule III’ and
‘Companies Act, 2013’, respectively.

5. In the principal rules, in the “ANNEXURE”, under the heading “ACCOUNTING STANDARDS” for “Accounting
Standard (AS) 27, the following Accounting Standard shall be substituted, namely:-

“Accounting Standard (AS) 2
Valuation of Inventories

(This Accounting Standard includes paragraphs set in bold italic type and plain type, which have equal authority.
Paragraphs in bold italic type indicate the main principles. This Accounting Standard should be read in the context of
its objective and the General Instructions contained in part A of the Annexure to the Notification.)

Objective

A primary issue in accounting for inventories is the determination of the value at which inventories are carried in the
financial statements until the related revenues are recognised. This Standard deals with the determination of such
value, including the ascertainment of cost of inventories and any write-down thereof to net realisable value.

Scope
1.  This Standard should be applied in accounting for inventories other than:

(a) work in progress arising under construction contracts, including directly related service contracts (see
Accounting Standard (AS) 7, Construction Contracts);

(b) work in progress arising in the ordinary course of business of service providers;
(c) shares, debentures and other financial instruments held as stock-in-trade; and

(d) producers’ inventories of livestock, agricultural and forest products, and mineral oils, ores and gases to
the extent that they are measured at net realisable value in accordance with well established practices in
those industries.
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2. The inventories referred to in paragraph 1 (d) are measured at net realisable value at certain stages of production.
This occurs, for example, when agricultural crops have been harvested or mineral oils, ores and gases have been
extracted and sale is assured under a forward contract or a government guarantee, or when a homogenous market
exists and there is a negligible risk of failure to sell. These inventories are excluded from the scope of this Standard.

Definitions
3. The following terms are used in this Standard with the meanings specified:
3.1 Inventories are assets:
(a) held for sale in the ordinary course of business;
(b) in the process of production for such sale; or

(c) in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed in the production process or in the rendering of
services.

3.2 Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

4. Inventories encompass goods purchased and held for resale, for example, merchandise purchased by a retailer
and held for resale, computer software held for resale, or land and other property held for resale. Inventories also
encompass finished goods produced, or work in progress being produced, by the enterprise and include materials,
maintenance supplies, consumables and loose tools awaiting use in the production process. Inventories do not include
spare parts, servicing equipment and standby equipment which meet the definition of property, plant and equipment as
per AS 10, Property, Plant and Equipment. Such items are accounted for in accordance with Accounting Standard
(AS) 10, Property, Plant and Equipment.

Measurement of Inventories
5. Inventories should be valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost of Inventories

6. The cost of inventories should comprise all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Costs of Purchase

7. The costs of purchase consist of the purchase price including duties and taxes (other than those subsequently
recoverable by the enterprise from the taxing authorities), freight inwards and other expenditure directly attributable
to the acquisition. Trade discounts, rebates, duty drawbacks and other similar items are deducted in determining the
costs of purchase.

Costs of Conversion

8. The costs of conversion of inventories include costs directly related to the units of production, such as direct
labour. They also include a systematic allocation of fixed and variable production overheads that are incurred in
converting materials into finished goods. Fixed production overheads are those indirect costs of production that
remain relatively constant regardless of the volume of production, such as depreciation and maintenance of factory
buildings and the cost of factory management and administration. Variable production overheads are those indirect
costs of production that vary directly, or nearly directly, with the volume of production, such as indirect materials and
indirect labour.

9. The allocation of fixed production overheads for the purpose of their inclusion in the costs of conversion is based
on the normal capacity of the production facilities. Normal capacity is the production expected to be achieved on an
average over a number of periods or seasons under normal circumstances, taking into account the loss of capacity
resulting from planned maintenance. The actual level of production may be used if it approximates normal capacity.
The amount of fixed production overheads allocated to each unit of production is not increased as a consequence of
low production or idle plant. Un allocated overheads are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred. In periods of abnormally high production, the amount of fixed production overheads allocated to each unit
of production is decreased so that inventories are not measured above cost. Variable production overheads are
assigned to each unit of production on the basis of the actual use of the production facilities.

10. A production process may result in more than one product being produced simultaneously. This is the case, for
example, when joint products are produced or when there is a main product and a by-product. When the costs of
conversion of each product are not separately identifiable, they are allocated between the products on a rational and
consistent basis. The allocation may be based, for example, on the relative sales value of each product either at the
stage in the production process when the products become separately identifiable, or at the completion of production.
Most by-products as well as scrap or waste materials, by their nature, are immaterial. When this is the case, they are
often measured at net realisable value and this value is deducted from the cost of the main product. As a result, the
carrying amount of the main product is not materially different from its cost.
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Other Costs

11. Other costs are included in the cost of inventories only to the extent that they are incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. For example, it may be appropriate to include overheads other than
production overheads or the costs of designing products for specific customers in the cost of inventories.

12. Interest and other borrowing costs are usually considered as not relating to bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition and are, therefore, usually not included in the cost of inventories.

Exclusions from the Cost of Inventories

13. In determining the cost of inventories in accordance with paragraph 6, it is appropriate to exclude certain costs
and recognise them as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. Examples of such costs are:

(a) abnormal amounts of wasted materials, labour, or other production costs;
(b) storage costs, unless those costs are necessary in the production process prior to a further production stage;

(c) administrative overheads that do not contribute to bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition; and

(d) selling and distribution costs.
Cost Formulas

14. The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services produced and
segregated for specific projects should be assigned by specific identification of their individual costs.

15. Specific identification of cost means that specific costs are attributed to identified items of inventory. This is an
appropriate treatment for items that are segregated for a specific project, regardless of whether they have been
purchased or produced. However, when there are large numbers of items of inventory which are ordinarily
interchangeable, specific identification of costs is inappropriate since, in such circumstances, an enterprise could
obtain predetermined effects on the net profit or loss for the period by selecting a particular method of ascertaining the
items that remain in inventories.

16. The cost of inventories, other than those dealt with in paragraph 14, should be assigned by using the first-in,
first-out (FIFO), or weighted average cost formula. The formula used should reflect the fairest possible
approximation to the cost incurred in bringing the items of inventory to their present location and condition.

17. A variety of cost formulas is used to determine the cost of inventories other than those for which specific
identification of individual costs is appropriate. The formula used in determining the cost of an item of inventory
needs to be selected with a view to providing the fairest possible approximation to the cost incurred in bringing the
item to its present location and condition. The FIFO formula assumes that the items of inventory which were
purchased or produced first are consumed or sold first, and consequently the items remaining in inventory at the end
of the period are those most recently purchased or produced. Under the weighted average cost formula, the cost of
each item is determined from the weighted average of the cost of similar items at the beginning of a period and the
cost of similar items purchased or produced during the period. The average may be calculated on a periodic basis, or
as each additional shipment is received, depending upon the circumstances of the enterprise.

Techniques for the Measurement of Cost

18. Techniques for the measurement of the cost of inventories, such as the standard cost method or the retail method,
may be used for convenience if the results approximate the actual cost. Standard costs take into account normal levels
of consumption of materials and supplies, labour, efficiency and capacity utilisation. They are regularly reviewed and,
if necessary, revised in the light of current conditions.

19. The retail method is often used in the retail trade for measuring inventories of large numbers of rapidly changing
items that have similar margins and for which it is impracticable to use other costing methods. The cost of the
inventory is determined by reducing from the sales value of the inventory the appropriate percentage gross margin.
The percentage used takes into consideration inventory which has been marked down to below its original selling
price. An average percentage for each retail department is often used.

Net Realisable Value

20. The cost of inventories may not be recoverable if those inventories are damaged, if they have become wholly or
partially obsolete, or if their selling prices have declined. The cost of inventories may also not be recoverable if the
estimated costs of completion or the estimated costs necessary to make the sale have increased. The practice of
writing down inventories below cost to net realisable value is consistent with the view that assets should not be
carried in excess of amounts expected to be realised from their sale or use.
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21. Inventories are usually written down to net realisable value on an item-by-item basis. In some circumstances,
however, it may be appropriate to group similar or related items. This may be the case with items of inventory relating
to the same product line that have similar purposes or end uses and are produced and marketed in the same
geographical area and cannot be practicably evaluated separately from other items in that product line. It is not
appropriate to write down inventories based on a classification of inventory, for example, finished goods, or all the
inventories in a particular business segment.

22. Estimates of net realisable value are based on the most reliable evidence available at the time the estimates are
made as to the amount the inventories are expected to realise. These estimates take into consideration fluctuations of
price or cost directly relating to events occurring after the balance sheet date to the extent that such events confirm the
conditions existing at the balance sheet date.

23. Estimates of net realisable value also take into consideration the purpose for which the inventory is held. For
example, the net realisable value of the quantity of inventory held to satisfy firm sales or service contracts is based on
the contract price. If the sales contracts are for less than the inventory quantities held, the net realisable value of the
excess inventory is based on general selling prices. Contingent losses on firm sales contracts in excess of inventory
quantities held and contingent losses on firm purchase contracts are dealt with in accordance with the principles
enunciated in Accounting Standard (AS) 4, Contingencies and Events Occurring After the Balance Sheet Date.

24. Materials and other supplies held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the
finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. However, when there
has been a decline in the price of materials and it is estimated that the cost of the finished products will exceed net
realisable value, the materials are written down to net realisable value. In such circumstances, the replacement cost of
the materials may be the best available measure of their net realisable value.

25. An assessment is made of net realisable value as at each balance sheet date.

Disclosure

26. The financial statements should disclose:
(a) the accounting policies adopted in measuring inventories, including the cost formula used; and
(b) the total carrying amount of inventories and its classification appropriate to the enterprise.

27. Information about the carrying amounts held in different classifications of inventories and the extent of the
changes in these assets is useful to financial statement users. Common classifications of inventories are:

(a) Raw materials and components

(b) Work-in-progress

(c) Finished goods

(d) Stock-in-trade (in respect of goods acquired for trading)
(e) Stores and spares

(f) Loose tools

(g) Others (specify nature),”.

6. In the principal rules, in the “ANNEXURE”, under the heading “ACCOUNTING STANDARDS” for “Accounting
Standard (AS) 47, the following Accounting Standard shall be substituted, namely:-

“Accounting Standards (AS) 4"
Contingencies and Events Occurring After the Balance Sheet Date

(This Accounting Standard includes paragraphs set in bold italic type and plain type, which have equal
authority. Paragraphs in bold italic type indicate the main principles. This Accounting Standard should be read in the
context of the General Instructions contained in part A of the Annexure to the Notification.)

Introduction
1. This Standard deals with the treatment in financial statements of
(a) contingencies, and

(b) events occurring after the balance sheet date.

* Al paragraphs of this Standard that deal with contingencies are applicable only to the extent not covered by other Accounting Standards
prescribed by the Central Government. For example, the impairment of financial assets such as impairment of receivables (commonly known as
provision for bad and doubtful debts) is governed by this Standard.
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2. The following subjects, which may result in contingencies, are excluded from the scope of this Standard in view
of special considerations applicable to them:

(a) liabilities of life assurance and general insurance enterprises arising from policies issued;
(b) obligations under retirement benefit plans; and
(c) commitments arising from long-term lease contracts.

Definitions

3. The following terms are used in this Standard with the meanings specified:

3.1 A contingency is a condition or situation, the ultimate outcome of which, gain or loss, will be known or
determined only on the occurrence, or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain future events.

3.2 Events occurring after the balance sheet date are those significant events, both favourable and unfavourable,
that occur between the balance sheet date and the date on which the financial statements are approved by the
Board of Directors in the case of a company, and, by the corresponding approving authority in the case of any
other entity.

Two types of events can be identified:
(a) those which provide further evidence of conditions that existed at the balance sheet date; and
(b) those which are indicative of conditions that arose subsequent to the balance sheet date.
Explanation
4. Contingencies

4.1 The term “contingencies” used in this Standard is restricted to conditions or situations at the balance sheet date,
the financial effect of which is to be determined by future events which may or may not occur.

4.2 Estimates are required for determining the amounts to be stated in the financial statements for many on-going
and recurring activities of an enterprise. One must, however, distinguish between an event which is certain and one
which is uncertain. The fact that an estimate is involved does not, of itself, create the type of uncertainty which
characterises a contingency. For example, the fact that estimates of useful life are used to determine depreciation, does
not make depreciation a contingency; the eventual expiry of the useful life of the asset is not uncertain. Also, amounts
owed for services received are not contingencies as defined in paragraph 3.1, even though the amounts may have been
estimated, as there is nothing uncertain about the fact that these obligations have been incurred.

4.3 The uncertainty relating to future events can be expressed by a range of outcomes. This range may be presented
as quantified probabilities, but in most circumstances, this suggests a level of precision that is not supported by the
available information. The possible outcomes can, therefore, usually be generally described except where reasonable
quantification is practicable.

4.4 The estimates of the outcome and of the financial effect of contingencies are determined by the judgement of the
management of the enterprise. This judgement is based on consideration of information available up to the date on
which the financial statements are approved and will include a review of events occurring after the balance sheet date,
supplemented by experience of similar transactions and, in some cases, reports from independent experts.

5. Accounting Treatment of Contingent Losses

5.1 The accounting treatment of a contingent loss is determined by the expected outcome of the contingency. If it is
likely that a contingency will result in a loss to the enterprise, then it is prudent to provide for that loss in the financial
statements.

5.2 The estimation of the amount of a contingent loss to be provided for in the financial statements may be based on
information referred to in paragraph 4.4.

5.3 1If there is conflicting or insufficient evidence for estimating the amount of a contingent loss, then disclosure is
made of the existence and nature of the contingency.

5.4 A potential loss to an enterprise may be reduced or avoided because a contingent liability is matched by a related
counter-claim or claim against a third party. In such cases, the amount of the provision is determined after taking into
account the probable recovery under the claim if no significant uncertainty as to its measurability or collectability
exists. Suitable disclosure regarding the nature and gross amount of the contingent liability is also made.

5.5 The existence and amount of guarantees, obligations arising from discounted bills of exchange and similar
obligations undertaken by an enterprise are generally disclosed in financial statements by way of note, even though
the possibility that a loss to the enterprise will occur, is remote.
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5.6 Provisions for contingencies are not made in respect of general or unspecified business risks since they do
not relate to conditions or situations existing at the balance sheet date.

6. Accounting Treatment of Contingent Gains

Contingent gains are not recognised in financial statements since their recognition may result in the recognition
of revenue which may never be realised. However, when the realisation of a gain is virtually certain, then such gain is
not a contingency and accounting for the gain is appropriate.

7. Determination of the Amounts at which Contingencies are included in Financial Statements

7.1 The amount at which a contingency is stated in the financial statements is based on the information which is
available at the date on which the financial statements are approved. Events occurring after the balance sheet date that
indicate that an asset may have been impaired, or that a liability may have existed, at the balance sheet date are,
therefore, taken into account in identifying contingencies and in determining the amounts at which such contingencies
are included in financial statements.

7.2 In some cases, each contingency can be separately identified, and the special circumstances of each situation
considered in the determination of the amount of the contingency. A substantial legal claim against the enterprise may
represent such a contingency. Among the factors taken into account by management in evaluating such a contingency
are the progress of the claim at the date on which the financial statements are approved, the opinions, wherever
necessary, of legal experts or other advisers, the experience of the enterprise in similar cases and the experience of
other enterprises in similar situations.

7.3 If the uncertainties which created a contingency in respect of an individual transaction are common to a large
number of similar transactions, then the amount of the contingency need not be individually determined, but may be
based on the group of similar transactions. An example of such contingencies may be the estimated uncollectable
portion of accounts receivable. Another example of such contingencies may be the warranties for products sold. These
costs are usually incurred frequently and experience provides a means by which the amount of the liability or loss can
be estimated with reasonable precision although the particular transactions that may result in a liability or a loss are
not identified. Provision for these costs results in their recognition in the same accounting period in which the related
transactions took place.

8. Events Occurring after the Balance Sheet Date

8.1 Events which occur between the balance sheet date and the date on which the financial statements are approved,
may indicate the need for adjustments to assets and liabilities as at the balance sheet date or may require disclosure.

8.2 Adjustments to assets and liabilities are required for events occurring after the balance sheet date that provide
additional information materially affecting the determination of the amounts relating to conditions existing at the
balance sheet date. For example, an adjustment may be made for a loss on a trade receivable account which is
confirmed by the insolvency of a customer which occurs after the balance sheet date.

8.3 Adjustments to assets and liabilities are not appropriate for events occurring after the balance sheet date, if such
events do not relate to conditions existing at the balance sheet date. An example is the decline in market value of
investments between the balance sheet date and the date on which the financial statements are approved. Ordinary
fluctuations in market values do not normally relate to the condition of the investments at the balance sheet date, but
reflect circumstances which have occurred in the following period.

8.4 Events occurring after the balance sheet date which do not affect the figures stated in the financial statements
would not normally require disclosure in the financial statements although they may be of such significance that they
may require a disclosure in the report of the approving authority to enable users of financial statements to make proper
evaluations and decisions.

8.5 There are events which, although they take place after the balance sheet date, are sometimes reflected in the
financial statements because of statutory requirements or because of their special nature. For example, if dividends are
declared after the balance sheet date but before the financial statements are approved for issue, the dividends are not
recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date because no obligation exists at that time unless a statute requires
otherwise. Such dividends are disclosed in the notes.

8.6 Events occurring after the balance sheet date may indicate that the enterprise ceases to be a going concern. A
deterioration in operating results and financial position, or unusual changes affecting the existence or substratum of
the enterprise after the balance sheet date (e.g., destruction of a major production plant by a fire after the balance sheet
date) may indicate a need to consider whether it is proper to use the fundamental accounting assumption of going
concern in the preparation of the financial statements.
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9. Disclosure

9.1 The disclosure requirements herein referred to apply only in respect of those contingencies or events which affect
the financial position to a material extent.

9.2 If a contingent loss is not provided for, its nature and an estimate of its financial effect are generally disclosed by
way of note unless the possibility of a loss is remote (other than the circumstances mentioned in paragraph 5.5). If a
reliable estimate of the financial effect cannot be made, this fact is disclosed.
9.3 When the events occurring after the balance sheet date are disclosed in the report of the approving authority, the
information given comprises the nature of the events and an estimate of their financial effects or a statement that such
an estimate cannot be made.

Main Principles
Contingencies

10. The amount of a contingent loss should be provided for by a charge in the statement of profit and loss if:

(a) it is probable that future events will confirm that, after taking into account any related probable recovery,
an asset has been impaired or a liability has been incurred as at the balance sheet date, and

(b) areasonable estimate of the amount of the resulting loss can be made.

11. The existence of a contingent loss should be disclosed in the financial statements if either of the conditions in
paragraph 10 is not met, unless the possibility of a loss is remote.

12. Contingent gains should not be recognised in the financial statements.

Events Occurring after the Balance Sheet Date

13. Assets and liabilities should be adjusted for events occurring after the balance sheet date that provide
additional evidence to assist the estimation of amounts relating to conditions existing at the balance sheet date or
that indicate that the fundamental accounting assumption of going concern (i.e., the continuance of existence or
substratum of the enterprise) is not appropriate.

14. If an enterprise declares dividends to shareholders after the balance sheet date, the enterprise should not
recognise those dividends as a liability at the balance sheet date unless a statute requires otherwise. Such dividends

should be disclosed in notes.

15. Disclosure should be made in the report of the approving authority of those events occurring after the balance
sheet date that represent material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the enterprise.

Disclosure

16. If disclosure of contingencies is required by paragraph 11 of this Standard, the following information should
be provided:

(a) the nature of the contingency;
(b) the uncertainties which may affect the future outcome;
(c) an estimate of the financial effect, or a statement that such an estimate cannot be made.

17. If disclosure of events occurring after the balance sheet date in the report of the approving authority is
required by paragraph 15 of this Standard, the following information should be provided:

(a) the nature of the event;
(b) an estimate of the financial effect, or a statement that such an estimate cannot be made”’.

7. In the principals rules, in the “ANNEXURE”, under the heading “ACCOUNTING STANDARDS”, Accounting
Standard (AS) 6 shall be omitted.
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8. In the principal rules, in the “ANNEXURE”, under the heading “ACCOUNTING STANDARDS”, for Accounting
Standard (AS) 10, the following Accounting Standard shall be substituted, namely:-

“Accounting Standard (AS) 10

Property, Plant and Equipment

(This Accounting Standard includes paragraphs set in bold italic type and plain type, which have equal authority.
Paragraphs in bold italic type indicate the main principles. This Accounting Standard should be read in the context of
the General Instructions contained in part A of the Annexure to the Notification.)

Objective

1. The objective of this Standard is to prescribe the accounting treatment for property, plant and equipment so
that users of the financial statements can discern information about investment made by an enterprise in its
property, plant and equipment and the changes in such investment. The principal issues in accounting for
property, plant and equipment are the recognition of the assets, the determination of their carrying amounts
and the depreciation charges and impairment losses to be recognised in relation to them.

Scope

2. This Standard should be applied in accounting for property, plant and equipment except when another
Accounting Standard requires or permits a different accounting treatment.

3. This Standard does not apply to:

(a) biological assets related to agricultural activity other than bearer plants. This Standard applies to bearer
plants but it does not apply to the produce on bearer plants; and

(b) wasting assets including mineral rights, expenditure on the exploration for and extraction of minerals, oil,
natural gas and similar non-regenerative resources.

However, this Standard applies to property, plant and equipment used to develop or maintain the assets described in
(a) and (b) above.

4. Other Accounting Standards may require recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment based on an
approach different from that in this Standard. For example, AS 19, Leases, requires an enterprise to evaluate
its recognition of an item of leased property, plant and equipment on the basis of the transfer of risks and
rewards. However, in such cases other aspects of the accounting treatment for these assets, including
depreciation, are prescribed by this Standard.

5. Investment property, as defined in AS 13, Accounting for Investments, should be accounted for only in
accordance with the cost model prescribed in this standard.

Definitions
6. The following terms are used in this Standard with the meanings specified:

Agricultural Activity is the management by an enterprise of the biological transformation and harvest of
biological assets for sale or for conversion into agricultural produce or into additional biological assets.

Agricultural Produce is the harvested product of biological assets of the enterprise.

Bearer plant is a plant that

(a) is used in the production or supply of agricultural produce;
(b) is expected to bear produce for more than a period of twelve months; and
(c) has a remote likelihood of being sold as agricultural produce, except for incidental scrap sales.
The following are not bearer plants:
(i)  plants cultivated to be harvested as agricultural produce (for example, trees grown for use as lumber);

(i) plants cultivated to produce agricultural produce when there is more than a remote likelihood that the
entity will also harvest and sell the plant as agricultural produce, other than as incidental scrap sales (for
example, trees that are cultivated both for their fruit and their lumber); and

(iii)) annual crops (for example, maize and wheat).

When bearer plants are no longer used to bear produce they might be cut down and sold as scrap, for
example, for use as firewood. Such incidental scrap sales would not prevent the plant from satisfying the
definition of a bearer plant.
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Biological Asset is a living animal’ or plant.

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised after deducting any accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses.

Cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the other consideration given to
acquire an asset at the time of its acquisition or construction or, where applicable, the amount attributed to
that asset when initially recognised in accordance with the specific requirements of other Accounting
Standards.

Depreciable amount is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its residual value.

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.

Enterprise -specific value is the present value of the cash flows an enterprise expects to arise from the
continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life or expects to incur when settling a
liability.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable, willing parties in an
arm’s length transaction.

Gross carrying amount of an asset is its cost or other amount substituted for the cost in the books of account,
without making any deduction for accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

An impairment loss is the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Property, plant and equipment are tangible items that:

(a) are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for rental to others, or for
administrative purposes; and

(b) are expected to be used during more than a period of twelve months.

Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and its value in use.

The residual value of an asset is the estimated amount that an enterprise would currently obtain from
disposal of the asset, after deducting the estimated costs of disposal, if the asset were already of the age
and in the condition expected at the end of its useful life.

Useful life is:

(a) the period over which an asset is expected to be available for use by an enterprise ; or

(b)  the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by an enterprise.

Recognition

7.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment should be recognised as an asset if, and only if:
(a) it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the enterprise; and
(b)  the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment are recognised in accordance with this
Standard when they meet the definition of property, plant and equipment. Otherwise, such items are classified as
inventory.

This Standard does not prescribe the unit of measure for recognition, i.e., what constitutes an item of property,
plant and equipment. Thus, judgement is required in applying the recognition criteria to specific circumstances of
an enterprise. An example of a ‘unit of measure’ can be a ‘project’ of construction of a manufacturing plant
rather than individual assets comprising the project in appropriate cases for the purpose of capitalisation of
expenditure incurred during construction period. Similarly, it may be appropriate to aggregate individually
insignificant items, such as moulds, tools and dies and to apply the criteria to the aggregate value. An enterprise
may decide to expense an item which could otherwise have been included as property, plant and equipment,
because the amount of the expenditure is not material.

'An Accounting Standard on Agriculture is under formulation, which will, inter alia, cover accounting for livestock. Till the time, the Accounting
Standard on Agriculture is issued, accounting for livestock meeting_the definition of Property, Plant and Equipment, will be covered as per AS 10
(Revised), Property, Plant and Equipment.
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10. An enterprise evaluates under this recognition principle all its costs on property, plant and equipment at the time
they are incurred. These costs include costs incurred:

(a)  initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment; and
(b)  subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it.
Initial Costs

11. The definition of ‘property, plant and equipment’ covers tangible items which are held for use or for
administrative purposes. The term ‘administrative purposes’ has been used in wider sense to include all business
purposes other than production or supply of goods or services or for rental for others. Thus, property, plant and
equipment would include assets used for selling and distribution, finance and accounting, personnel and other
functions of an enterprise. Items of property, plant and equipment may also be acquired for safety or
environmental reasons. The acquisition of such property, plant and equipment, although not directly increasing
the future economic benefits of any particular existing item of property, plant and equipment, may be necessary
for an enterprise to obtain the future economic benefits from its other assets. Such items of property, plant and
equipment qualify for recognition as assets because they enable an enterprise to derive future economic benefits
from related assets in excess of what could be derived had those items not been acquired. For example, a chemical
manufacturer may install new chemical handling processes to comply with environmental requirements for the
production and storage of dangerous chemicals; related plant enhancements are recognised as an asset because
without them the enterprise is unable to manufacture and sell chemicals. The resulting carrying amount of such an
asset and related assets is reviewed for impairment in accordance with AS 28, Impairment of Assets.

Subsequent Costs

12. Under the recognition principle in paragraph 7, an enterprise does not recognise in the carrying amount of an item
of property, plant and equipment the costs of the day-to-day servicing of the item. Rather, these costs are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. Costs of day-to-day servicing are primarily the costs of
labour and consumables, and may include the cost of small parts. The purpose of such expenditures is often
described as for the ‘repairs and maintenance’ of the item of property, plant and equipment.

13. Parts of some items of property, plant and equipment may require replacement at regular intervals. For example, a
furnace may require relining after a specified number of hours of use, or aircraft interiors such as seats and
galleys may require replacement several times during the life of the airframe. Similarly, major parts of conveyor
system, such as, conveyor belts, wire ropes, etc., may require replacement several times during the life of the
conveyor system. Items of property, plant and equipment may also be acquired to make a less frequently
recurring replacement, such as replacing the interior walls of a building, or to make a non-recurring replacement.
Under the recognition principle in paragraph 7, an enterprise recognises in the carrying amount of an item of
property, plant and equipment the cost of replacing part of such an item when that cost is incurred if the
recognition criteria are met. The carrying amount of those parts that are replaced is derecognised in accordance
with the derecognition provisions of this Standard (see paragraphs 74-80).

14. A condition of continuing to operate an item of property, plant and equipment (for example, an aircraft) may be
performing regular major inspections for faults regardless of whether parts of the item are replaced. When each
major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the item of property, plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. Any remaining carrying amount of the cost of
the previous inspection (as distinct from physical parts) is derecognised.

15. The derecognition of the carrying amount as stated in paragraphs 13-14 occurs regardless of whether the cost of
the previous part / inspection was identified in the transaction in which the item was acquired or constructed. If it
is not practicable for an enterprise to determine the carrying amount of the replaced part/ inspection, it may use
the cost of the replacement or the estimated cost of a future similar inspection as an indication of what the cost of
the replaced part/ existing inspection component was when the item was acquired or constructed.

Measurement at Recognition

16. An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies for recognition as an asset should be measured at its
cost.

Elements of Cost
17. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises:

(a) its purchase price, including import duties and non —refundable purchase taxes,, after deducting
trade discounts and rebates.

(b) any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

() the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling, removing the item and restoring the site on which it
is located, referred to as ‘decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities’, the obligation for



70

THE GAZETTE OF INDIA : EXTRAORDINARY [PART ITI—SEC. 3(i)]

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

which an enterprise incurs either when the item is acquired or as a consequence of having used the
item during a particular period for purposes other than to produce inventories during that period.

Examples of directly attributable costs are:

(a) costs of employee benefits (as defined in AS 15, Employee Benefits) arising directly from the
construction or acquisition of the item of property, plant and equipment;

(b) costs of site preparation;

© initial delivery and handling costs;

(d) installation and assembly costs;

(e) costs of testing whether the asset is functioning properly, after deducting the net proceeds from

selling any items produced while bringing the asset to that location and condition (such as samples
produced when testing equipment); and

®) professional fees.

An enterprise applies AS 2, Valuation of Inventories, to the costs of obligations for dismantling, removing and
restoring the site on which an item is located that are incurred during a particular period as a consequence of
having used the item to produce inventories during that period. The obligations for costs accounted for in
accordance with AS 2 or AS 10 are recognised and measured in accordance with AS 29, Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

Examples of costs that are not costs of an item of property, plant and equipment are:

(a) costs of opening a new facility or business, such as, inauguration costs;

(b) costs of introducing a new product or service( including costs of advertising and promotional
activities);

(©) costs of conducting business in a new location or with a new class of customer (including costs of

staff training); and
(d) administration and other general overhead costs.

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is
in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Therefore, costs incurred in using or redeploying an item are not included in the carrying amount of that item. For
example, the following costs are not included in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment:

(a) costs incurred while an item capable of operating in the manner intended by management has yet to
be brought into use or is operated at less than full capacity;

(b) initial operating losses, such as those incurred while demand for the output of an item builds up; and
© costs of relocating or reorganising part or all of the operations of an enterprise.

Some operations occur in connection with the construction or development of an item of property, plant and
equipment, but are not necessary to bring the item to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. These incidental operations may occur before or during the
construction or development activities. For example, income may be earned through using a building site as a car
park until construction starts. Because incidental operations are not necessary to bring an item to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management, the income and
related expenses of incidental operations are recognised in the statement of profit and loss and included in their
respective classifications of income and expense.

The cost of a self-constructed asset is determined using the same principles as for an acquired asset. If an
enterprise makes similar assets for sale in the normal course of business, the cost of the asset is usually the same
as the cost of constructing an asset for sale (see AS 2). Therefore, any internal profits are eliminated in arriving at
such costs. Similarly, the cost of abnormal amounts of wasted material, labour, or other resources incurred in self-
constructing an asset is not included in the cost of the asset. AS 16, Borrowing Costs, establishes criteria for the
recognition of interest as a component of the carrying amount of a self-constructed item of property, plant and
equipment.

Bearer plants are accounted for in the same way as self-constructed items of property, plant and equipment before
they are in the location and condition necessary to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Consequently, references to ‘construction’ in this Standard should be read as covering activities that
are necessary to cultivate the bearer plants before they are in the location and condition necessary to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management.
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Measurement of Cost

25.

26.

217.

28.

29.

30.

31.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the cash price equivalent at the recognition date. If
payment is deferred beyond normal credit terms, the difference between the cash price equivalent and the total
payment is recognised as interest over the period of credit unless such interest is capitalised in accordance with
AS 16.

One or more items of property, plant and equipment may be acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or
assets, or a combination of monetary and non-monetary assets. The following discussion refers simply to an
exchange of one non-monetary asset for another, but it also applies to all exchanges described in the preceding
sentence. The cost of such an item of property, plant and equipment is measured at fair value unless (a) the
exchange transaction lacks commercial substance or (b) the fair value of neither the asset(s) received nor the
asset(s) given up is reliably measurable. The acquired item(s) is/are measured in this manner even if an enterprise
cannot immediately derecognise the asset given up. If the acquired item(s) is/are not measured at fair value,
its/their cost is measured at the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

An enterprise determines whether an exchange transaction has commercial substance by considering the extent to
which its future cash flows are expected to change as a result of the transaction. An exchange transaction has
commercial substance if:

(a) the configuration (risk, timing and amount) of the cash flows of the asset received differs from the
configuration of the cash flows of the asset transferred; or

(b) the enterprise-specific value of the portion of the operations of the enterprise affected by the transaction
changes as a result of the exchange;

(c) and the difference in (a) or (b) is significant relative to the fair value of the assets exchanged.

For the purpose of determining whether an exchange transaction has commercial substance, the enterprise -
specific value of the portion of operations of the enterprise affected by the transaction should reflect post-tax cash
flows. In certain cases, the result of these analyses may be clear without an enterprise having to perform detailed
calculations.

The fair value of an asset is reliably measurable if (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair value
measurements is not significant for that asset or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range can
be reasonably assessed and used when measuring fair value. If an enterprise is able to measure reliably the fair
value of either the asset received or the asset given up, then the fair value of the asset given up is used to measure
the cost of the asset received unless the fair value of the asset received is more clearly evident.

Where several items of property, plant and equipment are purchased for a consolidated price, the consideration is
apportioned to the various items on the basis of their respective fair values at the date of acquisition. In case the
fair values of the items acquired cannot be measured reliably, these values are estimated on a fair basis as
determined by competent valuers.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment held by a lessee under a finance lease is determined in
accordance with AS 19, Leases.

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment may be reduced by government grants in
accordance with AS 12, Accounting for Government Grants.

Measurement after Recognition

32. An enterprise should choose either the cost model in paragraph 33 or the revaluation model in paragraph 34

as its accounting policy and should apply that policy to an entire class of property, plant and equipment.

Cost Model

33. After recognition as an asset, an item of property, plant and equipment should be carried at its cost less any

accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Revaluation Model

34. After recognition as an asset, an item of property, plant and equipment whose fair value can be measured

35.

reliably should be carried at a revalued amount, being its fair value at the date of the revaluation less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations should be
made with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which
would be determined using fair value at the balance sheet date.

The fair value of items of property, plant and equipment is usually determined from market-based evidence by
appraisal that is normally undertaken by professionally qualified valuers.
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36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44.

If there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialised nature of the item of property, plant
and equipment and the item is rarely sold, except as part of a continuing business, an enterprise may need to
estimate fair value using an income approach (for example, based on discounted cash flow projections) or a
depreciated replacement cost approach which aims at making a realistic estimate of the current cost of acquiring
or constructing an item that has the same service potential as the existing item.

The frequency of revaluations depends upon the changes in fair values of the items of property, plant and
equipment being revalued. When the fair value of a revalued asset differs materially from its carrying amount, a
further revaluation is required. Some items of property, plant and equipment experience significant and volatile
changes in fair value, thus necessitating annual revaluation. Such frequent revaluations are unnecessary for items
of property, plant and equipment with only insignificant changes in fair value. Instead, it may be necessary to
revalue the item only every three or five years.

When an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, the carrying amount of that asset is adjusted to the
revalued amount. At the date of the revaluation, the asset is treated in one of the following ways:

(a) the gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner that is consistent with the revaluation of the
carrying amount of the asset. For example, the gross carrying amount may be restated by reference
to observable market data or it may be restated proportionately to the change in the carrying amount.
The accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is adjusted to equal the difference
between the gross carrying amount and the carrying amount of the asset after taking into account
accumulated impairment losses; or

(b)  the accumulated depreciation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset.

The amount of the adjustment of accumulated depreciation forms part of the increase or decrease in carrying
amount that is accounted for in accordance with paragraphs 42 and 43.

If an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, the entire class of property, plant and equipment to
which that asset belongs should be revalued.

A class of property, plant and equipment is a grouping of assets of a similar nature and use in operations of an
enterprise. The following are examples of separate classes:

(a) land;

(b) land and buildings;
(c) machinery;

(d) ships;

(e) aircraft;

® motor vehicles;

(2) furniture and fixtures;
(h) office equipment;and
@) bearer plants.

The items within a class of property, plant and equipment are revalued simultaneously to avoid selective
revaluation of assets and the reporting of amounts in the financial statements that are a mixture of costs and
values as at different dates. However, a class of assets may be revalued on a rolling basis provided revaluation of
the class of assets is completed within a short period and provided the revaluations are kept up to date.

An increase in the carrying amount of an asset arising on revaluation should be credited directly to owners’
interests under the heading of revaluation surplus However, the increase should be recognised in the statement
of profit and loss to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

A decrease in the carrying amount of an asset arising on revaluation should be charged to the statement of
profit and loss. However, the decrease should be debited directly to owners’ interests under the heading of
revaluation surplus to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that
asset.

The revaluation surplus included in owners’ interests in respect of an item of property, plant and equipment may
be transferred to the revenue reserves when the asset is derecognised. This may involve transferring the whole of
the surplus when the asset is retired or disposed of. However, some of the surplus may be transferred as the asset
is used by an enterprise. In such a case, the amount of the surplus transferred would be the difference between
depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset and depreciation based on its original cost.
Transfers from revaluation surplus to the revenue reserves are not made through the statement of profit and loss.
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Depreciation

45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

51.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost
of the item should be depreciated separately.

An enterprise allocates the amount initially recognised in respect of an item of property, plant and equipment to
its significant parts and depreciates each such part separately. For example, it may be appropriate to depreciate
separately the airframe and engines of an aircraft, whether owned or subject to a finance lease.

A significant part of an item of property, plant and equipment may have a useful life and a depreciation method
that are the same as the useful life and the depreciation method of another significant part of that same item. Such
parts may be grouped in determining the depreciation charge.

To the extent that an enterprise depreciates separately some parts of an item of property, plant and equipment, it
also depreciates separately the remainder of the item. The remainder consists of the parts of the item that are
individually not significant. If an enterprise has varying expectations for these parts, approximation techniques
may be necessary to depreciate the remainder in a manner that faithfully represents the consumption pattern
and/or useful life of its parts.

An enterprise may choose to depreciate separately the parts of an item that do not have a cost that is significant in
relation to the total cost of the item.

The depreciation charge for each period should be recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless it is
included in the carrying amount of another asset.

The depreciation charge for a period is usually recognised in the statement of profit and loss. However,
sometimes, the future economic benefits embodied in an asset are absorbed in producing other assets. In this case,
the depreciation charge constitutes part of the cost of the other asset and is included in its carrying amount. For
example, the depreciation of manufacturing plant and equipment is included in the costs of conversion of
inventories (see AS 2). Similarly, the depreciation of property, plant and equipment used for development
activities may be included in the cost of an intangible asset recognised in accordance with AS 26, Intangible
Assets.

Depreciable Amount and Depreciation Period

52.
53.

54.

55.
56.

57.

58.

The depreciable amount of an asset should be allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life.

The residual value and the useful life of an asset should be reviewed at least at each financial year-end and, if
expectations differ from previous estimates, the change(s) should be accounted for as a change in an
accounting estimate in accordance with AS 5, Net Profit or Loss for the Period, Prior Period Items and
Changes in Accounting Policies.

Depreciation is recognised even if the fair value of the asset exceeds its carrying amount, as long as the asset’s
residual value does not exceed its carrying amount. Repair and maintenance of an asset do not negate the need to
depreciate it.

The depreciable amount of an asset is determined after deducting its residual value.

The residual value of an asset may increase to an amount equal to or greater than its carrying amount. If it does,
depreciation charge of the asset is zero unless and until its residual value subsequently decreases to an amount
below its carrying amount.

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use, i.e., when it is in the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Depreciation of an asset ceases at the
earlier of the date that the asset is retired from active use and is held for disposal and the date that the asset is
derecognised. Therefore, depreciation does not cease when the asset becomes idle or is retired from active use
(but not held for disposal) unless the asset is fully depreciated. However, under usage methods of depreciation,
the depreciation charge can be zero while there is no production.

The future economic benefits embodied in an asset are consumed by an enterprise principally through its use.
However, other factors, such as technical or commercial obsolescence and wear and tear while an asset remains
idle, often result in the diminution of the economic benefits that might have been obtained from the asset.
Consequently, all the following factors are considered in determining the useful life of an asset:

(a) expected usage of the asset. Usage is assessed by reference to the expected capacity or physical
output of the asset.

(b) expected physical wear and tear, which depends on operational factors such as the number of shifts
for which the asset is to be used and the repair and maintenance programme, and the care and
maintenance of the asset while idle.
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59.

60.

61.

() technical or commercial obsolescence arising from changes or improvements in production, or from a
change in the market demand for the product or service output of the asset. Expected future
reductions in the selling price of an item that was produced using an asset could indicate the
expectation of technical or commercial obsolescence of the asset, which, in turn, might reflect a
reduction of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset.

(d) legal or similar limits on the use of the asset, such as the expiry dates of related leases.

The useful life of an asset is defined in terms of its expected utility to the enterprise. The asset management
policy of the enterprise may involve the disposal of assets after a specified time or after consumption of a
specified proportion of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. Therefore, the useful life of an asset
may be shorter than its economic life. The estimation of the useful life of the asset is a matter of judgement based
on the experience of the enterprise with similar assets.

Land and buildings are separable assets and are accounted for separately, even when they are acquired together.
With some exceptions, such as quarries and sites used for landfill, land has an unlimited useful life and therefore
is not depreciated. Buildings have a limited useful life and therefore are depreciable assets. An increase in the
value of the land on which a building stands does not affect the determination of the depreciable amount of the
building.

If the cost of land includes the costs of site dismantlement, removal and restoration, that portion of the land asset
is depreciated over the period of benefits obtained by incurring those costs. In some cases, the land itself may
have a limited useful life, in which case it is depreciated in a manner that reflects the benefits to be derived from
it.

Depreciation Method

62.

63.

64.

65.

The depreciation method used should reflect the pattern in which the future economic benefits of the asset are
expected to be consumed by the enterprise.

The depreciation method applied to an asset should be reviewed at least at each financial year-end and, if there
has been a significant change in the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits
embodied in the asset, the method should be changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such a change should be
accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate in accordance with AS 5.

A variety of depreciation methods can be used to allocate the depreciable amount of an asset on a systematic basis
over its useful life. These methods include the straight-line method, the diminishing balance method and the units
of production method. Straight-line depreciation results in a constant charge over the useful life if the residual
value of the asset does not change. The diminishing balance method results in a decreasing charge over the useful
life. The units of production method results in a charge based on the expected use or output. The enterprise selects
the method that most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits
embodied in the asset. That method is applied consistently from period to period unless there is a change in the
expected pattern of consumption of those future economic benefits or that the method is changed in accordance
with the statute to best reflect the way the asset is consumed.

A depreciation method that is based on revenue that is generated by an activity that includes the use of an asset is
not appropriate. The revenue generated by an activity that includes the use of an asset generally reflects factors
other than the consumption of the economic benefits of the asset. For example, revenue is affected by other inputs
and processes, selling activities and changes in sales volumes and prices. The price component of revenue may be
affected by inflation, which has no bearing upon the way in which an asset is consumed.

Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and Other Liabilities

66.

67.

The cost of property, plant and equipment may undergo changes subsequent to its acquisition or construction
on account of changes in liabilities, price adjustments, changes in duties, changes in initial estimates of
amounts provided for dismantling, removing, restoration and similar factors and included in the cost of the
asset in accordance with paragraph 16. Such changes in cost should be accounted for in accordance with
paragraphs 67—68 below.

If the related asset is measured using the cost model:

(a) subject to (b), changes in the liability should be added to, or deducted from, the cost of the related asset
in the current period.

(b) the amount deducted from the cost of the asset should not exceed its carrying amount. If a decrease in
the liability exceeds the carrying amount of the asset, the excess should be recognised immediately in
the statement of profit and loss.
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(c) if the adjustment results in an addition to the cost of an asset, the enterprise should consider whether
this is an indication that the new carrying amount of the asset may not be fully recoverable. If it is such
an indication, the enterprise should test the asset for impairment by estimating its recoverable amount,
and should account for any impairment loss, in accordance with AS 28.

68. If the related asset is measured using the revaluation model:

(a) changes in the liability alter the revaluation surplus or deficit previously recognised on that asset,
so that:

(i) a decrease in the liability should (subject to (b)) be credited directly to revaluation
surplus in the owners’ interest, except that it should be recognised in the statement of
profit and loss to the extent that it reverses a revaluation deficit on the asset that was
previously recognised in the statement of profit and loss;

(ii) an increase in the liability should be recognised in the statement of profit and loss,
except that it should be debited directly to revaluation surplus in the owners’ interest to
the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that
asset.

(b) in the event that a decrease in the liability exceeds the carrying amount that would have been
recognised had the asset been carried under the cost model, the excess should be recognised
immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

(c) a change in the liability is an indication that the asset may have to be revalued in order to ensure
that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would be determined using
fair value at the balance sheet date. Any such revaluation should be taken into account in
determining the amounts to be taken to the statement of profit and loss and the owners’ interest
under (a). If a revaluation is necessary, all assets of that class should be revalued.

69. The adjusted depreciable amount of the asset is depreciated over its useful life. Therefore, once the related
asset has reached the end of its useful life, all subsequent changes in the liability should be recognised in the
statement of profit and loss as they occur. This applies under both the cost model and the revaluation model.

Impairment

70. To determine whether an item of property, plant and equipment is impaired, an enterprise applies AS 28,
Impairment of Assets. AS 28 explains how an enterprise reviews the carrying amount of its assets, how it
determines the recoverable amount of an asset, and when it recognises, or reverses the recognition of, an
impairment loss.

Compensation for Impairment

71. Compensation from third parties for items of property, plant and equipment that were impaired, lost or given
up should be included in the statement of profit and loss when the compensation becomes receivable.

72. Impairments or losses of items of property, plant and equipment, related claims for or payments of compensation
from third parties and any subsequent purchase or construction of replacement assets are separate economic
events and are accounted for separately as follows:

(a) impairments of items of property, plant and equipment are recognised in accordance with AS 28;

(b) derecognition of items of property, plant and equipment retired or disposed of is determined in
accordance with this Standard;

© compensation from third parties for items of property, plant and equipment that were impaired, lost
or given up is included in determining profit or loss when it becomes receivable; and

(d) the cost of items of property, plant and equipment restored, purchased or constructed as
replacements is determined in accordance with this Standard.

Retirements

73. Items of property, plant and equipment retired from active use and held for disposal should be stated at the
lower of their carrying amount and net realisable value. Any write-down in this regard should be recognised
immediately in the statement of profit and loss.
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Derecognition

74. The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment should be derecognised
(a) on disposal; or
(b) when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

75. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment should be included
in the statement of profit and loss when the item is derecognised (unless AS 19, Leases, requires otherwise on a
sale and leaseback). Gains should not be classified as revenue, as defined in AS 9, Revenue Recognition.

76. However, an enterprise that in the course of its ordinary activities, routinely sells items of property, plant and
equipment that it had held for rental to others should transfer such assets to inventories at their carrying
amount when they cease to be rented and become held for sale. The proceeds from the sale of such assets
should be recognised in revenue in accordance with AS 9, Revenue Recognition.

77. The disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment may occur in a variety of ways (e.g. by sale, by entering
into a finance lease or by donation). In determining the date of disposal of an item, an enterprise applies the
criteria in AS 9 for recognising revenue from the sale of goods. AS 19, Leases, applies to disposal by a sale and
leaseback.

78. If, under the recognition principle in paragraph 7, an enterprise recognises in the carrying amount of an item of
property, plant and equipment the cost of a replacement for part of the item, then it derecognises the carrying
amount of the replaced part regardless of whether the replaced part had been depreciated separately. If it is not
practicable for an enterprise to determine the carrying amount of the replaced part, it may use the cost of the
replacement as an indication of what the cost of the replaced part was at the time it was acquired or constructed.

79. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment should be
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

80. The consideration receivable on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in accordance
with the principles enunciated in AS 9.

Disclosure

81. The financial statements should disclose, for each class of property, plant and equipment:

(a) the measurement bases (i.e., cost model or revaluation model) used for determining the gross
carrying amount;

(b) the depreciation methods used;

(c) the useful lives or the depreciation rates used. In case the useful lives or the depreciation rates

used are different from those specified in the statute governing the enterprise, it should make a
specific mention of that fact;

(d) the gross carrying amount and the accumulated depreciation (aggregated with accumulated
impairment losses) at the beginning and end of the period; and
(e) a reconciliation of the carrying amount at the beginning and end of the period showing:
(i) additions;
(ii) assets retired from active use and held for disposal;
(iii) acquisitions through business combinations ;
(iv) increases or decreases resulting from revaluations under paragraphs 34, 42 and 43 and

Jrom impairment losses recognised or reversed directly in revaluation surplus in
accordance with AS 28;

) impairment losses recognised in the statement of profit and loss in accordance with AS
28;
(vi) impairment losses reversed in the statement of profit and loss in accordance with AS 28;

(vii) depreciation;

(viii)  the net exchange differences arising on the translation of the financial statements of a
non-integral foreign operation in accordance with AS 11, The Effects of Changes in
Foreign Exchange Rates; and

(ix) other changes.
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82. The financial statements should also disclose:

(a) the existence and amounts of restrictions on title, and property, plant and equipment pledged as
security for liabilities;

(b) the amount of expenditure recognised in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and
equipment in the course of its construction;

(c) the amount of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment;

(d) if it is not disclosed separately on the face of the statement of profit and loss, the amount of
compensation from third parties for items of property, plant and equipment that were impaired,
lost or given up that is included in the statement of profit and loss; and

(e) the amount of assets retired from active use and held for disposal.

83. Selection of the depreciation method and estimation of the useful life of assets are matters of judgement.
Therefore, disclosure of the methods adopted and the estimated useful lives or depreciation rates provides users of
financial statements with information that allows them to review the policies selected by management and enables
comparisons to be made with other enterprises. For similar reasons, it is necessary to disclose:

(a) depreciation, whether recognised in the statement of profit and loss or as a part of the cost of other
assets, during a period; and

(b) accumulated depreciation at the end of the period.

84. In accordance with AS 5, an enterprise discloses the nature and effect of a change in an accounting estimate that
has an effect in the current period or is expected to have an effect in subsequent periods. For property, plant and
equipment, such disclosure may arise from changes in estimates with respect to:

(a) residual values;

(b) the estimated costs of dismantling, removing or restoring items of property, plant and equipment;
(©) useful lives; and

(d) depreciation methods.

85. Ifitems of property, plant and equipment are stated at revalued amounts, the following should be disclosed:

(a) the effective date of the revaluation;

(b) whether an independent valuer was involved;

(c) the methods and significant assumptions applied in estimating fair values of the items;

(d) the extent to which fair values of the items were determined directly by reference to observable

prices in an active market or recent market transactions on arm’s length terms or were estimated
using other valuation techniques; and

(e) the revaluation surplus, indicating the change for the period and any restrictions on the
distribution of the balance to shareholders.

86. In accordance with AS 28, an enterprise discloses information on impaired property, plant and equipment in
addition to the information required by paragraph 81 (e), (iv), (v) and (vi).

87. An enterprise is encouraged to disclose the following:

(a) the carrying amount of temporarily idle property, plant and equipment;

(b) the gross carrying amount of any fully depreciated property, plant and equipment that is still in use;

©) for each revalued class of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount that would have been
recognised had the assets been carried under the cost model;

(d) the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment retired from active use and not held for
disposal.

Transitional Provisions

88. Where an entity has in past recognized an expenditure in the statement of profit and loss which is eligible to be
included as a part of the cost of a project for construction of property, plant and equipment in accordance with
the requirements of paragraph 9, it may do so retrospectively for such a project. The effect of such
retrospective application of this requirement, should be recognised net-of-tax in revenue reserves.
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89. The requirements of paragraphs 26-28 regarding the initial measurement of an item of property, plant and
equipment acquired in an exchange of assets transaction should be applied prospectively only to transactions
entered into after this Standard becomes mandatory.

90. On the date of this Standard becoming mandatory, the spare parts, which hitherto were being treated as
inventory under AS 2, Valuation of Inventories, and are now required to be capitalised in accordance with the
requirements of this Standard, should be capitalised at their respective carrying amounts. The spare parts so
capitalised should be depreciated over their remaining useful lives prospectively as per the requirements of this
Standard.

91. The requirements of paragraph 32 and paragraphs 34 — 44 regarding the revaluation model should be applied
prospectively. In case, on the date of this Standard becoming mandatory, an enterprise does not adopt the
revaluation model as its accounting policy but the carrying amount of item(s) of property, plant and equipment
reflects any previous revaluation it should adjust the amount outstanding in the revaluation reserve against the
carrying amount of that item. However, the carrying amount of that item should never be less than_residual
value. Any excess of the amount outstanding as revaluation reserve over the carrying amount of that item
should be adjusted in revenue reserves”.

9. In the principal rules, in the “ANNEXURE”, under the heading “ACCOUNTING STANDARDS”, for Accounting
Standard (AS) 13, the following Accounting Standard shall be substituted, namely:-

“Accounting Standard (AS) 13
Accounting for Investments

(This Accounting Standard includes paragraphs set in bold italic type and plain type, which have equal
authority. Paragraphs in bold italic type indicate the main principles. This Accounting Standard should be read in the
context of the General Instructions contained in part A of the Annexure to the Notification.)

Introduction

1. This Standard deals with accounting for investments in the financial statements of enterprises and related
disclosure requirements.”

2. This Standard does not deal with:

(a) the bases for recognition of interest, dividends and rentals earned on investments which are covered by
Accounting Standard 9 on Revenue Recognition;

(b) operating or finance leases;
(c) investments of retirement benefit plans and life insurance enterprises; and

(d) mutual funds and venture capital funds and/or the related asset management companies, banks and public
financial institutions formed under a Central or State Government Act or so declared under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Definitions
3. The following terms are used in this Standard with the meanings assigned:

3.1 Investments are assets held by an enterprise for earning income by way of dividends, interest, and rentals,
Jor capital appreciation, or for other benefits to the investing enterprise. Assets held as stock-in-trade are
not ‘investments’.

3.2 A current investment is an investment that is by its nature readily realisable and is intended to be held for
not more than one year from the date on which such investment is made.

3.3 A long term_investment is an investment other than a current investment.

3.4 An_investment property is an investment in land or buildings that are not intended to be occupied
substantially for use by, or in the operations of, the investing enterprise.

3.5 Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged between a knowledgeable, willing buyer
and a knowledgeable, willing seller in an arm’s length transaction. Under appropriate circumstances,
market value or net realisable value provides an evidence of fair value.

2 Shares, debentures and other securities held as stock-in-trade (i.e., for sale in the ordinary course of business) are not ‘investments’ as defined in
this Standard. However, the manner in which they are accounted for and disclosed in the financial statements is quite similar to that applicable in
respect of current investments. Accordingly, the provisions of this Standard, to the extent that they relate to current investments, are also applicable
to shares, debentures and other securities held as stock-in-trade, with suitable modifications as specified in this Standard.
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3.6 Market value is the amount obtainable from the sale of an investment in an open market, net of expenses

necessarily to be incurred on or before disposal.

Explanation

Forms of Investments

4.

Enterprises hold investments for diverse reasons. For some enterprises, investment activity is a significant
element of operations, and assessment of the performance of the enterprise may largely, or solely, depend on
the reported results of this activity.

Some investments have no physical existence and are represented merely by certificates or similar documents
(e.g., shares) while others exist in a physical form (e.g., buildings). The nature of an investment may be that
of a debt, other than a short or long term loan or a trade debt, representing a monetary amount owing to the
holder and usually bearing interest; alternatively, it may be a stake in the results and net assets of an
enterprise such as an equity share. Most investments represent financial rights, but some are tangible, such as
certain investments in land or buildings.

For some investments, an active market exists from which a market value can be established. For such
investments, market value generally provides the best evidence of fair value. For other investments, an active
market does not exist and other means are used to determine fair value.

Classification of Investments

7.

Enterprises present financial statements that classify fixed assets, investments and current assets into separate
categories. Investments are classified as long term investments and current investments. Current investments
are in the nature of current assets, although the common practice may be to include them in investments.’

Investments other than current investments are classified as long term investments, even though they may be
readily marketable.

Cost of Investments

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

The cost of an investment includes acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties.

If an investment is acquired, or partly acquired, by the issue of shares or other securities, the acquisition cost
is the fair value of the securities issued (which, in appropriate cases, may be indicated by the issue price as
determined by statutory authorities). The fair value may not necessarily be equal to the nominal or par value
of the securities issued.

If an investment is acquired in exchange, or part exchange, for another asset, the acquisition cost of the
investment is determined by reference to the fair value of the asset given up. It may be appropriate to
consider the fair value of the investment acquired if it is more clearly evident.

Interest, dividends and rentals receivables in connection with an investment are generally regarded as
income, being the return on the investment. However, in some circumstances, such inflows represent a
recovery of cost and do not form part of income. For example, when unpaid interest has accrued before the
acquisition of an interest-bearing investment and is therefore included in the price paid for the investment,
the subsequent receipt of interest is allocated between pre-acquisition and post-acquisition periods; the pre-
acquisition portion is deducted from cost. When dividends on equity are declared from pre-acquisition
profits, a similar treatment may apply. If it is difficult to make such an allocation except on an arbitrary basis,
the cost of investment is normally reduced by dividends receivable only if they clearly represent a recovery
of a part of the cost.

When right shares offered are subscribed for, the cost of the right shares is added to the carrying amount of
the original holding. If rights are not subscribed for but are sold in the market, the sale proceeds are taken to
the profit and loss statement. However, where the investments are acquired on cum-right basis and the market
value of investments immediately after their becoming ex-right is lower than the cost for which they were
acquired, it may be appropriate to apply the sale proceeds of rights to reduce the carrying amount of such
investments to the market value.

Shares, debentures and other securities held for sale in the ordinary course of business are disclosed as ‘stock-in-trade’ under the head ‘current

assets’.
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Carrying Amount of Investments
Current Investments

14. The carrying amount for current investments is the lower of cost and fair value. In respect of investments for
which an active market exists, market value generally provides the best evidence of fair value. The valuation
of current investments at lower of cost and fair value provides a prudent method of determining the carrying
amount to be stated in the balance sheet.

15. Valuation of current investments on overall (or global) basis is not considered appropriate. Sometimes, the
concern of an enterprise may be with the value of a category of related current investments and not with each
individual investment, and accordingly the investments may be carried at the lower of cost and fair value
computed categorywise (i.e. equity shares, preference shares, convertible debentures, etc.). However, the
more prudent and appropriate method is to carry investments individually at the lower of cost and fair value.

16. For current investments, any reduction to fair value and any reversals of such reductions are included in the
profit and loss statement.

Long-term Investments

17. Long-term investments are usually carried at cost. However, when there is a decline, other than temporary, in
the value of a long term investment, the carrying amount is reduced to recognise the decline. Indicators of the
value of an investment are obtained by reference to its market value, the investee’s assets and results and the
expected cash flows from the investment. The type and extent of the investor’s stake in the investee are also
taken into account. Restrictions on distributions by the investee or on disposal by the investor may affect the
value attributed to the investment.

18. Long-term investments are usually of individual importance to the investing enterprise. The carrying amount
of long-term investments is therefore determined on an individual investment basis.

19. Where there is a decline, other than temporary, in the carrying amounts of long term investments, the
resultant reduction in the carrying amount is charged to the profit and loss statement. The reduction in
carrying amount is reversed when there is a rise in the value of the investment, or if the reasons for the
reduction no longer exist.

Investment Properties

20. An investment property is accounted for in accordance with cost model as prescribed in Accounting
Standard (AS) 10, Property, Plant and Equipment. The cost of any shares in a co-operative society or a
company, the holding of which is directly related to the right to hold the investment property, is added to the
carrying amount of the investment property.

Disposal of Investments

21. On disposal of an investment, the difference between the carrying amount and the disposal proceeds, net of
expenses, is recognised in the profit and loss statement.

22. When disposing of a part of the holding of an individual investment, the carrying amount to be allocated to
that part is to be determined on the basis of the average carrying amount of the total holding of the
investment.*

Reclassification of Investments

23. Where long-term investments are reclassified as current investments, transfers are made at the lower of cost
and carrying amount at the date of transfer.

24. Where investments are reclassified from current to long-term, transfers are made at the lower of cost and fair
value at the date of transfer.

Disclosure
25. The following disclosures in financial statements in relation to investments are appropriate:—

(a) the accounting policies for the determination of carrying amount of investments;

In respect of shares, debentures and other securities held as stock-in-trade, the cost of stocks disposed of is determined by applying an appropriate
cost formula (e.g. first-in, first-out, average cost, etc.). These cost formulae are the same as those specified in Accounting Standard (AS) 2, in
respect of Valuation of Inventories.
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(b) the amounts included in profit and loss statement for:

(i) interest, dividends (showing separately dividends from subsidiary companies®), and rentals on
investments showing separately such income from long term and current investments. Gross income
should be stated, the amount of income tax deducted at source being included under Advance Taxes
Paid;

(i) profits and losses on disposal of current investments and changes in carrying amount of such
investments;

(iii) profits and losses on disposal of long-term investments and changes in the carrying amount of such
investments;

(c) significant restrictions on the right of ownership, realisability of investments or the remittance of income and
proceeds of disposal;

(d) the aggregate amount of quoted and unquoted investments, giving the aggregate market value of quoted
investments;

(e) other disclosures as specifically required by the relevant statute governing the enterprise.
Main Principles
Classification of Investments

26. An enterprise should disclose current investments and long-term investments distinctly in its financial
statements.

27. Further classification of current and long-term investments should be as specified in the statute
governing the enterprise. In the absence of a statutory requirement, such further classification should
disclose, where applicable, investments in:

(a) Government or Trust securities
(b) Shares, debentures or bonds
(c) Investment properties
(d) Others—specifying nature.
Cost of Investments
28. The cost of an investment should include acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties.

29. If an investment is acquired, or partly acquired, by the issue of shares or other securities, the acquisition
cost should be the fair value of the securities issued (which in appropriate cases may be indicated by the
issue price as determined by statutory authorities). The fair value may not necessarily be equal to the
nominal or par value of the securities issued. If an investment is acquired in exchange for another asset,
the acquisition cost of the investment should be determined by reference to the fair value of the asset given
up. Alternatively, the acquisition cost of the investment may be determined with reference to the fair value
of the investment acquired if it is more clearly evident.

Investment Properties

30. An enterprise holding investment properties should account for them in accordance with cost model as
prescribed in AS 10, Property, Plant and Equipment.

Carrying Amount of Investments

31. Investments classified as current investments should be carried in the financial statements at the lower of
cost and fair value determined either on an individual investment basis or by category of investment, but
not on an overall (or global) basis.

32. Investments classified as long term investments should be carried in the financial statements at cost.
However, provision for diminution shall be made to recognise a decline, other than temporary, in the
value of the investments, such reduction being determined and made for each investment individually.

Changes in Carrying Amounts of Investments

33. Any reduction in the carrying amount and any reversals of such reductions should be charged or credited
to the profit and loss statement.

Disposal of Investments

34. On disposal of an investment, the difference between the carrying amount and net disposal proceeds
should be charged or credited to the profit and loss statement.

* As defined in AS 21, Consolidated Financial Statements



82

THE GAZETTE OF INDIA : EXTRAORDINARY [PART ITI—SEC. 3(i)]

Disclosure

35.

The following information should be disclosed in the financial statements:

(a) the accounting policies for determination of carrying amount of investments;

(b) classification of investments as specified in paragraphs 26 and 27 above;

(c)

the amounts included in profit and loss statement for:

(i) interest, dividends (showing separately dividends from subsidiary companies), and rentals on
investments showing separately such income from long term and current investments. Gross income
should be stated, the amount of income tax deducted at source being included under Advance Taxes
Paid;

(i) profits and losses on disposal of current investments and changes in the carrying amount of such
investments; and

(iii) profits and losses on disposal of long term investments and changes in the carrying amount of such
investments;

(d) significant restrictions on the right of ownership, realisability of investments or the remittance of income

(e)

0]

and proceeds of disposal;

the aggregate amount of quoted and unquoted investments, giving the aggregate market value of quoted
investments;

other disclosures as specifically required by the relevant statute governing the enterprise”.

10. In the principal rules, in the “ANNEXURE”, under the heading “ACCOUNTING STANDARDS?”, for Accounting
Standard (AS) 14, the following Accounting Standard shall be substituted, namely:-

Accounting Standard (AS) 14

Accounting for Amalgamations

(This Accounting Standard includes paragraphs set in bold italic type and plain type, which have equal
authority. Paragraphs in bold italic type indicate the main principles. This Accounting Standard should be read in the
context of the General Instructions contained in part A of the Annexure to the Notification.)

Introduction

1.

This standard deals with accounting for amalgamations and the treatment of any resultant goodwill or
reserves. This standard is directed principally to companies although some of its requirements also apply to
financial statements of other enterprises.

2. This standard does not deal with cases of acquisitions which arise when there is a purchase by one company
(referred to as the acquiring company) of the whole or part of the shares, or the whole or part of the assets, of
another company (referred to as the acquired company) in consideration for payment in cash or by issue of
shares or other securities in the acquiring company or partly in one form and partly in the other. The
distinguishing feature of an acquisition is that the acquired company is not dissolved and its separate entity
continues to exist.

Definitions

3. The following terms are used in this standard with the meanings specified:

(a) Amalgamation means an amalgamation pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 or any

other statute which may be applicable to companies and includes ‘merger’.

(b) Transferor company means the company which is amalgamated into another company.

(c) Transferee company means the company into which a transferor company is amalgamated.

(d) Reserve means the portion of earnings, receipts or other surplus of an enterprise (whether capital or

revenue) appropriated by the management for a general or a specific purpose other than a provision for
depreciation or diminution in the value of assets or for a known liability.
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(e) Amalgamation in the nature of merger is an amalgamation which satisfies all the following conditions.

(i) All the assets and liabilities of the transferor company become, after amalgamation, the assets and
liabilities of the transferee company.

(ii) Share holders holding not less than 90% of the face value of the equity shares of the transferor
company (other than the equity shares already held therein, immediately before the amalgamation,
by the transferee company or its subsidiaries” or their nominees) become equity shareholders of the
transferee company by virtue of the amalgamation.

(iii) The consideration for the amalgamation receivable by those equity shareholders of the transferor
company who agree to become equity shareholders of the transferee company is discharged by the
transferee company wholly by the issue of equity shares in the transferee company, except that cash
may be paid in respect of any fractional shares.

(iv) The business of the transferor company is intended to be carried on, after the amalgamation, by the
transferee company.

(v) No adjustment is intended to be made to the book values of the assets and liabilities of the transferor
company when they are incorporated in the financial statements of the transferee company except
to ensure uniformity of accounting policies.

(f) Amalgamation in the nature of purchase is an amalgamation which does not satisfy any one or more of
the conditions specified in sub-paragraph (e) above.

(g) Consideration for the amalgamation means the aggregate of the shares and other securities issued and
the payment made in the form of cash or other assets by the transferee company to the shareholders of
the transferor company.

(h) Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged between a knowledgeable, willing buyer
and a knowledgeable, willing seller in an arm’s length transaction.

(i) Pooling of interests is a method of accounting for amalgamations the object of which is to account for
the amalgamation as if the separate businesses of the amalgamating companies were intended to be
continued by the transferee company. Accordingly, only minimal changes are made in aggregating the
individual financial statements of the amalgamating companies.

Explanation
Types of Amalgamations

4. Generally speaking, amalgamations fall into two broad categories. In the first category are those
amalgamations where there is a genuine pooling not merely of the assets and liabilities of the amalgamating
companies but also of the shareholders’ interests and of the businesses of these companies. Such
amalgamations are amalgamations which are in the nature of ‘merger’ and the accounting treatment of such
amalgamations should ensure that the resultant figures of assets, liabilities, capital and reserves more or less
represent the sum of the relevant figures of the amalgamating companies. In the second category are those
amalgamations which are in effect a mode by which one company acquires another company and, as a
consequence, the shareholders of the company which is acquired normally do not continue to have a
proportionate share in the equity of the combined company, or the business of the company which is
acquired is not intended to be continued. Such amalgamations are amalgamations in the nature of 'purchase’.

5. An amalgamation is classified as an ‘amalgamation in the nature of merger’ when all the conditions listed in
paragraph 3(e) are satisfied. There are, however, differing views regarding the nature of any further
conditions that may apply. Some believe that, in addition to an exchange of equity shares, it is necessary that
the shareholders of the transferor company obtain a substantial share in the transferee company even to the
extent that it should not be possible to identify any one party as dominant therein. This belief is based in part
on the view that the exchange of control of one company for an insignificant share in a larger company does
not amount to a mutual sharing of risks and benefits.

6. Others believe that the substance of an amalgamation in the nature of merger is evidenced by meeting certain
criteria regarding the relationship of the parties, such as the former independence of the amalgamating
companies, the manner of their amalgamation, the absence of planned transactions that would undermine the
effect of the amalgamation, and the continuing participation by the management of the transferor company in
the management of the transferee company after the amalgamation.

* As defined in AS 21, Consolidated Financial Statements
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Methods of Accounting for Amalgamations

7.

There are two main methods of accounting for amalgamations:
(a) the pooling of interests method; and
(b) the purchase method.

The use of the pooling of interests method is confined to circumstances which meet the criteria referred to in
paragraph 3(e) for an amalgamation in the nature of merger.

The object of the purchase method is to account for the amalgamation by applying the same principles as are
applied in the normal purchase of assets. This method is used in accounting for amalgamations in the nature
of purchase.

The Pooling of Interests Method

10.

11.

Under the pooling of interests method, the assets, liabilities and reserves of the transferor company are
recorded by the transferee company at their existing carrying amounts (after making the adjustments required
in paragraph 11).

If, at the time of the amalgamation, the transferor and the transferee companies have conflicting accounting
policies, a uniform set of accounting policies is adopted following the amalgamation. The effects on the
financial statements of any changes in accounting policies are reported in accordance with Accounting
Standard (AS) 5, Net Profit or Loss for the Period, Prior Period Items and Changes in Accounting Policies.

The Purchase Method

12.

13.

Under the purchase method, the transferee company accounts for the amalgamation either by incorporating
the assets and liabilities at their existing carrying amounts or by allocating the consideration to individual
identifiable assets and liabilities of the transferor company on the basis of their fair values at the date of
amalgamation. The identifiable assets and liabilities may include assets and liabilities not recorded in the
financial statements of the transferor company.

Where assets and liabilities are restated on the basis of their fair values, the determination of fair values may
be influenced by the intentions of the transferee company. For example, the transferee company may have a
specialised use for an asset, which is not available to other potential buyers. The transferee company may
intend to effect changes in the activities of the transferor company which necessitate the creation of specific
provisions for the expected costs, e.g. planned employee termination and plant relocation costs.

Consideration

14.

15.

The consideration for the amalgamation may consist of securities, cash or other assets. In determining the
value of the consideration, an assessment is made of the fair value of its elements. A variety of techniques is
applied in arriving at fair value. For example, when the consideration includes securities, the value fixed by
the statutory authorities may be taken to be the fair value. In case of other assets, the fair value may be
determined by reference to the market value of the assets given up. Where the market value of the assets
given up cannot be reliably assessed, such assets may be valued at their respective net book values.

Many amalgamations recognise that adjustments may have to be made to the consideration in the light of one
or more future events. When the additional payment is probable and can reasonably be estimated at the date
of amalgamation, it is included in the calculation of the consideration. In all other cases, the adjustment is
recognised as soon as the amount is determinable [see Accounting Standard (AS) 4, Contingencies and
Events Occurring After the Balance Sheet Date].

Treatment of Reserves on Amalgamation

16.

If the amalgamation is an ‘amalgamation in the nature of merger’, the identity of the reserves is preserved
and they appear in the financial statements of the transferee company in the same form in which they
appeared in the financial statements of the transferor company. Thus, for example, the General Reserve of
the transferor company becomes the General Reserve of the transferee company, the Capital Reserve of the
transferor company becomes the Capital Reserve of the transferee company and the Revaluation Reserve of
the transferor company becomes the Revaluation Reserve of the transferee company. As a result of
preserving the identity, reserves which are available for distribution as dividend before the amalgamation
would also be available for distribution as dividend after the amalgamation. The difference between the
amount recorded as share capital issued (plus any additional consideration in the form of cash or other assets)
and the amount of share capital of the transferor company is adjusted is reserves in the financial statements
of the transferee company.
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17.

18.

If the amalgamation is an ‘amalgamation in the nature of purchase’, the identity of the reserves, other than
the statutory reserves dealt with in paragraph 18, is not preserved. The amount of the consideration is
deducted from the value of the net assets of the transferor company acquired by the transferee company. If
the result of the computation is negative, the difference is debited to goodwill arising on amalgamation and
dealt with in the manner stated in paragraphs 19-20. If the result of the computation is positive, the difference
is credited to Capital Reserve.

Certain reserves may have been created by the transferor company pursuant to the requirements of, or to
avail of the benefits under, the Income-tax Act, 1961; for example, Development Allowance Reserve, or
Investment Allowance Reserve. The Act requires that the identity of the reserves should be preserved for a
specified period. Likewise, certain other reserves may have been created in the financial statements of the
transferor company in terms of the requirements of other statutes. Though, normally, in an amalgamation in
the nature of purchase, the identity of reserves is not preserved, an exception is made in respect of reserves of
the aforesaid nature (referred to hereinafter as ‘statutory reserves’) and such reserves retain their identity in
the financial statements of the transferee company in the same form in which they appeared in the financial
statements of the transferor company, so long as their identity is required to be maintained to comply with
the relevant statute. This exception is made only in those amalgamations where the requirements of the
relevant statute for recording the statutory reserves in the books of the transferee company are complied
with. In such cases the statutory reserves are recorded in the financial statements of the transferee company
by a corresponding debit to a suitable account head (e.g., ‘Amalgamation Adjustment Reserve’) which is
presented as a separate line item. When the identity of the statutory reserves is no longer required to be
maintained, both the reserves and the aforesaid account are reversed.

Treatment of Goodwill Arising on Amalgamation

19.

20.
()
(b)
(©
(d)
(e)

Goodwill arising on amalgamation represents a payment made in anticipation of future income and it is
appropriate to treat it as an asset to be amortised to income on a systematic basis over its useful life. Due to
the nature of goodwill, it is frequently difficult to estimate its useful life with reasonable certainty. Such
estimation is, therefore, made on a prudent basis. Accordingly, it is considered appropriate to amortise
goodwill over a period not exceeding five years unless a somewhat longer period can be justified.

Factors which may be considered in estimating the useful life of goodwill arising on amalgamation include:
the foreseeable life of the business or industry;
the effects of product obsolescence, changes in demand and other economic factors;
the service life expectancies of key individuals or groups of employees;
expected actions by competitors or potential competitors; and

legal, regulatory or contractual provisions affecting the useful life.

Balance of Profit and Loss Account

21.

22.

In the case of an ‘amalgamation in the nature of merger’, the balance of the Profit and Loss Account
appearing in the financial statements of the transferor company is aggregated with the corresponding balance
appearing in the financial statements of the transferee company. Alternatively, it is transferred to the General
Reserve, if any.

In the case of an ‘amalgamation in the nature of purchase’, the balance of the Profit and Loss Account
appearing in the financial statements of the transferor company, whether debit or credit, loses its identity.

Treatment of Reserves Specified in A Scheme of Amalgamation

23." The scheme of amalgamation sanctioned under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 or any other statute
may prescribe the treatment to be given to the reserves of the transferor company after its amalgamation. Where the
treatment is so prescribed, the same is followed. In some cases, the scheme of amalgamation sanctioned under a
statute may prescribe a different treatment to be given to the reserves of the transferor company after amalgamation as
compared to the requirements of this Standard that would have been followed had no treatment been prescribed by the

scheme. In such cases, the following disclosures are made in the first financial statements following the
amalgamation:
(a) A description of the accounting treatment given to the reserves and the reasons for following the treatment

different from that prescribed in this Standard.

’ Paragraph 23 shall not apply to any scheme of amalgamation approved under the Companies Act, 2013.
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(b) Deviations in the accounting treatment given to the reserves as prescribed by the scheme of amalgamation
sanctioned under the statute as compared to the requirements of this Standard that would have been
followed had no treatment been prescribed by the scheme.

(c) The financial effect, if any, arising due to such deviation.
Disclosure

24. For all amalgamations, the following disclosures are considered appropriate in the first financial statements
following the amalgamation:

(a) names and general nature of business of the amalgamating companies;
(b) effective date of amalgamation for accounting purposes;

() the method of accounting used to reflect the amalgamation; and

(d) particulars of the scheme sanctioned under a statute.

25. For amalgamations accounted for under the pooling of interests method, the following additional disclosures
are considered appropriate in the first financial statements following the amalgamation:

(a) description and number of shares issued, together with the percentage of each company’s equity
shares exchanged to effect the amalgamation;

(b) the amount of any difference between the consideration and the value of net identifiable assets
acquired, and the treatment thereof.

26. For amalgamations accounted for under the purchase method, the following additional disclosures are
considered appropriate in the first financial statements following the amalgamation:

(a) consideration for the amalgamation and a description of the consideration paid or contingently payable; and

(b) the amount of any difference between the consideration and the value of net identifiable assets acquired, and
the treatment thereof including the period of amortisation of any goodwill arising on amalgamation.

Amalgamation after the Balance Sheet Date

27. When an amalgamation is effected after the balance sheet date but before the issuance of the financial
statements of either party to the amalgamation, disclosure is made in accordance with AS 4, ‘Contingencies
and Events Occurring After the Balance Sheet Date’, but the amalgamation is not incorporated in the
financial statements. In certain circumstances, the amalgamation may also provide additional information
affecting the financial statements themselves, for instance, by allowing the going concern assumption to be
maintained.

Main Principles
28. An amalgamation may be either —
(a) an amalgamation in the nature of merger, or
(b) an amalgamation in the nature of purchase.

29. An amalgamation should be considered to be an amalgamation in the nature of merger when all the
Jfollowing conditions are satisfied:

(@) All the assets and liabilities of the transferor company become, after amalgamation, the assets
and liabilities of the transferee company.

(ii) Shareholders holding not less than 90% of the face value of the equity shares of the transferor
company (other than the equity shares already held therein, immediately before the
amalgamation, by the transferee company or its subsidiaries or their nominees) become equity
shareholders of the transferee company by virtue of the amalgamation.

(iii)  The consideration for the amalgamation receivable by those equity shareholders of the transferor
company who agree to become equity shareholders of the transferee company is discharged by
the transferee company wholly by the issue of equity shares in the transferee company, except
that cash may be paid in respect of any fractional shares.

(iv)  The business of the transferor company is intended to be carried on, after the amalgamation, by
the transferee company.

v) No adjustment is intended to be made to the book values of the assets and liabilities of the
transferor company when they are incorporated in the financial statements of the transferee
company except to ensure uniformity of accounting policies.
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30.

31.

32.

An amalgamation should be considered to be an amalgamation in the nature of purchase, when any one
or more of the conditions specified in paragraph 29 is not satisfied.

When an amalgamation is considered to be an amalgamation in the nature of merger, it should be
accounted for under the pooling of interests method described in paragraphs 33-35.

When an amalgamation is considered to be an amalgamation in the nature of purchase, it should be
accounted for under the purchase method described in paragraphs 36-39.

The Pooling of Interests Method

33.

34.

35.

In preparing the transferee company’s financial statements, the assets, liabilities and reserves (whether
capital or revenue or arising on revaluation) of the transferor company should be recorded at their
existing carrying amounts and in the same form as at the date of the amalgamation. The balance of the
Profit and Loss Account of the transferor company should be aggregated with the corresponding balance
of the transferee company or transferred to the General Reserve, if any.

If, at the time of the amalgamation, the transferor and the transferee companies have conflicting
accounting policies, a uniform set of accounting policies should be adopted following the amalgamation.
The effects on the financial statements of any changes in accounting policies should be reported in
accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 5 Net Profit or Loss for the Period, Prior Period Items and
Changes in Accounting Policies.

The difference between the amount recorded as share capital issued (plus any additional consideration in
the form of cash or other assets) and the amount of share capital of the transferor company should be
adjusted in reserves.

The Purchase Method

36.

37.

38.

39.

In preparing the transferee company’s financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the transferor
company should be incorporated at their existing carrying amounts or, alternatively, the consideration
should be allocated to individual identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their fair values at the
date of amalgamation. The reserves (whether capital or revenue or arising on revaluation) of the
transferor company, other than the statutory reserves, should not be included in the financial statements
of the transferee company except as stated in paragraph 39.

Any excess of the amount of the consideration over the value of the net assets of the transferor company
acquired by the transferee company should be recognised in the transferee company’s financial
statements as goodwill arising on amalgamation. If the amount of the consideration is lower than the
value of the net assets acquired, the difference should be treated as Capital Reserve.

The goodwill arising on amalgamation should be amortised to income on a systematic basis over its useful
life. The amortisation period should not exceed five years unless a somewhat longer period can be
Justified.

Where the requirements of the relevant statute for recording the statutory reserves in the books of the
transferee company are complied with, statutory reserves of the transferor company should be recorded in
the financial statements of the transferee company. The corresponding debit should be given to a suitable
account head (e.g., ‘Amalgamation Adjustment Reserve’) which should be presented as a separate line
item. When the identity of the statutory reserves is no longer required to be maintained, both the reserves
and the aforesaid account should be reversed.

Common Procedures

40.

41.

The consideration for the amalgamation should include any noncash element at fair value. In case of
issue of securities, the value fixed by the statutory authorities may be taken to be the fair value. In case of
other assets, the fair value may be determined by reference to the market value of the assets given up.
Where the market value of the assets given up cannot be reliably assessed, such assets may be valued at
their respective net book values.

Where the scheme of amalgamation provides for an adjustment to the consideration contingent on one or
more future events, the amount of the additional payment should be included in the consideration if
payment is probable and a reasonable estimate of the amount can be made. In all other cases, the
adjustment should be recognised as soon as the amount is determinable [see Accounting Standard
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(AS) 4, Contingencies and Events Occurring After the Balance Sheet Date].
Treatment of Reserves Specified in A Scheme of Amalgamation

42" Where the scheme of amalgamation sanctioned under a statute prescribes the treatment to be given to the
reserves of the transferor company after amalgamation, the same should be followed. Where the scheme of
amalgamation sanctioned under a statute prescribes a different treatment to be given to the reserves of the
transferor company after amalgamation as compared to the requirements of this Standard that would have been
followed had no treatment been prescribed by the scheme, the following disclosures should be made in the first
financial statements following the amalgamation:

(a) A description of the accounting treatment given to the reserves and the reasons for following the
treatment different from that prescribed in this Standard.

(b) Deviations in the accounting treatment given to the reserves as prescribed by the scheme of
amalgamation sanctioned under the statute as compared to the requirements of this Standard that would
have been followed had no treatment been prescribed by the scheme.

(¢c) The financial effect, if any, arising due to such deviation.
Disclosure

43. For all amalgamations, the following disclosures should be made in the first financial statements
Jfollowing the amalgamation:

(a) names and general nature of business of the amalgamating companies;
(b) effective date of amalgamation for accounting purposes;

(c) the method of accounting used to reflect the amalgamation; and

(d) particulars of the scheme sanctioned under a statute.

44. For amalgamations accounted for under the pooling of interests method, the following additional
disclosures should be made in the first financial statements following the amalgamation:

(a) description and number of shares issued, together with the percentage of each company’s equity
shares exchanged to effect the amalgamation;

(b) the amount of any difference between the consideration and the value of net identifiable assets
acquired, and the treatment thereof.

45. For amalgamations accounted for under the purchase method, the following additional disclosures should
be made in the first financial statements following the amalgamation:

(a) consideration for the amalgamation and a description of the consideration paid or contingently
payable; and

(b) the amount of any difference between the consideration and the value of net identifiable assets
acquired, and the treatment thereof including the period of amortisation of any goodwill arising on
amalgamation.

Amalgamation after the Balance Sheet Date

46. When an amalgamation is effected after the balance sheet date but before the issuance of the financial
statements of either party to the amalgamation, disclosure should be made in accordance with 4,
‘Contingencies and Events Occurring After the Balance Sheet Date’, but the amalgamation should not be
incorporated in the financial statements. In certain circumstances, the amalgamation may also provide
additional information affecting the financial statements themselves, for instance, by allowing the going
concern assumption to be maintained”’.

: Paragraph 42 shall not apply to any scheme of amalgamation approved under the Companies Act, 2013.
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11. In the principal rules, in the “ANNEXURE”, under the heading “ACCOUNTING STANDARDS”, for Accounting
Standard (AS) 21, the following Accounting Standard shall be substituted, namely:-

“Accounting Standard (AS) 21
Consolidated Financial Statements’

(This Accounting Standard includes paragraphs set in bold italic type and plain type, which have equal
authority. Paragraphs in bold italic type indicate the main principles. This Accounting Standard should be read in the
context of its objective and the General Instructions contained in part A of the Annexure to the Notification.)

Objective

The objective of this Standard is to lay down principles and procedures for preparation and presentation of
consolidated financial statements. Consolidated financial statements are presented by a parent (also known as holding
enterprise) to provide financial information about the economic activities of its group. These statements are intended
to present financial information about a parent and its subsidiary (ies) as a single economic entity to show the
economic resources controlled by the group, the obligations of the group and results the group achieves with its
resources.

Scope

1. This Standard should be applied in the preparation and presentation of consolidated financial statements for a
group of enterprises under the control of a parent.

2. This Standard should also be applied in accounting for investments in subsidiaries in the separate
financial statements of a parent.

3. In the preparation of consolidated financial statements, other Accounting Standards also apply in the same
manner as they apply to the separate statements.

4. This Standard does not deal with:

(a) methods of accounting for amalgamations and their effects on consolidation, including goodwill arising on
amalgamation (see AS 14, Accounting for Amalgamations);

(b) accounting for investments in associates (at present governed by AS 13, Accounting for Investments® ); and
(c) accounting for investments in joint ventures (at present governed by AS 13, Accounting for Investments’ ).
Definitions
5. For the purpose of this Standard, the following terms are used with the meanings specified:
5.1 Control:

(a) the ownership, directly or indirectly through subsidiary(ies), of more than one-half of the voting power of
an enterprise; or

(b) control of the composition of the board of directors in the case of a company or of the composition of the
corresponding governing body in case of any other enterprise so as to obtain economic benefits from its
activities.

5.2 A subsidiary is an enterprise that is controlled by another enterprise (known as the parent).

5.3 A parent is an enterprise that has one or more subsidiaries.
5.4 A group is a parent and all its subsidiaries.

5.5 Consolidated financial statements are the financial statements of a group presented as those of a single
enterprise.

5.6 Equity is the residual interest in the assets of an enterprise after deducting all its liabilities.

5.7 Minority interest is that part of the net results of operations and of the net assets of a subsidiary
attributable to interests which are not owned, directly or indirectly through subsidiary(ies), by the parent.

> It is clarified that AS 21 is mandatory if an enterprise presents consolidated financial statements. In other words, the accounting standard does not
mandate an enterprise to present consolidated financial statements but, if the enterprise presents consolidated financial statements for complying
with the requirements of any statute or otherwise, it should prepare and present consolidated financial statements in accordance with AS 21.

® Accounting Standard (AS) 23, ‘Accounting for Investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements’, specifies the requirements
relating to accounting for investments in associates in Consolidated Financial Statements.

7 Accounting Standard (AS) 27, ‘Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures’, specifies the requirements relating to accounting for
investments in joint ventures.
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6. Consolidated financial statements normally include consolidated balance sheet, consolidated statement of profit
and loss, and notes, other statements and explanatory material that form an integral part thereof. Consolidated cash
flow statement is presented in case a parent presents its own cash flow statement. The consolidated financial
statements are presented, to the extent possible, in the same format as that adopted by the parent for its separate
financial statements.

Explanation:

All the notes appearing in the separate financial statements of the parent enterprise and its subsidiaries need not be
included in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. For preparing consolidated financial statements, the
following principles may be observed in respect of notes and other explanatory material that form an integral part
thereof:

(a) Notes which are necessary for presenting a true and fair view of the consolidated financial statements are
included in the consolidated financial statements as an integral part thereof.

(b) Only the notes involving items which are material need to be disclosed. Materiality for this purpose is
assessed in relation to the information contained in consolidated financial statements. In view of this, it is
possible that certain notes which are disclosed in separate financial statements of a parent or a subsidiary
would not be required to be disclosed in the consolidated financial statements when the test of materiality is
applied in the context of consolidated financial statements.

(c) Additional statutory information disclosed in separate financial statements of the subsidiary and/or a parent
having no bearing on the true and fair view of the consolidated financial statements need not be disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements. An illustration of such information in the case of companies is
attached to the Standard.

Presentation of Consolidated Financial Statements

7. A parent which presents consolidated financial statements should present these statements in addition to
its separate financial statements.

8. Users of the financial statements of a parent are usually concerned with, and need to be informed about, the
financial position and results of operations of not only the enterprise itself but also of the group as a whole.
This need is served by providing the users —

(a) separate financial statements of the parent; and

(b) consolidated financial statements, which present financial information about the group as that of a
single enterprise without regard to the legal boundaries of the separate legal entities.

Scope of Consolidated Financial Statements

9. A parent which presents consolidated financial statements should consolidate all subsidiaries, domestic as
well as foreign, other than those referred to in paragraph 11. Where an enterprise does not have a
subsidiary but has an associate and/or a joint venture such an enterprise should also prepare consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 23, Accounting for Associates in
Consolidated Financial Statements, and Accounting Standard (AS) 27, Financial Reporting of Interests
in Joint Ventures respectively.

10. The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the basis of financial statements of parent and all
enterprises that are controlled by the parent, other than those subsidiaries excluded for the reasons set out in
paragraph 11. Control exists when the parent owns, directly or indirectly through subsidiary(ies), more than
one-half of the voting power of an enterprise. Control also exists when an enterprise controls the composition
of the board of directors (in the case of a company) or of the corresponding governing body (in case of an
enterprise not being a company) so as to obtain economic benefits from its activities. An enterprise may
control the composition of the governing bodies of entities such as gratuity trust, provident fund trust etc.
Since the objective of control over such entities is not to obtain economic benefits from their activities, these
are not considered for the purpose of preparation of consolidated financial statements. For the purpose of this
Standard, an enterprise is considered to control the composition of:

(i) the board of directors of a company, if it has the power, without the consent or concurrence of any
other person, to appoint or remove all or a majority of directors of that company. An enterprise is
deemed to have the power to appoint a director, if any of the following conditions is satisfied:

(a) a person cannot be appointed as director without the exercise in his favour by that enterprise of
such a power as aforesaid; or

(b) a person’s appointment as director follows necessarily from his appointment to a position held by
him in that enterprise; or

(c) the director is nominated by that enterprise or a subsidiary thereof.
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(i1) the governing body of an enterprise that is not a company, if it has the power, without the consent or the
concurrence of any other person, to appoint or remove all or a majority of members of the governing body
of that other enterprise. An enterprise is deemed to have the power to appoint a member, if any of the
following conditions is satisfied:

(a) a person cannot be appointed as member of the governing body without the exercise in his favour by
that other enterprise of such a power as aforesaid; or

(b) a person’s appointment as member of the governing body follows necessarily from his appointment to
a position held by him in that other enterprise; or

(c) the member of the governing body is nominated by that other enterprise.

Explanation:

It is possible that an enterprise is controlled by two enterprises — one controls by virtue of ownership of majority
of the voting power of that enterprise and the other controls, by virtue of an agreement or otherwise, the composition
of the board of directors so as to obtain economic benefits from its activities. In such a rare situation, when an
enterprise is controlled by two enterprises as per the definition of ‘control’, the first mentioned enterprise will be
considered as subsidiary of both the controlling enterprises within the meaning of this Standard and, therefore, both
the enterprises need to consolidate the financial statements of that enterprise as per the requirements of this Standard.

11. A subsidiary should be excluded from consolidation when:

(a) control is intended to be temporary because the subsidiary is acquired and held exclusively with a view to
its subsequent disposal in the near future; or

(b) it operates under severe long-term restrictions which significantly impair its ability to transfer funds to
the parent.

In consolidated financial statements, investments in such subsidiaries should be accounted for in accordance
with Accounting Standard (AS) 13, Accounting for Investments. The reasons for not consolidating a subsidiary
should be disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

Explanation:

(a) Where an enterprise owns majority of voting power by virtue of ownership of the shares of another
enterprise and all the shares are held as ‘stock-in-trade’ and are acquired and held exclusively with a
view to their subsequent disposal in the near future, the control by the first mentioned enterprise is
considered to be temporary within the meaning of paragraph 11(a).

(b) The period of time, which is considered as near future for the purposes of this Standard primarily
depends on the facts and circumstances of each case. However, ordinarily, the meaning of the words
‘near future’ is considered as not more than twelve months from acquisition of relevant investments
unless a longer period can be justified on the basis of facts and circumstances of the case. The intention
with regard to disposal of the relevant investment is considered at the time of acquisition of the
investment. Accordingly, if the relevant investment is acquired without an intention to its subsequent
disposal in near future, and subsequently, it is decided to dispose off the investment, such an investment
is not excluded from consolidation, until the investment is actually disposed off. Conversely, if the
relevant investment is acquired with an intention to its subsequent disposal in near future, but, due to
some valid reasons, it could not be disposed off within that period, the same will continue to be excluded
Jrom consolidation, provided there is no change in the intention.

12. Exclusion of a subsidiary from consolidation on the ground that its business activities are dissimilar from
those of the other enterprises within the group is not justified because better information is provided by
consolidating such subsidiaries and disclosing additional information in the consolidated financial statements
about the different business activities of subsidiaries. For example, the disclosures required by Accounting
Standard (AS) 17, Segment Reporting, help to explain the significance of different business activities within
the group.

Consolidation Procedures

13. In preparing consolidated financial statements, the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries
should be combined on a line by line basis by adding together like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
In order that the consolidated financial statements present financial information about the group as that of a
single enterprise, the following steps should be taken:
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

the cost to the parent of its investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of each
subsidiary, at the date on which investment in each subsidiary is made, should be eliminated;

any excess of the cost to the parent of its investment in a subsidiary over the parent’s portion of equity of
the subsidiary, at the date on which investment in the subsidiary is made, should be described as goodwill
to be recognised as an asset in the consolidated financial statements;

when the cost to the parent of its investment in a subsidiary is less than the parent’s portion of equity of
the subsidiary, at the date on which investment in the subsidiary is made, the difference should be treated
as a capital reserve in the consolidated financial statements;

minority interests in the net income of consolidated subsidiaries for the reporting period should be
identified and adjusted against the income of the group in order to arrive at the net income attributable to
the owners of the parent; and

minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries should be identified and presented in the
consolidated balance sheet separately from liabilities and the equity of the parent’s shareholders.
Minority interests in the net assets consist of:

(i) the amount of equity attributable to minorities at the date on which investment in a subsidiary is
made; and

(ii) the minorities’ share of movements in equity since the date the parent-subsidiary relationship came
in existence.

Where the carrying amount of the investment in the subsidiary is different from its cost, the carrying amount
is considered for the purpose of above computations.

Explanation:

(a)

(b)

14.

15.

16.

17.

The tax expense (comprising current tax and deferred tax) to be shown in the consolidated financial
statements should be the aggregate of the amounts of tax expense appearing in the separate financial
statements of the parent and its subsidiaries.

The parent’s share in the post-acquisition reserves of a subsidiary, forming part of the corresponding
reserves in the consolidated balance sheet, is not required to be disclosed separately in the consolidated
balance sheet keeping in view the objective of consolidated financial statements to present financial
information of the group as a whole. In view of this, the consolidated reserves disclosed in the
consolidated balance sheet are inclusive of the parent’s share in the post-acquisition reserves of a
subsidiary.

The parent’s portion of equity in a subsidiary, at the date on which investment is made, is determined on the
basis of information contained in the financial statements of the subsidiary as on the date of investment.
However, if the financial statements of a subsidiary, as on the date of investment, are not available and if it is
impracticable to draw the financial statements of the subsidiary as on that date, financial statements of the
subsidiary for the immediately preceding period are used as a basis for consolidation. Adjustments are made
to these financial statements for the effects of significant transactions or other events that occur between the
date of such financial statements and the date of investment in the subsidiary.

If an enterprise makes two or more investments in another enterprise at different dates and eventually obtains
control of the other enterprise, the consolidated financial statements are presented only from the date on
which holding-subsidiary relationship comes in existence. If two or more investments are made over a period
of time, the equity of the subsidiary at the date of investment, for the purposes of paragraph 13 above, is
generally determined on a step-by-step basis; however, if small investments are made over a period of time
and then an investment is made that results in control, the date of the latest investment, as a practicable
measure, may be considered as the date of investment.

Intragroup balances and intragroup transactions and resulting unrealised profits should be eliminated in
Jull. Unrealised losses resulting from intragroup transactions should also be eliminated unless cost cannot
be recovered.

Intragroup balances and intragroup transactions, including sales, expenses and dividends, are eliminated in
full. Unrealised profits resulting from intragroup transactions that are included in the carrying amount of
assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full. Unrealised losses resulting from intragroup
transactions that are deducted in arriving at the carrying amount of assets are also eliminated unless cost
cannot be recovered.
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18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

217.

The financial statements used in the consolidation should be drawn up to the same reporting date. If it is
not practicable to draw up the financial statements of one or more subsidiaries to such date and,
accordingly, those financial statements are drawn up to different reporting dates, adjustments should be
made for the effects of significant transactions or other events that occur between those dates and the date
of the parent’s financial statements. In any case, the difference between reporting dates should not be
more than six months.

The financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries used in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements are usually drawn up to the same date. When the reporting dates are different, the
subsidiary often prepares, for consolidation purposes, statements as at the same date as that of the parent.
When it is impracticable to do this, financial statements drawn up to different reporting dates may be used
provided the difference in reporting dates is not more than six months. The consistency principle requires
that the length of the reporting periods and any difference in the reporting dates should be the same from
period to period.

Consolidated financial statements should be prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If it is not practicable to use uniform accounting
policies in preparing the consolidated financial statements, that fact should be disclosed together with the
proportions of the items in the consolidated financial statements to which the different accounting policies
have been applied.

If a member of the group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial
statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to its
financial statements when they are used in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The results of operations of a subsidiary are included in the consolidated financial statements as from the date
on which parent-subsidiary relationship came in existence. The results of operations of a subsidiary with
which parent-subsidiary relationship ceases to exist are included in the consolidated statement of profit and
loss until the date of cessation of the relationship. The difference between the proceeds from the disposal of
investment in a subsidiary and the carrying amount of its assets less liabilities as of the date of disposal is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss as the profit or loss on the disposal of the
investment in the subsidiary. In order to ensure the comparability of the financial statements from one
accounting period to the next, supplementary information is often provided about the effect of the acquisition
and disposal of subsidiaries on the financial position at the reporting date and the results for the reporting
period and on the corresponding amounts for the preceding period.

An investment in an enterprise should be accounted for in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 13,
Accounting for Investments, from the date that the enterprise ceases to be a subsidiary and does not
become an associate®.

The carrying amount of the investment at the date that it ceases to be a subsidiary is regarded as cost
thereafter.

Minority interests should be presented in the consolidated balance sheet separately from liabilities and the
equity of the parent’s shareholders. Minority interests in the income of the group should also be separately
presented.

The losses applicable to the minority in a consolidated subsidiary may exceed the minority interest in the
equity of the subsidiary. The excess, and any further losses applicable to the minority, are adjusted against
the majority interest except to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation to, and is able to, make
good the losses. If the subsidiary subsequently reports profits, all such profits are allocated to the majority
interest until the minority’s share of losses previously absorbed by the majority has been recovered.

If a subsidiary has outstanding cumulative preference shares which are held outside the group, the parent
computes its share of profits or losses after adjusting for the subsidiary’s preference dividends, whether or
not dividends have been declared.

Accounting for Investments in Subsidiaries in a Parent’s Separate Financial Statements

28. In a parent’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries should be accounted for in accordance
with Accounting Standard (AS) 13, Accounting for Investments.

8 . . p : . : - : > . ¢ o
Accounting Standard (AS) 23, ‘Accounting for Investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements’, defines the term ‘associate’ and

specifies the requirements relating to accounting for investments in associates in consolidated Financial Statements.
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Disclosure
29. In addition to disclosures required by paragraph 11 and 20, following disclosures should be made:

(a) in consolidated financial statements a list of all subsidiaries including the name, country of incorporation
or residence, proportion of ownership interest and, if different, proportion of voting power held;

(b) in consolidated financial statements, where applicable:

(i) the nature of the relationship between the parent and a subsidiary, if the parent does not own,
directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, more than one-half of the voting power of the subsidiary;

(ii) the effect of the acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries on the financial position at the reporting
date, the results for the reporting period and on the corresponding amounts for the preceding
period; and

(iii) the names of the subsidiary(ies) of which reporting date(s) is/are different from that of the parent
and the difference in reporting dates.

Transitional Provisions

30. On the first occasion that consolidated financial statements are presented, comparative figures for the previous
period need not be presented. In all subsequent years full comparative figures for the previous period should be
presented in the consolidated financial statements.

Illustration

Note: This illustration does not form part of the Accounting Standard. Its purpose is to assist in clarifying the
meaning of the Accounting Standard.

In the case of companies, the information such as the following given in the notes to the separate financial
statements of the parent and/or the subsidiary, need not be included in the consolidated financial statements:

(i) Source from which bonus shares are issued, e.g., capitalisation of profits or Reserves or from Share Premium
Account.

(i1) Disclosure of all unutilised monies out of the issue indicating the form in which such unutilised funds have
been invested.

(iii) The name(s) of small scale industrial undertaking(s) to whom the company owe any sum together with
interest outstanding for more than thirty days.

(iv) A statement of investments (whether shown under “Investment” or under “Current Assets” as stock-in-trade)
separately classifying trade investments and other investments, showing the names of the bodies corporate
(indicating separately the names of the bodies corporate under the same management) in whose shares or
debentures, investments have been made (including all investments, whether existing or not, made
subsequent to the date as at which the previous balance sheet was made out) and the nature and extent of the
investment so made in each such body corporate.

(v) Quantitative information in respect of sales, raw materials consumed, opening and closing stocks of goods
produced/ traded and purchases made, wherever applicable.

(vi) A statement showing the computation of net profits in accordance with section 198 of the Companies Act,
2013, with relevant details of the calculation of the commissions payable by way of percentage of such
profits to the directors (including managing directors) or manager (if any).

(vii) In the case of manufacturing companies, quantitative information in regard to the licensed capacity (where
licence is in force); the installed capacity; and the actual production.

(viii) Value of imports calculated on C.LF. basis by the company during the financial year in respect of :
(a) raw materials;
(b) components and spare parts;
(c) capital goods.

(ix) Expenditure in foreign currency during the financial year on account of royalty, know-how, professional,
consultation fees, interest, and other matters.

(x) Value of all imported raw materials, spare parts and components consumed during the financial year and the
value of all indigenous raw materials, spare parts and components similarly consumed and the percentage of
each to the total consumption.
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(xi) The amount remitted during the year in foreign currencies on account of dividends, with a specific mention
of the number of non-resident shareholders, the number of shares held by them on which the dividends were
due and the year to which the dividends related.

(xii) Earnings in foreign exchange classified under the following heads, namely:
(a) export of goods calculated on F.O.B. basis;
(b) royalty, know-how, professional and consultation fees;
(c) interest and dividend;
(d) other income, indicating the nature thereof”.

12. In the principal rules, in the “ANNEXURE”, under the heading “ACCOUNTING STANDARDS?”, for Accounting
Standard (AS) 29, the following Accounting Standard shall be substituted, namely:-

“Accounting Standard (AS) 29
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

(This Accounting Standard includes paragraphs set in bold italic type and plain type, which have equal authority.
Paragraphs set in bold italic type indicate the main principles. This Accounting Standard should be read in the
context of its objective and the General Instructions contained in part A of the Annexure to the Notification.)

Pursuant to this Accounting Standard coming into effect, all paragraphs of Accounting Standard (AS) 4,
Contingencies and Events Occurring After the Balance Sheet Date, that deal with contingencies (viz., paragraphs 1
(a), 2, 3.1, 4 (4.1 to 44), 5 (5.1 to 5.6), 6, 7 (7.1 to 7.3), 9.1 (relevant portion), 9.2, 10, 11, 12 and 16), stand
withdrawn except to the extent they deal with impairment of assets not covered by other Indian Accounting Standards.

Objective

The objective of this Standard is to ensure that appropriate recognition criteria and measurement bases are applied to
provisions and contingent liabilities and that sufficient information is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements
to enable users to understand their nature, timing and amount. The objective of this Standard is also to lay down
appropriate accounting for contingent assets.

Scope

1. This Standard should be applied in accounting for provisions and contingent liabilities and in dealing with
contingent assets, except:

(a) those resulting from financial instruments’ that are carried at fair value;
(b) those resulting from executory contracts, except where the contract is onerous; Explanation :

(i) An ‘onerous contract’ is a contract in which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under
the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it. Thus, for a contract to
qualify as an onerous contract, the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligation under the contract
should exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it. The unavoidable costs under a
contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the lower of the cost of
Sfulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfill it.

(ii) If an enterprise has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract is
recognised and measured as a provision as per this Statement.

The application of the above explanation is illustrated in Illustration 10 of Illustration C attached to
the Standard.

(c) those arising in insurance enterprises from contracts with policy-holders; and
(d) those covered by another Accounting Standard.
2. This Standard applies to financial instruments (including guarantees) that are not carried at fair value.

3. Executory contracts are contracts under which neither party has performed any of its obligations or both
parties have partially performed their obligations to an equal extent. This Standard does not apply to
executory contracts unless they are onerous.

? For the purpose of this Standard, the term ‘financial instruments’ shall have the same meaning as in Accounting Standard (AS) 20, Earnings Per
Share
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(a)
(b)
()

(d)

This Standard applies to provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets of insurance enterprises other
than those arising from contracts with policy-holders.

Where another Accounting Standard deals with a specific type of provision, contingent liability or contingent
asset, an enterprise applies that Standard instead of this Standard. For example, certain types of provisions
are also addressed in Accounting Standards on:

construction contracts (see AS 7, Construction Contracts);
taxes on income (see AS 22, Accounting for Taxes on Income);

leases (see AS 19, Leases) . However, as AS 19 contains no specific requirements to deal with operating
leases that have become onerous, this Statement applies to such cases; and

retirement benefits (see AS 15, Accounting for Retirement Benefits in the Financial Statements of
Employers).

Some amounts treated as provisions may relate to the recognition of revenue, for example where an
enterprise gives guarantees in exchange for a fee. This Standard does not address the recognition of revenue.
AS 9, Revenue Recognition, identifies the circumstances in which revenue is recognised and provides
practical guidance on the application of the recognition criteria. This Standard does not change the
requirements of AS 9.

This Standard defines provisions as liabilities which can be measured only by using a substantial degree of
estimation. The term ‘provision’ is also used in the context of items such as depreciation, impairment of
assets and doubtful debts: these are adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and are not addressed in
this Standard.

Other Accounting Standards specify whether expenditures are treated as assets or as expenses. These issues
are not addressed in this Standard. Accordingly, this Standard neither prohibits nor requires capitalisation of
the costs recognised when a provision is made.

This Standard applies to provisions for restructuring (including discontinuing operations). Where a
restructuring meets the definition of a discontinuing operation, additional disclosures are required by AS 24,
Discontinuing Operations.

Definitions

10. The following terms are used in this Standard with the meanings specified:

10.1A provision is a liability which can be measured only by using a substantial degree of estimation.

10.2A liability is a present obligation of the enterprise arising from past events, the settlement of which is

expected to result in an outflow from the enterprise of resources embodying economic benefits.

10.3An obligating event is an event that creates an obligation that results in an enterprise having no realistic

alternative to settling that obligation.

10.4 A contingent liability is:

(a)

(b)

a possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
enterprise; or

a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:

(i) itis not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation; or

(ii) a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

10.5A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events the existence of which will be confirmed

only by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the enterprise.

10.6Present obligation - an obligation is a present obligation if, based on the evidence available, its existence

at the balance sheet date is considered probable, i.e., more likely than not.
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10.7  Possible obligation - an obligation is a possible obligation if, based on the evidence available, its existence
at the balance sheet date is considered not probable.

10.8 A restructuring is a programme that is planned and controlled by management, and materially changes
either:

(a) the scope of a business undertaken by an enterprise; or
(b) the manner in which that business is conducted.

11. An obligation is a duty or responsibility to act or perform in a certain way. Obligations may be legally enforceable
as a consequence of a binding contract or statutory requirement. Obligations also arise from normal business practice,
custom and a desire to maintain good business relations or act in an equitable manner.

12. Provisions can be distinguished from other liabilities such as trade payables and accruals because in the
measurement of provisions substantial degree of estimation is involved with regard to the future expenditure
required in settlement. By contrast:

(a) trade payables are liabilities to pay for goods or services that have been received or supplied and have
been invoiced or formally agreed with the supplier; and

(b) accruals are liabilities to pay for goods or services that have been received or supplied but have not
been paid, invoiced or formally agreed with the supplier, including amounts due to employees.
Although it is sometimes necessary to estimate the amount of accruals, the degree of estimation is
generally much less than that for provisions.

13. In this Standard, the term ‘contingent’ is used for liabilities and assets that are not recognised because their
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the enterprise. In addition, the term ‘contingent liability’ is used for liabilities that do not
meet the recognition criteria.

Recognition
Provisions
14. A provision should be recognised when:
(a) an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of a past event;

(b) it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation; and

(c) areliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
If these conditions are not met, no provision should be recognised.
Present Obligation

15. In almost all cases it will be clear whether a past event has given rise to a present obligation. In rare cases, for
example in a lawsuit, it may be disputed either whether certain events have occurred or whether those events result in
a present obligation. In such a case, an enterprise determines whether a present obligation exists at the balance sheet
date by taking account of all available evidence, including, for example, the opinion of experts. The evidence
considered includes any additional evidence provided by events after the balance sheet date. On the basis of such
evidence:

(a) where it is more likely than not that a present obligation exists at the balance sheet date, the enterprise
recognises a provision (if the recognition criteria are met); and

(b) where it is more likely that no present obligation exists at the balance sheet date, the enterprise discloses a
contingent liability, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote
(see paragraph 68).

Past Event

16. A past event that leads to a present obligation is called an obligating event. For an event to be an obligating
event, it is necessary that the enterprise has no realistic alternative to settling the obligation created by the
event.
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17. Financial statements deal with the financial position of an enterprise at the end of its reporting period and not
its possible position in the future. Therefore, no provision is recognised for costs that need to be incurred to
operate in the future. The only liabilities recognised in an enterprise’s balance sheet are those that exist at the
balance sheet date.

18. It is only those obligations arising from past events existing independently of an enterprise’s future actions
(i.e. the future conduct of its business) that are recognised as provisions. Examples of such obligations are
penalties or clean-up costs for unlawful environmental damage, both of which would lead to an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits in settlement regardless of the future actions of the enterprise.
Similarly, an enterprise recognises a provision for the decommissioning costs of an oil installation to the
extent that the enterprise is obliged to rectify damage already caused. In contrast, because of commercial
pressures or legal requirements, an enterprise may intend or need to carry out expenditure to operate in a
particular way in the future (for example, by fitting smoke filters in a certain type of factory). Because the
enterprise can avoid the future expenditure by its future actions, for example by changing its method of
operation, it has no present obligation for that future expenditure and no provision is recognised.

19. An obligation always involves another party to whom the obligation is owed. It is not necessary, however, to
know the identity of the party to whom the obligation is owed — indeed the obligation may be to the public
at large.

20. An event that does not give rise to an obligation immediately may do so at a later date, because of changes in
the law. For example, when environmental damage is caused there may be no obligation to remedy the
consequences. However, the causing of the damage will become an obligating event when a new law requires
the existing damage to be rectified.

21. Where details of a proposed new law have yet to be finalised, an obligation arises only when the legislation is
virtually certain to be enacted. Differences in circumstances surrounding enactment usually make it
impossible to specify a single event that would make the enactment of a law virtually certain. In many cases
it will be impossible to be virtually certain of the enactment of a law until it is enacted.

Probable Outflow of Resources Embodying Economic Benefits

22. For a liability to qualify for recognition there must be not only a present obligation but also the probability of an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits to settle that obligation. For the purpose of this Standard'’ , an
outflow of resources or other event is regarded as probable if the event is more likely than not to occur, i.e., the
probability that the event will occur is greater than the probability that it will not. Where it is not probable that a
present obligation exists, an enterprise discloses a contingent liability, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is remote (see paragraph 68).

23. Where there are a number of similar obligations (e.g. product warranties or similar contracts) the probability that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. Although
the likelihood of outflow for any one item may be small, it may well be probable that some outflow of resources will
be needed to settle the class of obligations as a whole. If that is the case, a provision is recognised (if the other
recognition criteria are met).

Reliable Estimate of the Obligation

24. The use of estimates is an essential part of the preparation of financial statements and does not undermine
their reliability. This is especially true in the case of provisions, which by their nature involve a greater
degree of estimation than most other items. Except in extremely rare cases, an enterprise will be able to
determine a range of possible outcomes and can therefore make an estimate of the obligation that is reliable
to use in recognising a provision.

25. In the extremely rare case where no reliable estimate can be made, a liability exists that cannot be recognised.
That liability is disclosed as a contingent liability (see paragraph 68).

Contingent Liabilities
26. An enterprise should not recognise a contingent liability.

27. A contingent liability is disclosed, as required by paragraph 68, unless the possibility of an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

10 The interpretation of ‘probable’ in this Standard as ‘more likely than not’ does not necessarily apply in other Accounting Standards
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28.

29.

Where an enterprise is jointly and severally liable for an obligation, the part of the obligation that is expected
to be met by other parties is treated as a contingent liability. The enterprise recognises a provision for the part
of the obligation for which an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is probable, except in the
extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate can be made (see paragraph 14).

Contingent liabilities may develop in a way not initially expected. Therefore, they are assessed continually to
determine whether an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits has become probable. If it becomes
probable that an outflow of future economic benefits will be required for an item previously dealt with as a
contingent liability, a provision is recognised in accordance with paragraph 14 in the financial statements of
the period in which the change in probability occurs (except in the extremely rare circumstances where no
reliable estimate can be made).

Contingent Assets

30. An enterprise should not recognise a contingent asset.

31.

32.

33.

34.

Contingent assets usually arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the possibility of
an inflow of economic benefits to the enterprise. An example is a claim that an enterprise is pursuing through
legal processes, where the outcome is uncertain.

Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income
that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset
is not a contingent asset and its recognition is appropriate.

A contingent asset is not disclosed in the financial statements. It is usually disclosed in the report of the
approving authority (Board of Directors in the case of a company, and, the corresponding approving
authority in the case of any other enterprise), where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Contingent assets are assessed continually and if it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic
benefits will arise, the asset and the related income are recognised in the financial statements of the period in
which the change occurs.

Measurement

Best Estimate

35.

36.

37.

The amount recognised as a provision should be the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the balance sheet date. The amount of a provision should not be discounted to its
present value except in case of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities that are recognised as
cost of Property, Plant and Equipment. The discount rate (or rates) should be a pre-tax rate (or rates) that
reflect(s) current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
discount rate(s) should not reflect risks for which future cash flow estimates have been adjusted. Periodic
unwinding of discount should be recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The estimates of outcome and financial effect are determined by the judgment of the management of the
enterprise, supplemented by experience of similar transactions and, in some cases, reports from independent
experts. The evidence considered includes any additional evidence provided by events after the balance sheet
date.

The provision is measured before tax; the tax consequences of the provision, and changes in it, are dealt with
under AS 22, Accounting for Taxes on Income.

Risks and Uncertainties

38.

39.

The risks and uncertainties that inevitably surround many events and circumstances should be taken into
account in reaching the best estimate of a provision.

Risk describes variability of outcome. A risk adjustment may increase the amount at which a liability is
measured. Caution is needed in making judgments under conditions of uncertainty, so that income or assets
are not overstated and expenses or liabilities are not understated. However, uncertainty does not justify the
creation of excessive provisions or a deliberate overstatement of liabilities. For example, if the projected
costs of a particularly adverse outcome are estimated on a prudent basis, that outcome is not then deliberately
treated as more probable than is realistically the case. Care is needed to avoid duplicating adjustments for
risk and uncertainty with consequent overstatement of a provision.
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40.

Disclosure of the uncertainties surrounding the amount of the expenditure is made under paragraph 67(b).

Future Events

41.

42.

43.

Future events that may affect the amount required to settle an obligation should be reflected in the
amount of a provision where there is sufficient objective evidence that they will occur.

Expected future events may be particularly important in measuring provisions. For example, an enterprise
may believe that the cost of cleaning up a site at the end of its life will be reduced by future changes in
technology. The amount recognised reflects a reasonable expectation of technically qualified, objective
observers, taking account of all available evidence as to the technology that will be available at the time of
the clean-up. Thus, it is appropriate to include, for example, expected cost reductions associated with
increased experience in applying existing technology or the expected cost of applying existing technology to
a larger or more complex clean-up operation than has previously been carried out. However, an enterprise
does not anticipate the development of a completely new technology for cleaning up unless it is supported by
sufficient objective evidence.

The effect of possible new legislation is taken into consideration in measuring an existing obligation when
sufficient objective evidence exists that the legislation is virtually certain to be enacted. The variety of
circumstances that arise in practice usually makes it impossible to specify a single event that will provide
sufficient, objective evidence in every case. Evidence is required both of what legislation will demand and of
whether it is virtually certain to be enacted and implemented in due course. In many cases sufficient objective
evidence will not exist until the new legislation is enacted.

Expected Disposal of Assets

44.

45.

Gains from the expected disposal of assets should not be taken into account in measuring a provision.

Gains on the expected disposal of assets are not taken into account in measuring a provision, even if the
expected disposal is closely linked to the event giving rise to the provision. Instead, an enterprise recognises
gains on expected disposals of assets at the time specified by the Accounting Standard dealing with the assets
concerned.

Reimbursements

46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another
party, the reimbursement should be recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received if the enterprise settles the obligation. The reimbursement should be
treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement should not exceed the amount
of the provision.

In the statement of profit and loss, the expense relating to a provision may be presented net of the amount
recognised for a reimbursement.

Sometimes, an enterprise is able to look to another party to pay part or all of the expenditure required to
settle a provision (for example, through insurance contracts, indemnity clauses or suppliers’ warranties). The
other party may either reimburse amounts paid by the enterprise or pay the amounts directly.

In most cases, the enterprise will remain liable for the whole of the amount in question so that the enterprise
would have to settle the full amount if the third party failed to pay for any reason. In this situation, a
provision is recognised for the full amount of the liability, and a separate asset for the expected
reimbursement is recognised when it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the enterprise
settles the liability.

In some cases, the enterprise will not be liable for the costs in question if the third party fails to pay. In such
a case, the enterprise has no liability for those costs and they are not included in the provision.

51. As noted in paragraph 28, an obligation for which an enterprise is jointly and severally liable is a contingent

liability to the extent that it is expected that the obligation will be settled by the other parties.

Changes in Provisions

52. Provisions should be reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation, the provision should be reversed.
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Use of Provisions
53. A provision should be used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised.

54. Only expenditures that relate to the original provision are adjusted against it. Adjusting expenditures against
a provision that was originally recognised for another purpose would conceal the impact of two different
events.

Application of the Recognition and Measurement Rules
Future Operating Losses
55. Provisions should not be recognised for future operating losses.

56. Future operating losses do not meet the definition of a liability in paragraph 10 and the general recognition
criteria set out for provisions in paragraph 14.

57. An expectation of future operating losses is an indication that certain assets of the operation may be
impaired. An enterprise tests these assets for impairment under Accounting Standard (AS) 28, Impairment of
Assets.

Restructuring
58. The following are examples of events that may fall under the definition of restructuring:
(a) sale or termination of a line of business;

(b) the closure of business locations in a country or region or the relocation of business activities from one
country or region to another;

(c) changes in management structure, for example, eliminating a layer of management; and

(d) fundamental re-organisations that have a material effect on the nature and focus of the enterprise’s
operations.

59. A provision for restructuring costs is recognised only when the recognition criteria for provisions set out in
paragraph 14 are met.

60. No obligation arises for the sale of an operation until the enterprise is committed to the sale, i.e., there is a
binding sale agreement.

61. An enterprise cannot be committed to the sale until a purchaser has been identified and there is a binding sale
agreement. Until there is a binding sale agreement, the enterprise will be able to change its mind and indeed
will have to take another course of action if a purchaser cannot be found on acceptable terms. When the sale
of an operation is envisaged as part of a restructuring, the assets of the operation are reviewed for impairment
under Accounting Standard (AS) 28, Impairment of Assets.

62. A restructuring provision should include only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring,
which are those that are both:

(a) necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and

(b) not associated with the ongoing activities of the enterprise.
63. A restructuring provision does not include such costs as:

(a) retraining or relocating continuing staff;

(b) marketing; or

(c) investment in new systems and distribution networks.

These expenditures relate to the future conduct of the business and are not liabilities for restructuring at the
balance sheet date. Such expenditures are recognised on the same basis as if they arose independently of a
restructuring.
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64. Identifiable future operating losses up to the date of a restructuring are not included in a provision.
65. As required by paragraph 44, gains on the expected disposal of assets are not taken into account in measuring
a restructuring provision, even if the sale of assets is envisaged as part of the restructuring.
Disclosure

66. For each class of provision, an enterprise should disclose:

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

the carrying amount at the beginning and end of the period;
additional provisions made in the period, including increases to existing provisions;
amounts used (i.e. incurred and charged against the provision) during the period; and

unused amounts reversed during the period.

Provided that a Small and Medium-sized Company, as defined in the Notification, may not comply with paragraph
66 above.

67. An enterprise should disclose the following for each class of provision:

(a)

(b)

(c)

a brief description of the nature of the obligation and the expected timing of any resulting outflows of
economic benefits;

an indication of the uncertainties about those outflows. Where necessary to provide adequate
information, an enterprise should disclose the major assumptions made concerning future events, as
addressed in paragraph 41; and

the amount of any expected reimbursement, stating the amount of any asset that has been recognised for
that expected reimbursement.

Provided that a Small and Medium-sized Company, as defined in the Notification, may not comply with
paragraph 67 above.

68.

(a)
(b)
(c)
69.

70.

71.

72.

Unless the possibility of any outflow in settlement is remote, an enterprise should disclose for each class of
contingent liability at the balance sheet date a brief description of the nature of the contingent liability
and, where practicable:

an estimate of its financial effect, measured under paragraphs 35-45;
an indication of the uncertainties relating to any outflow; and
the possibility of any reimbursement.

In determining which provisions or contingent liabilities may be aggregated to form a class, it is necessary to
consider whether the nature of the items is sufficiently similar for a single statement about them to fulfill the
requirements of paragraphs 67 (a) and (b) and 68 (a) and (b). Thus, it may be appropriate to treat as a single
class of provision amounts relating to warranties of different products, but it would not be appropriate to treat
as a single class amounts relating to normal warranties and amounts that are subject to legal proceedings.

Where a provision and a contingent liability arise from the same set of circumstances, an enterprise makes
the disclosures required by paragraphs 66-68 in a way that shows the link between the provision and the
contingent liability.

Where any of the information required by paragraph 68 is not disclosed because it is not practicable to do
so, that fact should be stated.

In extremely rare cases, disclosure of some or all of the information required by paragraphs 66-70 can be
expected to prejudice seriously the position of the enterprise in a dispute with other parties on the subject
matter of the provision or contingent liability. In such cases, an enterprise need not disclose the
information, but should disclose the general nature of the dispute, together with the fact that, and reason
why, the information has not been disclosed.
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Transitional Provisions

73. All the existing provisions for decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities (see paragraph 35) should
be discounted prospectively, with the corresponding effect to the related item of property, plant and equipment.

Tables - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Reimbursements

The purpose of this illustration is to summarise the main requirements of the Accounting Standard. It does not form
part of the Accounting Standard and should be read in the context of the full text of the Accounting Standard.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Where, as a result of past events, there may be an outflow of resources embodying future economic benefits in settlement
of: (a) a present obligation the one whose existence at the balance sheet date is considered probable; or (b) a possible
obligation the existence of which at the balance sheet date is considered not probable.

There is a present obligation
that probably requires an
outflow of resources and a
reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of obligation.

There is a possible obligation
or a present obligation that
may, but probably will not,
require an outflow of
resources.

There is a possible
obligation or a present
obligation where the
likelihood of an outflow
of resources is remote.

A provision is recognised
(paragraph 14).

Disclosures are required for the
provision (paragraphs 66 and 67)

No provision is recognised
(paragraph 26).

Disclosures are required for the
contingent liability (paragraph 68).

No provision is reco-
gnised (paragraph 26).
No disclosure is required
(paragraph 68).

Reimbursements

| Some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party.

The enterprise has no obligation
for the part of the expenditure
to be reimbursed by the

other party.

expected to be reimbursed
remains with the enterprise
and it is virtually certain
that reimbursement

will be received if the

The obligation for the amount

enterprise settles the provision.

The obligation for the amount
expected to be reimbursed
remains with the enterprise
and the reimbursement is not
virtually certain if the
enterprise settles the
provision.

The enterprise has no liability
for the amount to be reimbursed
(paragraph 50).

The reimbursement is

the balance sheet and may be

amount recognised for the
expected reimbursement does
not exceed the liability
(paragraphs 46 and 47).

recognised as a separate asset in

offset against the expense in the
statement of profit and loss. The

The expected reimbursement
is not recognised as an asset
(paragraph 46).

No disclosure is required.

The reimbursement is
disclosed together with the
amount recognised for the

reimbursement (paragraph 67(c)).

The expected reimbursement is
disclosed (paragraph 67(c)).

Illustration B

Decision Tree

The purpose of the decision tree is to summarise the main recognition requirements of the Accounting Standard for
provisions and contingent liabilities. The decision tree does not form part of the Accounting Standard and should be

read in the context of the full text of the Accounting Standard.

Illustration A




104 THE GAZETTE OF INDIA : EXTRAORDINARY [PART ITI—SEC. 3(i)]

— Possible No
Present obligation as a No obligation?
result of an obligating |*
event?
Yes Yes
‘ Probable outflow? I'L@ote? Yes
Yes
‘ Reliable estimate?

Yes No (rare)
Disclose contingent m

liability

Note: in rare cases, it is not clear whether there is a present obligation. In these cases, a past event is deemed to give rise to a present
obligation if, taking account of all available evidence, it is more likely than not that a present obligation exists at the balance sheet date
(paragraph 15 of the Standard).

Illustration C

Ilustration: Recognition

This illustration illustrates the application of the Accounting Standard to assist in clarifying its meaning. It does not
form part of the Accounting Standard.

All the enterprises in the Illustrations have 31 March year ends. In all cases, it is assumed that a reliable estimate can
be made of any outflows expected. In some Illustrations the circumstances described may have resulted in impairment
of the assets — this aspect is not dealt with in the examples.

The cross references provided in the Illustrations indicate paragraphs of the Accounting Standard that are
particularly relevant. The illustration should be read in the context of the full text of the Accounting Standard.

Illustration 1: Warranties

A manufacturer gives warranties at the time of sale to purchasers of its product. Under the terms of the contract for
sale the manufacturer undertakes to make good, by repair or replacement, manufacturing defects that become apparent
within three years from the date of sale. On past experience, it is probable (i.e. more likely than not) that there will be
some claims under the warranties.

Present obligation as a result of a past obligating event -The obligating event is the sale of the product with a
warranty, which gives rise to an obligation.

An outflow of resources embodying economic benefits in settlement - Probable for the warranties as a whole (see
paragraph 23).

Conclusion - A provision is recognised for the best estimate of the costs of making good under the warranty products
sold before the balance sheet date (see paragraphs 14 and 23).

Ilustration 2: Contaminated Land -Legislation Virtually Certain to be Enacted

An enterprise in the oil industry causes contamination but does not clean up because there is no legislation requiring
cleaning up, and the enterprise has been contaminating land for several years. At 31 March 2005 it is virtually certain
that a law requiring a clean-up of land already contaminated will be enacted shortly after the year end.

Present obligation as a result of a past obligating event -The obligating event is the contamination of the land
because of the virtual certainty of legislation requiring cleaning up.

An outflow of resources embodying economic benefits in settlement - Probable.
Conclusion - A provision is recognised for the best estimate of the costs of the clean-up (see paragraphs 14 and 21).
Ilustration 3: Offshore Oil field

An enterprise operates an offshore oil field where its licensing agreement requires it to remove the oil rig at the end of
production and restore the seabed. Ninety per cent of the eventual costs relate to the removal of the oil rig and
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restoration of damage caused by building it, and ten per cent arise through the extraction of oil. At the balance sheet
date, the rig has been constructed but no oil has been extracted.

Present obligation as a result of a past obligating event -The construction of the oil rig creates an obligation under
the terms of the licence to remove the rig and restore the seabed and is thus an obligating event. At the balance sheet
date, however, there is no obligation to rectify the damage that will be caused by extraction of the oil.

An outflow of resources embodying economic benefits in settlement — Probable.

Conclusion -A provision is recognised for the best estimate of ninety per cent of the eventual costs that relate to the
removal of the oil rig and restoration of damage caused by building it (see paragraph 14). These costs are included as
part of the cost of the oil rig. The ten per cent of costs that arise through the extraction of oil are recognised as a
liability when the oil is extracted.

Ilustration 4: Refunds Policy

A retail store has a policy of refunding purchases by dissatisfied customers, even though it is under no legal obligation
to do so. Its policy of making refunds is generally known.

Present obligation as a result of a past obligating event -The obligating event is the sale of the product, which gives
rise to an obligation because obligations also arise from normal business practice, custom and a desire to maintain
good business relations or act in an equitable manner.

An outflow of resources embodying economic benefits in settlement

Probable, a proportion of goods are returned for refund (see paragraph 23).

Conclusion - A provision is recognised for the best estimate of the costs of refunds (see paragraphs 11, 14 and 23).
Illustration 5: Legal Requirement to Fit Smoke Filters

Under new legislation, an enterprise is required to fit smoke filters to its factories by 30 September 2005. The
enterprise has not fitted the smoke filters.

(a) At the balance sheet date of 31 March 2005

Present obligation as a result of a past obligating event -There is no obligation because there is no obligating event
either for the costs of fitting smoke filters or for fines under the legislation.

Conclusion - No provision is recognised for the cost of fitting the smoke filters (see paragraphs 14 and 16-18).
(b) At the balance sheet date of 31 March 2006

Present obligation as a result of a past obligating event -There is still no obligation for the costs of fitting smoke
filters because no obligating event has occurred (the fitting of the filters). However, an obligation might arise to pay
fines or penalties under the legislation because the obligating event has occurred (the non-compliant operation of the
factory).

An outflow of resources embodying economic benefits in settlement - Assessment of probability of incurring fines
and penalties by non-compliant operation depends on the details of the legislation and the stringency of the
enforcement regime.

Conclusion - No provision is recognised for the costs of fitting smoke filters. However, a provision is recognised for
the best estimate of any fines and penalties that are more likely than not to be imposed (see paragraphs 14 and 16-18).

Ilustration 6: Staff Retraining as a Result of Changes in the Income Tax System

The government introduces a number of changes to the income tax system. As a result of these changes, an enterprise
in the financial services sector will need to retrain a large proportion of its administrative and sales work force in
order to ensure continued compliance with financial services regulation. At the balance sheet date, no retraining of
staff has taken place.

Present obligation as a result of a past obligating event -There is no obligation because no obligating event
(retraining) has taken place.

Conclusion - No provision is recognised (see paragraphs 14 and 16-18).
Ilustration 7: A Single Guarantee

During 2004-05, Enterprise A gives a guarantee of certain borrowings of Enterprise B, whose financial condition at
that time is sound. During 2005-06, the financial condition of Enterprise B deteriorates and at 30 September 2005
Enterprise B goes into liquidation.

(a) At 31 March 2005
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Present obligation as a result of a past obligating event -The obligating event is the giving of the guarantee, which
gives rise to an obligation.

An outflow of resources embodying economic benefits in settlement
No outflow of benefits is probable at 31 March 2005.

Conclusion -No provision is recognised (see paragraphs 14 and 22). The guarantee is disclosed as a contingent
liability unless the probability of any outflow is regarded as remote (see paragraph 68).

(b) At 31 March 2006

Present obligation as a result of a past obligating event -The obligating event is the giving of the guarantee, which
gives rise to a legal obligation.

An outflow of resources embodying economic benefits in settlement - At 31 March 2006, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

Conclusion -A provision is recognised for the best estimate of the obligation (see paragraphs 14 and 22).

Note: This example deals with a single guarantee. If an enterprise has a portfolio of similar guarantees, it will assess
that portfolio as a whole in determining whether an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit is probable (see
paragraph 23). Where an enterprise gives guarantees in exchange for a fee, revenue is recognised under AS 9,
Revenue Recognition.

Illustration 8: A Court Case

After a wedding in 2004-05, ten people died, possibly as a result of food poisoning from products sold by the
enterprise. Legal proceedings are started seeking damages from the enterprise but it disputes liability. Up to the date
of approval of the financial statements for the year 31 March 2005, the enterprise’s lawyers advise that it is probable
that the enterprise will not be found liable. However, when the enterprise prepares the financial statements for the year
31 March 2006, its lawyers advise that, owing to developments in the case, it is probable that the enterprise will be
found liable.

(a) At 31 March 2005

Present obligation as a result of a past obligating event -On the basis of the evidence available when the financial
statements were approved, there is no present obligation as a result of past events.

Conclusion - No provision is recognised (see definition of ‘present obligation’ and paragraph 15). The matter is
disclosed as a contingent liability unless the probability of any outflow is regarded as remote (paragraph 68).

(b) At 31 March 2006

Present obligation as a result of a past obligating event -On the basis of the evidence available, there is a present
obligation.

An outflow of resources embodying economic benefits in settlement - Probable.
Conclusion - A provision is recognised for the best estimate of the amount to settle the obligation (paragraphs 14-15).
Ilustration 9A: Refurbishment Costs -No Legislative Requirement

A furnace has a lining that needs to be replaced every five years for technical reasons. At the balance sheet date, the
lining has been in use for three years.

Present obligation as a result of a past obligating event -There is no present obligation.
Conclusion - No provision is recognised (see paragraphs 14 and 16-18).

The cost of replacing the lining is not recognised because, at the balance sheet date, no obligation to replace the lining
exists independently of the company’s future actions - even the intention to incur the expenditure depends on the
company deciding to continue operating the furnace or to replace the lining.

Ilustration 9B: Refurbishment Costs -Legislative Requirement

An airline is required by law to overhaul its aircraft once every three years.

Present obligation as a result of a past obligating event -There is no present obligation.
Conclusion - No provision is recognised (see paragraphs 14 and 16-18).

The costs of overhauling aircraft are not recognised as a provision for the same reasons as the cost of replacing the
lining is not recognised as a provision in illustration 9A. Even a legal requirement to overhaul does not make the costs
of overhaul a liability, because no obligation exists to overhaul the aircraft independently of the enterprise’s future
actions - the enterprise could avoid the future expenditure by its future actions, for example by selling the aircraft.
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Illustration 10: An onerous contract

An enterprise operates profitably from a factory that it has leased under an operating lease. During December 2005 the
enterprise relocates its operations to a new factory. The lease on the old factory continues for the next four years, it
cannot be cancelled and the factory cannot be re-let to another user.

Present obligation as a result of a past obligating event -The obligating event occurs when the lease contract
becomes binding on the enterprise, which gives rise to a legal obligation.

An outflow of resources embodying economic benefits in settlement - When the lease becomes onerous, an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is probable. (Until the lease becomes onerous, the enterprise
accounts for the lease under AS 19, Leases).

Conclusion -A provision is recognised for the best estimate of the unavoidable lease payments.
Illustration D
Illustration: Disclosures

This illustration does not form part of the Accounting Standard. Its purpose is to illustrate the application of the
Accounting Standard to assist in clarifying its meaning. An illustration of the disclosures required by paragraph 67 is
provided below.

Illustration 1 Warranties

A manufacturer gives warranties at the time of sale to purchasers of its three product lines. Under the terms of the
warranty, the manufacturer undertakes to repair or replace items that fail to perform satisfactorily for two years from
the date of sale. At the balance sheet date, a provision of Rs. 60,000 has been recognised. The following information
is disclosed:

A provision of Rs. 60,000 has been recognised for expected warranty claims on products sold during the last three
financial years. It is expected that the majority of this expenditure will be incurred in the next financial year, and all
will be incurred within two years of the balance sheet date.

An illustration is given below of the disclosures required by paragraph 72 where some of the information required is
not given because it can be expected to prejudice seriously the position of the enterprise.

Ilustration 2 Disclosure Exemption

An enterprise is involved in a dispute with a competitor, who is alleging that the enterprise has infringed patents and is
seeking damages of Rs. 1000 lakhs. The enterprise recognises a provision for its best estimate of the obligation, but
discloses none of the information required by paragraphs 66 and 67 of the Standard. The following information is
disclosed:

Litigation is in process against the company relating to a dispute with a competitor who alleges that the company has
infringed patents and is seeking damages of Rs. 1000 lakhs. The information usually required by AS 29, Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets is not disclosed on the grounds that it can be expected to prejudice the
interests of the company. The directors are of the opinion that the claim can be successfully resisted by the company.
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